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Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, the predecessor of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”), was established in 1958,
and the Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRG”") on 6
November 2002 as a limited liability company and incorporated in the PRC as a joint stock
company with limited liability on 28 December 2008. The Company’s A shares were listed
on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company’s H
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
manufacturer in the PRC. The principal businesses of the Company’s coal mining
machinery segment are complete sets of equipment for integrated coal mining, the
development and research (the “R&D”), design, production, sales and services of
intelligent control system, with products used by the major coal industry groups
throughout the country and successively exported to various countries. The coal mine
hydraulic support with the highest supporting height and the highest resistance globally,
the first complete set and intelligent equipment for integrated mining supplied by an
individual factory in the PRC and the first exported complete set equipment for integrated
mining in the PRC are researched and developed and manufactured by the Company.

There are two brands under the auto parts segment of the Company, being SEG and
ASIMCO. SEG is a world-leading technology and service provider automobile starter
motors and generators, which constantly drives energy conservation and emission
reduction and technological innovation for automobiles, leading the developments of green
travel technology. Also, its technology and market share of 48V low-voltage hybrid motors
are world-leading. Relying on its high-end R&D advantages, worldwide sales network and
local quick response, high-voltage drive motor for new energy vehicles progresses quickly.
The principal products of ASIMCO include parts using materials application technology
as their core such as engine cylinder blocks and heads, camshaft and powder metallurgy
products, noise and vibration absorber and brake seal, piston ring and valve seat ring.
Also, ASIMCO is committed to the R&D of high-efficient and intelligent air suspension
system, and strives to march into new energy automobile chassis sector, providing high
quality parts products for PRC and global auto markets.

The established operating history, high quality products, strong R&D capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network of the Company and its
subsidiaries are the keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the
coal mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts market.
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Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registered Office in the PRC

No. 167, 9th Street, Zhengzhou Section (Econ-Tech Development Zone) of
China (He'nan) Pilot Free Trade Zone, PRC
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Company’s Website

WWW.Zmj.com
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A Share Registrar

Shanghai Branch, China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited
No. 188 Yanggao South Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai

Stock Codes

H Share: 00564 (The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)
A Share: 601717 (Shanghai Stock Exchange)
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Jianshe Road Branch, Zhengzhou

No. 11 West Jianshe Road, Zhongyuan District, Zhengzhou
Henan Province, PRC

China Construction Bank Zhengzhou Jinshui Branch
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Authorized Representatives
Mr. Jiao Chengyao
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Legal Advisers
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Haiwen & Partners
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Chairman’s Statement

EER{RETE
Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased, on behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, to present the annual report of

the Group for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (the “2024 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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BINR AR E A B IR A F] 20245 3

Dear Shareholders,

In 2024, global economy experienced a moderate recovery, but the international situation
remained complex and volatile, and geopolitical conflicts intensified. The adverse effects
brought by changes in the external environment increased, while domestic effective
demand was insufficient, leading to a divergence in economic operations. The industry
in which the Company operates faced intensified “involution”, and the challenges of
volatility increased. Confronting the severe and complex external environment, the
Company centred around the brand new vision of “becoming a global leading and
sustainable provider of intelligent industrial solutions”, focusing on strategic objectives,
closely tracking market dynamics, adhering to innovation-driven approaches, sparing no
efforts in promoting digital transformation, strengthening market leadership externally
and enhancing capacity building internally, and steadily and orderly advancing various
company operations to achieve stable growth in business performance.
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2024 BUSINESS REVIEW

()

()

The Group’s overall performance and the
performance of each business segment have again
reached a new historical high

In 2024, ZMJ Group recorded total revenue of RMB37,052.04
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.73%. Net profit
attributable to shareholders of the listed company amounted to
RMB3,943.49 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
19.45%. The performance of major industry segments such as the
coal mining machinery segment, ASIMCO, and Hengda Intelligent
Control reached historical highs.

Continuous advancement of digital transformation to
cultivate and develop new quality productive forces

Fully launched the Group’s digital transformation planning and
business governance reform and enhanced the Group’s operational
efficiency and market competitiveness. Conducted in-depth interviews
and research on global businesses, completed blueprint design of the
SAP project, and formulated a preliminary digital transformation plan
and business governance reform proposal, laying a solid foundation
for the Group’s realization of digital global governance in the future.

The smart park was successfully included in the list of Global
Lighthouse Network, becoming the first “Lighthouse Factory” in
the coal machinery industry. Hengda Smart Control’s new digital
factory has commenced operations, with production capacity
increasing by 12%, efficiency improving by 33%, and delivery time
reduced by 11%, achieving intelligent production processes and
product intelligence, establishing core competitiveness in the field of
intelligent manufacturing, and it will become a demonstration base
for intelligent manufacturing of comprehensive control systems and
valves for use with high-end supports, an industrial Internet platform
base and a research and development testing base, empowering
high-quality development for clients in the coal industry through
digitalization and intelligence.

Adhering to the principle of “digital-driven transformation of the entire
business process”, we have established a promotion mechanism
integrating IT and OT, deeply advanced digital construction, and
cultivated and developed new quality productivity. We have promoted
the construction or completion and put into operation systems such as
the service big data platform, integrated design and manufacturing
technology, ZMOM 2.0 (Manufacturing Operations Management
System), APS (Advanced Planning and Scheduling System),
developed interactive artificial intelligence application scenarios, and
officially operated the digital human for exhibition hall. We promoted
the digital operation platform of the coal mining machinery segment,
completed the deployment of core functions, and achieved unified
management of the 1+6 management cockpit and 68 business
statements.
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() Integrated and optimized minority equity of

subsidiaries to enhance industry synergy of the
Group and parent company profitability

According to the development strategy of the Group for each
industry segment, reclaiming minority equity in subsidiaries and
increasing the shareholding ratio are important strategic deployments
for the Company to strengthen group management and industry
coordination, enhance the profitability attributable to the parent, and
strengthen resource integration. In 2024, the Company increased its
shareholding in core business subsidiaries (Hengda Intelligent Control,
Intelligent Working Face Company, Longwall Company, ASIMCO
Nanjing, ASIMCO Shuanghuan and Camshaft, etc.) through means
such as capital increase and acquisition of minority shareholders’
equity in the coal mining machinery segment and ASIMCO, this is
conducive to the comprehensive optimization and integration of
resources in business, finance, fund and capital operations within
the Company, enhancing the development strength of relevant
subsidiaries, improving operational decision-making efficiency, and
boosting the performance attributable to shareholders of the listed
company.

(V) The coal mining machinery segment has significant

advantages in complete sets and intelligence,
creating differentiated advantages

In 2024, confronting a complex external environment, the coal
mining machinery segment actively innovated and sought change,
seized opportunities, adjusted its structure, promoted transformation,
and implemented refined management. The major indicators showed
steady improvement, market development advanced against the
trend, the advantages of complete sets and intelligent solutions
were significant, and both the quality and efficiency of production
and operation increased. During the year, this sector achieved
operating income of RMB19,469.66 million and a net profit excluding
unallocated expense of RMB4,167.47 million, as always, it played
the role of the Group’s anchor, continuing the positive momentum of
high-quality and sustainable development.

1. Achievements in domestic and international markets are
fruitful

Confronting insufficient external market demand and fierce
“involution” competition in the industry, the coal mining
machinery segment actively responded to market changes
by adhering to the principle of “project is king, order is king,
transaction is king”, quickly adjusting its sales strategy, focusing
on both tapping existing resources and expanding new ones,
proactively securing orders, controlling risks and promoting
collection of receivables, solidly advancing market development
efforts domestically, internationally, and across branches and
subsidiaries.
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The bid-winning rate and direct order volume in the domestic
market grew against the trend, with both the order value and
quantity of complete-set projects reaching historic highs.
Intelligent development is moving towards practical and in-depth
applications, with the market share of intelligent mining systems
exceeding 45%, maintaining a leading position in the industry
for consecutive years. The bid-winning and successful delivery
of the 7.2-meter ultra-mining height comprehensive top coal
caving hydraulic roof support has set a new height in the field of
comprehensive top coal caving. As for the international market,
efforts are made to consolidate traditional business markets
while proactively exploring new businesses and new markets.
Large-scale projects have been consecutively entered into in
Indonesia and Turkey, and we also entered the Kazakhstan
market for the first time. We have actively expanded non-coal
business, exploring the crane equipment market and opening
up new business areas.

Technology innovation leads high-quality development

Adhering to the R&D concept of “comprehensive external
leadership and internal value creation”, we continuously
improve the scientific research and innovation system, build
differentiated product technology and service advantages,
and strive to develop new products and new businesses. This
aims to maintain the competitive advantages of the enterprise,
achieve long-term stable growth in the future, and establish
new industry benchmarks paving new paths.

The initial framework for new business development has
emerged, developing new products and exploring new markets
with the needs of customers as the centre. The large dip
angle support moving equipment, rapid excavation and bolting
integrated machine and horizontal axis open-pit continuous
mining machine have been successfully applied. Actively
promote the research and development efforts in open-pit
mining, backfilling systems, intelligent tunnelling and green
zero-support, striving to explore new growth points.

Further expand the integrated smart mining business on
the basis of our complete sets of intelligent coal mining
system, extending the business to tunnelling workface and
comprehensive control of coal mine systems. Additionally,
we have introduced new businesses such as intelligent
comprehensive tunnelling control systems, workface pump
stations and control systems, centralised control systems for
coal mine belt transportation, and smart mine management and
control platforms, further enhancing the system landscape of
smart mining business.
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We have initiated the era of full-scenario intelligent smart
mining. Successfully achieved deep integration of DeepSeek
with systems such as mine pressure monitoring system, full
mine control platform, comprehensive mining control platform,
Al video analysis, digital twin system, industrial internet and
comprehensive disaster prevention in the field of smart mining.
We have integrated coal mine production, safety, warning and
analysis operations into the DeepSeek industry large model,
achieving comprehensive localization adaptation from underlying
algorithms to upper-level frameworks and hardware facilities.
This not only fortifies the solid defence line for coal mine
data security, but also achieves a qualitative leap in response
speed, providing more efficient and reliable solutions for the
construction of intelligent mines.

3. Adopting multiple measures to vertically increase
production capacity

Guided by user demand, we adhere to high target-driven
strategies to enhance all-factor production efficiency,
safeguarding market development. Fully tapping internal
potential, significantly increasing the proportion of in-house
production, shortening the manufacturing cycle, and enhancing
production flexibility and market competitiveness. The per
capita self-made output of the coal mining machinery segment
increased by 4.3% year on year, reaching a historic high.
Further strengthen the overall planning of complete set project
manufacturing to meet customer delivery needs with high
quality and beyond expectations.

(V) The automotive parts segment has consolidated
its core advantageous position and accelerated the
transition to new energy

During the reporting period, the Company’s automotive parts segment
seized market trends, optimized business structure, and continuously
consolidated its advantageous position in core components.
Significant progress was made in new energy vehicle components,
focusing on chassis and electric drive. Overall operational efficiency
and profitability continued to improve, achieving annual revenue of
RMB17,582.38 million and net profit excluding unallocated expense
of RMB265.54 million, providing strong support for the Company’s
sustainable development.
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ASIMCQ’s operational performance in 2024 was outstanding,
with both operating revenue and net profit reaching historic highs.
ASIMCO continues to advance strategic transformation, committed to
the development of product platforms, creating a diverse product line.
The business in the passenger vehicle and new energy sectors has
advanced rapidly, with the revenue share of the passenger vehicle
business increasing to 47% in 2024 (as compared to 30% in 2022).
In 2025, such revenue share will surpass that of the commercial
vehicles for the first time, transforming ASIMCO from a commercial
vehicle-focused business layout into a new pattern where both
commercial and passenger vehicle businesses thrive, and from parts
to components. The air suspension system components business
has made breakthrough progress and has reached cooperation
with several leading OEMs; the battery cooling plate and chassis
rod business has secured multiple project appointments, achieving
a breakthrough from zero to one. As regards the commercial
vehicle business, the piston ring products have been continuously
innovated and optimized. With their reliable performance under
high temperature, high explosion pressure and high power per litre
conditions, as well as advantages in low emissions and high fuel
economy, they have broken the monopoly of international giants and
provided innovative solutions to enhance the international competitive
advantage of the engine industry. The “zero defects” philosophy is
continuously practiced, and casting technology is upgraded to meet
the stringent requirements of customers for product performance,
precision and reliability with high-quality engine block and cylinder
head casting products. Keeping pace with customers, we actively
cooperate with the market development of new products such as
methanol engines and have been awarded the Excellent Supplier
Award by our customer. Continuously advancing the construction of
capacity enhancement projects, we have achieved mass production
at the Yuncheng factory, vibration damping components business,
and battery cooling plate business, accelerating the digital upgrade
of factories to lay a solid foundation for business expansion and
increasing market share.

SEG focuses on profitability and growth, continued to optimise its
global layout, and achieved good operational performance in 2024,
with a continuous increase in market share; the 12V starter and 48V
BRM businesses showed a good growth trend, and the aftermarket
business grew significantly. The Spanish factory has launched a
newly independently developed inverter production line, effectively
improving the cost of the 48V BRM business. The high-voltage motor
business in India has achieved a new breakthrough, swiftly capturing
the rapidly developing Indian market with its localization advantage.
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SEG Automotive E-Drive System Co., Ltd. (SES) accelerated the
expansion of its new energy vehicle business, leveraging its
accumulation and breakthroughs in key process technologies of parts
and components for high-voltage drive motors to assist in acquiring
new projects. It has secured multiple stator and rotor projects from
leading customers, with certain projects ramping up mass production.
Successfully obtained the EMB brake motor project, achieving
breakthrough in the chassis domain motor business. While expanding
the market, we are committed to the development of advanced
processes, steadily advancing the construction of new production
capacities, laying a solid foundation for long-term development.

(V) Achieving new breakthroughs by empowering

discrete manufacturing industries with digitalisation
and intelligence

ZMJ Shuyun Company is committed to building a complete digital
factory ecosystem, cultivating the capability of creating a “smart
factory turnkey” solution, and enhancing product quality and factory
efficiency through digital empowerment. Based on the “Lighthouse
Factory and Lighthouse Network”, it successfully delivered its first
external project to a client in 2024 and received multiple external
project orders, once again proving its strong capabilities in intelligent
factory solutions for the discrete manufacturing industry. In the
future, it is expected to become an important business support for
the Group’s digital transformation.

(VIl) New developments have been made in investment

business, with capital empowering industrial
transformation and upgrading

During the reporting period, Suda Corporation, one of the Company’s
investee companies, successfully launched its initial public offering,
becoming the first A-share company specializing in full lifecycle
management of industrial machinery. Luoyang Bearings Group Co.,
Ltd. (&[5 &= &£ E A% B FR A 7)), one of the Company’s
investee companies, completed its shareholding reform and has
commenced IPO counselling, laying the foundation for entering the
capital market, and achieved new breakthroughs in the fields of high-
speed rail, aerospace, wind power and extra-large and heavy-duty
bearing sectors. While managing the existing business segments
well, we will optimise the industry layout, explore opportunities
in emerging fields, and empower the Company’s high-quality
development with capital.
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Industry landscape and trends

() Coal mining machinery industry

According to the Guiding Opinions on the High-quality Development
of the Coal Industry in the 14th Five-Year Plan issued by the China
National Coal Association, by the end of the 14th Five-Year Plan
period, the number of coal mines in China is controlled at around
4,000, with more than 1,000 intelligent mining faces built, and the
degree of mechanisation of coal mining shall be around 90%.

In April 2024, seven ministries and commissions, including
the State Administration of Mine Safety and Supervision, jointly
issued the “Guiding Opinions on Deeply Promoting the Intelligent
Construction of Mines and Promoting the Safe Development of
Mines”, which explicitly proposed that, by 2026, a complete
standard system for mine intelligence should be established, the
integration and interoperability of data in mines should be promoted,
and the intelligent perception of the environment, the intelligent
interconnection of systems, and the intelligent warning of major
disaster risks should be realised. The proportion of intelligent
production capacity in coal mines across the country will not be less
than 60%, the proportion of intelligent working faces will not be less
than 30%, the normal operation rate of intelligent working faces will
not be less than 80%, the substitution rate of intelligent equipment
or robots for hazardous and heavy duty operations in coal mines and
non-coal mines will not be less than 30% and 20% respectively, the
number of people working underground will be reduced by more than
10% in mines across the country, and a batch of intelligent mines
with no more than 50 workers in a single shift will be established.
By 2030, a complete system encompassing intelligent technology,
equipment and management for mines will be established, in-depth
integration and sharing application of mine data will be realised, the
excavating operations will become less-manned or unmanned, the
major safety risks will be effectively prevented and controlled, and the
inherent safety level of mines will be significantly improved.

As one of the main energy sources in China, coal has been playing
the role of “ballast” and “stabiliser” in energy supply. In recent years,
China has successively issued policies such as the “Catalogue of
Key Research and Development of Coal Mine Robot”, the “National
Energy Technology Innovation Action Plan (2016-2030)”, the “Guiding
Opinions on Accelerating the Intelligent Development of Coal Mines”
and the “Guidelines for the Intelligent Construction of Coal Mines”,
which, together with the introduction of supporting policies by major
coal-producing regions, are conducive to promoting safe and efficient
intelligent mining and clean and efficient intensive utilisation of coal,
and have a clear direction for the construction of intelligent coal
mines. At the same time, the intensified and leading effect of the
coal industry has become more obvious, the concentration of the coal
mining machinery industry continued to increase, the competition
was increasingly crowded, and the pace of internationalisation,
informatization, digitization and intelligent transformation was
accelerated.
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On the other hand, intelligent, complete sets, internationalisation and
socialisation would be the major trends for the future development
of coal mining. Underground unmanned mining represented by
intelligent, industry integration represented by complete sets, social
service division of labour based on the premise of full life cycle
service, as well as with the gradual withdrawal of international coal
machinery enterprises from underground mining, the swift capture
of overseas market by domestic coal machinery equipment would
become the inevitable direction of the development of the coal mining
machinery industry in the future.

In 2025, China will orderly approve the construction of a number of
large-scale modern coal mines with high level of intelligence and
guaranteed safety and continue to implement the Action Plan for
Clean and Efficient Utilisation of Coal. It is expected that the annual
domestic raw coal production will remain at a high level of around
4.8 billion tonnes, and under the combined effect of the continuous
release of domestic coal production capacity and the repeated record
highs of imported coal, the overall domestic coal supply will be
relatively loose, and coal consumption is expected to increase slightly
year-on-year, and the overall range of fluctuation of coal prices will
be reduced, and the price centre may shift downwards. Under the
dual impetus of the demand for renewal and replacement of existing
mine equipment and the incremental demand for purchase of
intelligent mine equipment, the coal machinery market will maintain
stable room for development.

/MJ will grasp the opportunity of high-speed development of
intelligent construction in coal mines, providing customers with
highly reliable, intelligent, green and complete sets of equipment,
and contribute the ZMJ strength to satisfy customer demand and
safeguard national energy security.

Automobile industry

In recent years, the PRC automobile market has accelerated to
shift to new energy automobile. The Development Plan of New
Energy Automobile Industry (2021-2035) pointed out that the sales
volume of new energy vehicles will account for approximately 20%
of the total sales volume by 2025; The “Energy-saving and New
Energy Vehicle Technology Roadmap 2.0” issued by the Society of
Automotive Engineers of China proposed that hybrid electric vehicles
shall account for more than 50% of traditional energy passenger
vehicles by 2025. While the market share of new energy automobile
exceeded 40% in 2024, becoming an important power to lead the
transformation of global automobile industry.
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From a short-term perspective, the automobile market continued
to recover, but both the domestic and overseas situation are
complicated and severe, with increasing challenges and uncertainties.
China has increased its macro-control efforts, expanded domestic
demand, optimised structure and actively expanded overseas
markets, while at the same time, it has also promoted automobile
consumption through the introduction and implementation of various
policies and measures, such as the series of policies to stimulate
automobile consumption including optimising the policy of restricting
the purchase of automobiles, launching a new round of “automobiles
going to the countryside”, trading in the old for the new, and
renewing and optimising the reduction and exemption of the purchase
tax on new energy automobiles until the end of December 2027,
etc. With the continuous promotion of national policies to promote
consumption and stabilise growth, China’s automobile market is
expected to continue to maintain a stable and improving development
trend.

From the perspective of the structure of global automobile industry,
the proportion of new vehicle production and vehicle ownership in
developing countries has been increasing, and the influence has been
enlarging, but the gap between developing countries and developed
countries in terms of popularity of automobile is still huge, while the
United States, Japan, Germany and other developed countries having
more than 50 vehicles per 100 people, the developing China only
had approximately 25 vehicles per 100 people by 2024, and there is
still a relatively large gap between the level of automobile ownership
in China and that of the major developed countries. Compared with
the size of Chinese population, the proportion of middle-income
people and per capita GDP, China has huge potential for automobile
consumption, and China’s well-developed internal supply chain
system would provide strong support for the development of the
automobile industry.

Full electrification will drive a high degree of integration between the
industry chains of energy-saving and new energy vehicles, and the
market share of fuel-powered vehicles will further shrink, and the
number of new vehicle models developed by traditional automobile
enterprises will decrease. The high-end vehicle market and new
energy vehicle market have greater growth potential, and the leading
effect of the automobile industry will become more obvious. On the
other hand, the automobile market still faces great challenges: the
market competition is becoming increasingly fierce; at the same time,
customers have higher requirements for product production cycle,
technical performance, comfort and quality.

As the upstream industry of the automobile industry, the automobile
parts and components industry is the foundation for the development
of the automobile industry. The automobile industry is in the
window period of new energy transformation, we are facing not
only the opportunities of industry reform, but also the challenges of
sustainable development. The Company will continue to explore the
passenger vehicle market, steadily expand the commercial vehicle
market, vigorously explore the new energy market, actively provide
customers with high-quality products and services, and enhance
market competitiveness in various fields.
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lll. FUTURE PROSPECTS

()

Development strategy of the Company

The Report of the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of
China pointed out that the focus of economic development should be
placed on the real economy, so as to promote new industrialisation
and accelerate the establishment of a nation with manufacturing
power and quality power. The 2025 Government Work Report
pointed out that the development of new quality productivity should
be tailored to local conditions and the construction of a modernised
industrial system should be accelerated. We will promote the
integration of scientific and technological innovation and industrial
innovation, vigorously promote new industrialisation, expand and
strengthen advanced manufacturing industries, and actively develop
modern service industries, so as to promote the accumulation of new
dynamic energy and the upgrading of traditional dynamic energy.

Adhering to the development philosophy of “Technology Changes
the World, Intelligence Leads the Future”, with the mission of
“Driving the Future with Intelligence, Creating and Leading a Better
Life”, and with the vision of “Becoming a Leading and Sustainable
Intelligent Industrial Solution Provider”, we will adhere to the brand
new corporate values of “Facing the Future, Transformation and
Innovation, Openness and Collaboration, Pursuing Excellence”,
adhere to the direction of transformation and development ideas of
electrification, intelligence, digitisation and globalisation, embraces
artificial intelligence, and strengthens the innovation and iteration
of green and sustainable development-related technologies to
continuously accelerate the pace of transformation and upgrading;
through diversified business layout, resource integration and
industrial chain collaboration, we will promote complementarity and
innovation among business segments, give play to synergy effects,
and strive to achieve the development goal of 100 billion by 2030.

1. Deeply cultivating the coal mining machinery segment
based on the current long-term plan

The coal mining machinery segment will adhere to the principle
of “intelligent-driven product development and digital-driven
business transformation throughout the whole process”,
reshaping the ecology of coal mining with robot technology,
redefining the equipment and system of coal mining with
the strategic height of coal mining robots, carry out in-
depth implanting of artificial intelligence, and stepping up the
R&D of and investment in intelligent mining and intelligent
manufacturing, so as to meet customers’ increasing needs for
“service experience” instead of focusing on “equipment per se”,
and to make the mining of coal safer, more efficient, greener
and more comfortable, strive to become a supplier of complete
sets of coal mining equipment, a service provider with a full life
cycle, and an industrialised digital operator.
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Accelerating the electrification transformation of the
auto parts segment

We will continue to maintain the sustained growth and market
share of our core advantageous businesses, accelerate
the transformation of new energy, fast-track the layout of
new products and new businesses, accelerate the pace of
new energy development, and strive to enhance our market
competitiveness and profitability. We will promote ASIMCO
to explore new business opportunities in the field of new
energy automobile parts and components, so as to enable it to
transform from a traditional commercial vehicle enterprise into
a global leading new energy automobile parts and components
manufacturing group. We will promote SEG to stabilise its global
market share, accelerate the layout of its new energy business
and enhance its overall profitability. We will promote the large-
scale development and operational excellence of SES’s high-
voltage motor parts and components, explore new opportunities
in the electric motor business related to drive, control, steering
and suspension, and build itself into an industry-leading
automotive motor solutions provider.

Accelerating digital transformation and fostering the
industrial intelligence sector

We will accelerate the implementation of digital transformation
planning, develop global governance and enhance the Group’s
operational efficiency and market competitiveness. On the
one hand, the Company will promote the digital upgrade at all
levels of the Company and promote the interconnection and
collaborative sharing of multiple segments and businesses.
On the other hand, we will cultivate and build the industrial
intelligence business segment: from intelligent working faces
of coal mine to intelligent mine, and from shaft intelligence
to open-pit intelligence, we will strive to develop into a
provider of digital mine operation; we will position ourselves
as a provider of intelligent industrial solutions, focusing on
“production automation, logistics automation and information
automation”, and build up our integrated software and hardware
delivery capability driven by solution services, and empowers
the construction of native digital chemical plants and the
transformation of digital chemical plants by taking solution
services as a competitive differentiation point. The Group will
strive to build itself into a digital enterprise, and empower the
high-quality development of enterprises with digitalization and
intelligence.

Focusing on emerging areas and striving to develop new
businesses

We will seize the new industrial opportunities under the
background of “dual carbon” and focus on the existing
segments while unswervingly entering into new fields and
developing new businesses. Adhering to “leaving the industry
without leaving the profession”, we will attention to business
opportunities in the new energy, high-tech equipment and
intelligent equipment industries.
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5. Promoting high-quality development with the help of
capital

The Group will actively study the relevant policies as regards
capital market, rationalise our business structure, highlight
the advantages of our main business, optimise our industrial
layout, enhance the quality of development and promote the
realisation of value. We will make comprehensive utilisation of
various capital market tools to explore ways to invest in and
find a path in new industries, improve the long-term incentive
and restriction mechanism, and improve the mechanism of
business partners, so as to comprehensively enhance the value
of investment in the Company.

() Business Plan for 2025

2025 is the concluding year of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and also
a critical year for planning and laying out the new development
under the “15th Five-Year Plan”. The complex and ever-changing
macroeconomic environment, increasingly fierce market competition
and rapid technological innovation have brought opportunities for
transformational development, but also pose even more severe
challenges. The Company will focus on strategic goals, adhere to
the guidance of technology innovation, continuously strengthen
innovation-driven efforts, and achieve breakthroughs in cognitive
ability, group governance capability, system and mechanism
innovation and digital transformation. With high work enthusiasm, we
will promote overall improvement in various tasks, so as to achieve
sustainable high-quality corporate development.

1. Continue to deepen reform and transformation,
solidifying the foundation for high-quality development

(1) Continuously advance business governance reform and
strengthen group control

Taking strategy, finance, IT, human resources, and
investment as key levers, promoting the transformation of
the Group headquarters from a “small headquarters” to a
“functional” headquarters focused on strategic control. The
Group headquarters will concentrate on strategic guidance,
professional support and business synergy, promoting
adjustments in the Group’s internal industry segments and
organizational structure, enhancing the global compliance
system to ensure consistency and efficiency in overall
development direction.
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Continue to advance digital transformation, cultivate and
develop new quality productivity

Led by intelligence, globalisation and digitalisation,
continuously promote reform and innovation, and enhance
overall digitalisation and intelligent manufacturing levels.
Complete the Group’s digital transformation strategic
planning, clarify the global IT architecture under the
new situation, integrate IT and Al to transform traditional
industries, promote innovation in products and services,
continuously enhance business efficiency, improve
customer experience and innovate business models,
empowering high-quality development with digital and
intelligent technology.

Promote the Group’s new industry layout to drive
development through investment

Grasp new industrial opportunities in the context of “dual-
carbon”, streamline transformation businesses, incubate
businesses and potential M&A businesses, invest in
directions within existing businesses that have market
and incremental potential, and plan for new industries
facing the future. Empower industrial development
through investment, with fixed asset investment expanding
production to aid endogenous growth and equity
investment supporting exogenous growth, driving high-
quality development of the Group.

2. Continue to drive business segment reform and
innovation to achieve stable and healthy development

(1)

Taking intelligence as guidance, maintaining leading
position for the coal mining machinery business

The coal mining machinery segment continues to deepen
the “four strategies” supported by digitalization and
intelligence, firmly advancing intelligent-driven complete-
set development of products, digitally-driven whole
process transformation of the business, and establishing
the technical system for coal mining robots, ensuring
its leading position in the global coal mining machinery
market.
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First, enhance market competitiveness. Deepen global
layout, enhance international market development
and service support capabilities, further expand our
international reputation; innovate business models,
taking integrated sales of complete sets of equipment as
a lever and the industrial internet platform as the basis,
leveraging diversified intelligent sensing hardware to build
a remote intelligent operation and maintenance platform
encompassing data, model and scenario, achieving real-
time monitoring of equipment health status throughout
the lifecycle and preventive intelligent maintenance,
exploring new marketing models for professional lifecycle
services, establishing barriers for competition, achieving
differentiated competition and market leadership.

Second, adhere to the driving effect of innovation. Focus
on the construction of high-end complete set benchmark
demonstration projects, achieve breakthroughs in more
coal mining equipment products through various methods
beyond the “two machines and one support”, create
competitive advantages in one-stop solution; enhance
mining efficiency, focus on the R&D of various types
of mining auxiliary operation robots, and develop ZMJ
complete-set solutions with core competitiveness aimed
at “fewer manpower, increased safety and improved
efficiency”; strengthen the leadership of intelligence, focus
on artificial intelligence-powered coal mining equipment
and more application scenarios, carry out research on
the core issues of unmanned, intelligent and robotic coal
mining, lead the industry in the development of intelligent
technology and realise the transition from “coal mining
while sitting on the ground” to “coal mining while sitting in
the office.”
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@

Third, comprehensively advance digital and intelligent
construction. Taking the resolution of customer on-site and
management issues as a lever, we will integrate digital
intelligence construction into scenarios such as enterprise
marketing, R&D, manufacturing, service and operation,
taking “process reengineering, data governance, index
standardization and report unification” as the starting
point, to achieve the digital transformation of the coal
mining machinery segment; adhere to the principles of
overall planning and phased implementation, relying on
intelligent factory construction and production line layout
adjustments to deepen the integration of design and
process, promote the MBD model of smart parks, and build
a lean intelligent manufacturing production and operation
system with unique ZMJ characteristics. To transform the
entire manufacturing base of the coal mining machinery
segment into an intelligent factory in all aspects; embrace
artificial intelligence, deepen the application practices of
ZMJ interactive artificial intelligence, creating value and
new intelligent application experiences for customers.

ASIMCO to accelerate new energy transformation and be
prepared for production capacity reserves

First, focus on vigorously developing the new energy
vehicle market around the chassis, seizing opportunities in
localization and new energy. The chassis shock absorption
business segment will continue to expand its market share;
new businesses such as air suspension systems, cold
plates, rods and subframes are moving from breaking the
ice to expanding market share; rapidly advance the layout
of new products and new businesses. Secondly, continue
to consolidate and enhance the advantageous position of
core businesses, intensify efforts in exploring international
markets, and explore overseas factory construction to meet
global customer demands, expanding the advantages of
core businesses from domestic to global; thirdly, prepare
capacity reserves for continuous business growth, and plan
capacity layout for the growth of shock absorption sealing,
powder metallurgy and new businesses; fourthly, promote
digital construction, promote digital planning of factories
and the automated upgrade of bottleneck processes/units
to enhance core competitiveness.
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SEG to solidify its global market share, SES to accelerate
the development of new energy business

SEG will continue to reduce costs and increase efficiency,
streamline hierarchies, and enhance headquarters
empowerment to stimulate internal motivation; advance
the mass production of self-developed 48V BRM motors,
promote motor products for light electric vehicle, further
increase market share in the 12V and 48V BRM sectors,
and enhance profitability with the support of the Chinese
supply chain; expand aftermarket business to achieve
rapid growth in developing countries.

SES will leverage the advantages of the global system
and the benchmarking effect of projects in hand, increase
product promotion and sales efforts, be customer-centric,
leverage the advantages of large-scale production,
enhance competitiveness through scale, and ensure
high-quality delivery. Focusing on the needs of strategic
customer, taking existing business as the entry point, and
utilising existing core R&D capabilities (motors, electronic
controls, software and hardware) and resources to carry
out joint development, and explore new opportunities in
electric motor-related intelligent driving businesses such as
drive, braking, steering and suspension. Increase revenue
and reduce expenditure, continuously improve, and
enhance profitability through operational excellence.

Focusing on industrial intelligence, cultivate and build the
industrial intelligent segment

Under the policy background of vigorous promotion of new
industrialization, strengthening and expanding advanced
manufacturing and facilitating the renewal and upgrading
of traditional industries by the State, the Company
takes the “Lighthouse Factory” experience as guidance,
advances the application of “Artificial Intelligence +
Manufacturing”. By integrating digital technology with
manufacturing advantages, we will focus on cultivating
the industrial intelligence sector through various methods
such as restructuring, strategic cooperation and joint
ventures, create the ability to deliver intelligent industrial
solutions that integrate overall hardware and software with
solution services, and form the ability to deliver ‘smart
factory turnkey’ solutions. We will empower thousands of
industries and provide overall solutions for the digitalisation
and intelligentisation of discrete manufacturing, as well as
empowering the construction of original digital factories
and the digital transformation of traditional factories.

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Chairman’s Statement EERH &=

@

“

HRISBE TS 1087 + SESHIIR
FRERF T H IR

REMREEE TR - IBEER - 15
CRABERERAE  MEBANER )  HER
Tf4BVBRME S @ HEKAE

BEMAE T - FE12VAN48V BRMAE 5
—HRATMSNE - (BB B
S RARFESD  ERERE
% EERPBERERRRIEE -

SESHAZHBRELNEFHELE
P - INAEQHEEIEE N - A
BEATL  BEARELEES
BARELRABTE) RESES
St - BEREBEEEES  URAZ
BRI - LI FR L A

(BREE - SEEE AR Ba
B RREHEESRERIENY
BHLBIHE o BIRER - HEX
£ BBSHWELIEABAES -

EETRERUE - BEITETRER
W&

FEBRARNHEER A THAL - R
SRITEELER  [REBRERRITT
BEBRBRT - RAATEE TR
e AEIR - HEIATER+2E ]
FER - BB TR EELE B R
& BAEAE BREE 58%%
BIABHIEE TERERRG - TE&
AT RIRS S B R R — R
BETRBRT RS - ORI B
BIMIMR IS - HETITE
¥ REEEEUERHTE - B
HERERTR - BREBRFCTR
EREEGTHRBFCEIEEE -

21



22

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

Chairman’s Statement EERH &=

(5) Steady progress of Zhima Street Phase Il construction
project

The Group will promote the development of Phase |l
of Zhima Street Innovation and Entrepreneurship Park,
complete the relocation of production functions in the
park, explore investment models for Phase Il development,
advance the construction of Phase Il project, enhance the
commercial support model, and strive to develop into a
demonstration model of China’s “industrial heritage + dual
creation industry”.

The mission lies in responsibility and struggle creates the future. In 2025,
the Company will continue to adhere to promoting the industrial innovation
with scientific and technological innovation, foster and develop new quality
productivity and focus on the goal of high-quality development, and strive with
an unremitting attitude for the achievement of the Company’s five-year strategic
planning goal, and strive to become a globally leading and sustainable provider
of intelligent industrial solutions!

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

28 March 2025
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With Smart Industrial Solutions,
We are the Motor for a Sustainable World
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB37,052.04 million, representing an increase of 1.73% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
was RMB3,943.49 million, representing an increase of 19.45% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB221.62. As at 31
December 2024, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB6,035.65 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history, high
quality products, strong R&D capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes
and extensive sales and service network are the keys to our success and allow
us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal mining and excavating
equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and SEG Automotive
Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the auto parts market
and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal mining machinery and
auto parts.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year ended 31 December
2024 indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

RERE

ARERERE -

TREIIAREERAREE2024F12 431 H IEFERER

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB miillions RMB millions
AREEET AREEETT
Revenue WA 37,052.04 36,423.24
Cost of sales SHEMA (28,198.87) (28,821.18)
Gross profit ER 8,853.17 7,602.06
Other income EmUA 724.89 49212
Other gains and losses Ehas K EiE 113.98 (13.20)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R ERAX (1,069.41) (910.38)
Administrative expenses TERAX (1,493.711) (1,199.59)
R&D expenses HEER (1,516.44) (1,568.22)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, TEHE BB R THREEE -
net of reversal MR (157.72) 51.22
Share of profit of associates FE{G B &N R)E T 48.32 46.96
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(EE B DEHT 6.34 5.89
Finance costs BEERLAR (297.95) (388.60)
Profit before tax BRE AR 5,211.47 4,118.26
Income tax expense FriSEifsZ (980.57) (616.67)
Profit for the year FR=EA 4,230.90 3,501.59
Profit for the year attributable to: AR A LG FREF
Owners of the Company VNN 3,943.49 3,301.33
Non-controlling interests FEFEASRE RS 287.41 200.26
4,230.90 3,501.59
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Results of Operations (continued) BEEE

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBEETT
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hth2mE (X)W -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T EHHEE B ER -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations BT ERKENETE 4.86 16.33
Changes in the fair value of equity instruments at fair value UNAFEAE B EEE T AHM
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) FHERWREHBRATAAEE
& 8.38 3.20
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to AJRER AR EFT P AE 2 18 a1
profit or loss: IEA :
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEFINETREER
foreign operations PEH Z%E (119.77) 27.67
Fair value loss on hedging instruments designated in EEREEREBLEANEHRTA
cash flow hedges AEEEE (3.64) 0.77)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year, FREMZE(FAS) K
net of income tax HBRFTE R (110.17) 46.43
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWZRE 4,120.73 3,548.02
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: IATFATEEFREEYZEEEE
Owners of the Company NARRE 3,833.18 3,348.62
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AE S 287.55 199.40
4,120.73 3,548.02
EARNINGS PER SHARE SREF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARES) 221.62 187.22
— Diluted (RMB cents) —E(ARESD) 221.06 186.09




Revenue

Our revenue increased by 1.73% from RMB36,423.24 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to RMB37,052.04 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, mainly because the increase of sales for the year.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and

business (in RMB millions):

BINR AR E A B IR A F] 20245 3
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WA

P40 -

AREBWAREET2023F12A31HIEFEHARE
36,423.24'F & LI M. 73% E & = 2024512 A31 H L5
EAREI7 0520487 TEREANEEHERER

TREII AR BEIRE f 2 E5 80 AT (BN

AREBETT) :

Year ended 31 December 2024

BZ2024F 128310 ILFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
BERE
BUIE IR TR ZEH et
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET AREEET ARBEETT
Sales of auto parts RETEFREE - 17,467.17 17,467.17
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIEE S ZER SR & 12,547.76 - 12,547.76
Revenue from steel and other materials trading #1425 E {th [REHE 5 Bk A 3,034.58 50.34 3,084.92
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery (R EC(FRITEES 2,907.17 - 2,907.17
Sales of other coal mining equipment Hih R R EHE 823.73 - 823.73
Other revenue EmhUgA 156.42 64.87 221.29
19,469.66 17,582.38 37,052.04
Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31HIEFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUE R RERETEM #Et
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEE&TT ARBBEET AREBEETT
Sales of auto parts RETEREE - 17,462.84 17,462.84
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIEE S ZER SR & 11,727.52 - 11,727.52
Revenue from steel and other materials trading #8522 E b RAKH 2 5 UL A 3,746.35 67.28 3,813.63
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery iR AR 14 89 55 & 2,536.59 - 2,5636.59
Sales of other coal mining equipment Hih R R ENEE 593.64 - 593.64
Other revenue HAA 249.70 39.32 289.02
18,853.80 17,569.44 36,423.24

2%
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Cost of Sales

As the result of lower material cost and higher producing efficiency, our cost
of sales decreased by 2.16% from RMB28,821.18 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to RMB28,198.87 million for the year ended 31 December
2024.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit increased by 16.46% from
RMB7,602.06 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB8,853.17
million for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The increase of gross profit during the year was primarily benefited from the full-
year decline in prices of key raw materials and improvement in manufacturing
capacity efficiency, as well as the increase in overall revenue estimates of high-
margin products. The gross profit margin of the coal mining machinery segment
increased from 27.01% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 32.38% for
the year ended 31 December 2024. As of 31 December 2024, the gross profit
margin of the auto parts segment of the Group decreased from 16.75% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to 14.49% for the year ended 31 December
2024,

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group increased from 20.87%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 23.89% for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 47.30% from RMB492.12 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB724.89 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, mainly because the Group gained more additional input value-
added tax credit.

Other gains and losses

Our other gains and losses increased by RMB127.18 million from a loss
of RMB13.20 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to a gain of
RMB113.98 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, primarily as a result
of net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 17.47% from RMB910.38
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB1,069.41 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, which aligned with the increase of revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 24.52% from RMB1,199.59 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB1,493.71 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 mainly due to the additional costs arising from
the final settlement of employee severance compensation under the SEG
restructuring plan.
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Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approximately 17,085 employees.
Our staff costs increased by 6.71% from RMB3,519.01 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to RMB3,755.21 million for the year ended 31
December 2024. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic
salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating
results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees.
The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as
the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and reasonable
allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses remain basically flat for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the year ended 31 December 2024. The group
is deeply committed to substantial investment in its research and development
initiatives, reflecting a strong dedication to innovation and growth.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs decreased by 23.33% from RMB388.60 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB297.95 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, mainly due to the decrease in interest on bank borrowings this
year.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 26.55% from RMB4,118.26 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to RMB5,211.47 million for the year ended 31 December
2024.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense increased by 59.01% from RMB616.67 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB980.57 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, primarily as a result of the increase of production and sales.
Our effective tax rate increased to 18.82% for the year ended 31 December
2024 from 14.97% for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year
and the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 16.14% from
RMB3,548.02 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB4,120.73
million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 19.45% from RMB3,301.33 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to RMB3,943.49 million for the year ended 31 December
2024.

Trade and Other Receivables, Contract Assets

As 31 December 2024, trade and other receivables, contract assets amounted
to approximately RMB11,920.55 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB1,567.07 million as compared to RMB10,353.47 million as
at the end of 2023, primarily due to the increase of revenue.

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s net current assets were approximately
RMB13,735.57 million (31 December 2023: RMB17,330.88 million) and
the current ratio was 1.63 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:

1.89). The decrease in current ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in
borrowings in current portion.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had RMB2,987.59 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.
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HIRE MIRTTIERK ©

2024 2023

20245 20234F

RMB millions RMB millions

AREBETR AREBETT

Net cash generated from operating activities ST FTSIR & R 58 4,722.32 4,450.07

Net cash used in investing activities WA EHFTRR S F5E (1,306.38) (1,968.06)

Net cash used in financing activities A EEFTARIRS R (5,152.04) (1,508.93)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEYORD )L HINERE (1,736.10) 973.08
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash [EXREFHHIRS LHSEEYL

equivalents =/ (5.54) 149 71

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MTATERNRE MRS EEY 4,729.23 3,613.44

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A3THAIRE MRS EEY 2,987.59 4,729.23




Management Discussion and Analysis & [E&1R E

Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2024 was RMB4,722.32 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB5,211.47 million,
primarily adjusted for: (i) finance cost of RMB297.95 million; (i) increase in
trade and other receivables of RMB1,561.63 million, (i) Decrease in notes
receivable of RMB1,345.24 million, (iv) increase in trade and other payables
of RMB474.78 million, and (v) decrease in contract liabilities of RMB1,084.00
million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2024 was RMB1,306.38 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB1,996.50 million for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment; (i) withdrawal of bank deposits with
original maturity over three months of RMB1,395.90 million; (iii) payment
of RMB7,909.55 million for other financial assets, structured deposits and
certificate of deposit; (iv) proceeds of RMB8,268.04 million from other financial
assets and structured deposits; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of
RMB1,287.37 million; (vi) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB1,620.30
million; (vii) placement of bank deposits with original maturity over three months
of RMB1,229.42 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities in 2024 was RMB5,152.04 million,
primarily consisting of (i) proceeds from new borrowings of RMB1,719.06
million; (i) purchase of non-controlling interests of RMB1,660.36 million;
(i) repayment of borrowings of RMB2,975.43 million; (iv) Dividends paid to
Company’s shareholders of RMB1,499.15 million; and (v) Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests of RMB294.27 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB2,706.35 million for the year ended
31 December 2024, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, and land use right.
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2024, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB350.50 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognized certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognized
notes receivable at the end of each Reporting Period is as follows:

Outstanding endorsed or discounted notes receivable with
recourse

AERBRARERE
BN HAHE

HE20245F12 8318 - AEBRERESLEREDE - K
B REEBENEEEAEFTHNE R REARESS0508
BT e

SARBIE

RAEE  AEEEEERKIERE TRKEE - U
HFEHAZMEBRENE S REMENTIE - ARRES
RE - BRBEEERKEERBEER TP EIRTT
B RIREER - R E S ZRREENRRTAK
REREHR - NEBAEARNZEEE RIKIEHER
HIEW = R mM/BREN S AREBRIT -

BERBENHAEEDEE
BEEES Y S

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB millions RMB millions
AR¥EBETT ARBEETT
2,820.45 1,765.77

As of 31 December 2024, the Group has derecognized certain trade
receivables without recourse which were transferred to banks with amounting to
RMB42,337,000 (2023: RMB316,735,000).

R2024F 128318 - AEEERIEERE S EERIT
ME TEEBREE 5 MEWIE AR 42,337,0007T (2023
& AR¥316,735,0007T) °



Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2024 (in RMB millions):
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LEESREE

BEL : ARBEET)

TREJNBE2024F 12 AN AREERHEER B EF

2024 2023
20244F 20234
RMB millions RMB millions
AREEET AREEETT
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion BREMEEIWRIE - e D 20.66 21.83
Long-term receivables, current portion EHIFEWETE » RENI S 248.24 216.23
Inventories e 9,453.77 9,296.61
Trade and other receivables, contract assets BENEMEKRE - SRIEE 11,920.55 10,353.47
Transferred trade receivables EEEME ZEKGIE 431.85 198.86
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AAYERTE B EZ8ETA
BammemEE 5,821.56 5,944.16
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT ERE B EZEHTA
Hib2mmmemEE 2,502.85 3,848.09
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRI A 36.39 33.87
Tax recoverable B {EEE 38.66 31.97
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIENENEE 91.07 91.07
Bank deposits RITTFEH 1,934.56 1,945.90
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 2,987.59 4,729.23
35,487.75 36,711.29
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAERIE 13,932.21 12,916.36
Contract liabilities AREE 3,070.93 4,174.25
Income tax liabilities FriStia&E 396.72 24461
Borrowings =% 3,404.23 1,143.51
Lease liabilities HEaRE 144.70 145.31
Provisions Bt 273.03 532.11
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables HEEENE S ERFE
BHENEE 445.80 212.81
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERTA 84.56 11.45
21,752.18 19,380.41
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 13,735.57 17,330.88

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s net current assets were approximately
RMB13,735.57 million (31 December 2023: RMB17,330.88 million) and
the current ratio was 1.63 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
1.89). The decrease in current ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in

borrowings in current portion.

BE2024F12A318 - AEERBEEFEORBARE
13,735.57 B & T (2023512 A31H « AR¥17,330.88H
B70)  MnBt & 51.63(2023F 12318 : 1.89) ° it
B ETREEZHMNMEEMRNERE DG INFTER ©

of
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Working Capital and Indebtedness (continued) EEESREE®
As of 31 December 2024, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings HZE2024F12A318 - AEBREEBEHRBEAAR
was RMB6,035.65 million, of which RMB3,404.23 million are current portion (31 #6,035.65 B BT * AP REBE D HARE3404235HE
December 2023: outstanding borrowings was RMB7,303.24 million, of which TL(2023F12A31H « REBEEAARKE73032488
RMB1,143.51 million was current portion). T ERREHSs AARE114351BET) ©
As of 31 December 2024, our available credit line from various financial HE2024F12A31H - AEEERELZRE pgEn T
institutions amounted to RMB29,128.40 million. As of 31 December 2024, FEEBREARKE29128408 &0 - H/ 2202412 A31
approximately RMB21,579.10 million of our credit lines from various domestic H ZEEREZREANSRBENEEERNAR
and foreign financial institutions remained unused. #21,579.10B8 BITAREA ©
Capital Adequacy Ratio EXTRLER
Debt to capital ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities at the end of the BREEAR LR DNIRFREEBER AT RERRTE
year by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%. BEI00%TE ©
As of 31 December 2024, our debt to capital ratio was 115% (31 December HZE2024F12831H - AEEGEHHEERLEH115%
2023: 126%). (2023F12H31H : 126%) °
Liquidity Risk BN E E R
Weighted ~ On demand Total
aerage  orlessthan  Imonthsto Tyearto 2yearsto undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 2years 5Syears  Over 5 years cashflows amount
REXY it
EEARE  SI3ER MEAEIE  1ERE R BESF BenshE BaE
RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMB milions ~ RMBmilions  RMB millons
AREBETL AREEER ARMEET ARMEEL AREEER AREEEL ARMEER
The Group pie- 4 |
As at 31 December 2024 R0A4E12A31E
Non-derivative financial liabilfies HiEEBER
Trade and other payables BHRAMENTE
(excluding non-financial liabiliies) (TREEERAR) 12,395.18 - - - - 12,350.18 12,355.18
Other non-current liabilties AFiBak
(excluding non-financial iabiites) ~ (FREFERBAE) - - 34.86 8301 - 17.87 1787
Liabilties associated with HEEENE SRNTE
fransferred rade receivables BEMEE 138.08 30772 - - - 4580 44580
Borrowings £E 265 1,731.62 1,792.25 1,930.24 737.82 - 6,196.93 6,035.68
L ease liabilities fgak 287 63.44 184.04 2188 53316 131752 2,380.04 119471
Derivative financial abilities TEERAE
Not designated as hedging instruments R4§5E AR T & - 502 - - - 502 502
Designated as hedging instruments 6 AR T A 814 5140 - - - 7954 79.54
14,316.46 2,340.43 219198 1,353.99 131752 21580.38 20,233.77
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loans receivable
from associates and a joint venture, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in
or entered into the contract with the banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of
the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see Note 33 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to Note 46(b) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs
Accounting Standards for more quantitative information about the Group’s
interest risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, receivables, borrowings and
payables (collectively “Non-Functional Gurrency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between United States
dollars (“USD”)/RMB and Euro (“EUR”)/RMB. Please refer to Note 46(b) of the
financial statement prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information
about the Group’s currency risk.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE - EERSHREEE

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (f7&2g), was born in May 1963 in Gongyi County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a professor-level senior engineer with
postgraduate qualifications. He graduated from China Institute of Mining and
Technology (7 EAEZE£26%) (now known as China University of Mining and
Technology (FF B8 2 K 22)), majoring in mechanical design, manufacture
and automation, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985.
He obtained a master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining
and Technology in December 2003, and a doctoral degree in economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (&£ £} X &) in December
2007. From July 1985 to May 1992, he served as a technician, a production
dispatcher and an engineer of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1992 to May 1993, he was the
manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station (&5 3 M 5 8 4 (£ 14).
From May 1993 to January 1998, he was the deputy plant manager and plant
manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From January 1998 to July 2000, he was the deputy plant manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he was the plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From
October 2002 to December 2008, he served as the chairman and general
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From July 2015 to
May 2020, he acted as the chairman of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. Since December 2008, he has been the chairman of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jiao Chengyao held 4,226,964 A
Shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.274% of all its A Shares
and approximately 0.237% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jia Hao (&%), was born in March 1970 with Han ethnicity. He holds
postgraduate qualification with a master’s degree, and is a native of Chongging.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical manufacturing technology and
equipment from University of Shanghai for Science and Technology in 1991,
and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from China Europe
International Business School in 2001. He successively served as an assistant
to the director of the sealing branch of Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical
Scientific Research Institute of China National Machinery Industry Corporation
(B £ B 2 M ML T5 RHEARR 9T ), a sales manager of Parker Hannifin Motion
& Control (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (/23R EEBER EFRAT),
a standing deputy general manager of Shanghai Ziyan Mould Industry Co.,
Ltd. of Zijiang Group (35T & B H/GEHEAT X HR N F), a general
manager of the investment department of Salim Wanye Group (China) Co.,
Ltd. (=M EE (R E) AR E]), the president of Shanghai Huili
Group Company Limited (/8@ &E AR 2 7)) and the chairman of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd. (854 = B
WA PR A &). From March 2014 to February 2018, he was the deputy general
manager of the Company. From February 2018 to March 2021, he has been
the vice chairman and general manager of the Company. From March 2021 to
December 2023, he served as an employee director and the general manager
of the Company. Since December 2023, he has been an employee director, vice
chairman and the general manager of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jia Hao held 2,442,300 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.158% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.137% of all its Shares.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Meng Hechao (Z & #8), was born in April 1980 in Luohe, Henan. He
is a CPC member and a senior engineer with undergraduate qualifications.
Mr. Meng commenced his career in August 2004, from August 2004 to May
2010, he served as a technician of the oil tank sub-plant, a craftsman of
the technology and process department and an office director of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (renamed to Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited in 2008); from May 2010 to February 2014,
he served as a deputy director of the production and manufacturing department
of the Company; from February 2014 to February 2020, he served as the head
of the technology and process department of the Company; from February 2020
to April 2021, he served as the general manager of the oil tank company of
the Company, the executive director and general manager of the ZMJ Zhiding
Hydraulic Company Limited; from April 2021 to December 2023, he was the
deputy general manager of the coal mining machinery segment of the Company;
since December 2023, he has been a director of the Company; since January
2024, he has been the general manager of the coal mining machinery segment
of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Meng Hechao held 231,000 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.015% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.013% of all its Shares.

Mr. Li Kaishun (Z=B3)ig), was born in December 1980 in Nanjing, Jiangsu. He
is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate qualifications. Mr.
Li commenced his career in May 2006 and served as workshop officer, head
of the technical department, production director, deputy general manager and
executive deputy general manager of ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng)
Co., Ltd.; from June 2018 to April 2021, he served as the general manager and
secretary to the Party Committee of ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng)
Co., Ltd.; from October 2020 to April 2021, he served as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company; from January 2021 to December 2021,
he served as the vice president of manufacturing support of ASIMCO (Beijing)
Limited. Since January 2022, he has been a director and the president of
ASIMCO (Beijing) Limited (renamed to ASIMCO (Nanjing) Limited in April 2023).
Since December 2023, he has been a director of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Li Kaishun held 201,000 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.013% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.011% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Director

Mr. Cui Kai (#35]), was born in September 1974 in Jincheng City, Shanxi.
He holds postgraduate qualifications, CPC membership and the title of senior
economist. Mr. Cui graduated as a finance major from Henan University
of Economics and Law (ja] Fg BA AR B A A 22) with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1997, and as a finance major from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (4 g B & BUA A ER) with a master’s degree in
economics in 2001. From August 1997 to August 2002, he worked for Henan
Provincial Investment Company (77 9 & @ %% & 422 7)); from August 2002
to February 2006, he worked for Henan Venture Investment Co., LTD (;r] F &l
2R AR D PR /A F); from February 2006 to September 2017, he worked
for Henan Investment Group Company Limited (r[Fa & & £ E AR A 7). He
served as the vice president of Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd (Al m3 & B
EIBAERE AT from September 2017 to December 2019. Since December
2019, Mr. Cui has become the general manager of Henan Asset Management
Co., Ltd. Since December 2020, Mr. Cui has also been the legal representative
and general manager of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (J54
e 2eests (GIRg) AR A 7). Since March 2021, Mr. Cui has been a non-
executive director of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (&%), was born in September 1967. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a master’s degree in
business administration. Mr. Cheng served for SAIC VOLKSWAGEN as an
engineer in logistics and industrial engineering, head of the planning and
logistics department, head of the production planning department and head of
the product engineering department, and served at SAIC Motor as the general
manager of its technology and quality department, president of the engineering
academy, as well as general manager of the strategy and business planning
department and chief engineer. Mr. Cheng was also the chairman of SAIC
Silicon Valley Venture Capital ()58 A&\ % & /A 7)), Dalian Sunrise Power
Company (Fuel Cell) (K:@ExmRA T (KAEFEM)) and DIAS Automotive
Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (Bt&I55EE FH R 7)), a director of SAIC
VOLKSWAGEN and SAIC GM, the vice president of China Society of Automotive
Engineers, the president of Shanghai Society of Automotive Engineers, an
independent non-executive director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, and
the partner and president of AGRC. Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director
and the general manager of Shanghai Shengshi Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. (B8 EEIE%MAR A T), the chairman of Qingdao SunHydro
Group Co., Ltd., an independent director of Shanghai Carthane Co., Ltd. (-
BRI R D B R A7) (listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 603037), and a director of Shanghai ChipON Microelectronics Technology
Co., Ltd. Since October 2019, he has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Ji Feng (%), was born in 1970. He is a certified public accountant
and a certified appraiser with a master’s degree in accounting. In July 1992,
he graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade (%5 #KE/ & £25%) (now
Jilin University of Finance and Economics) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In December 2010, he obtained a master’s degree in accounting
from the Business School of Jilin University. Since January 2002, he has been
a partner, a managing partner, and a quality control managing partner of Dahua
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership). From April 2020, he
has been an independent director of Beijing Tieke Shougang Railway-Tech Co.,
Ltd. Since March 2021, he has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Fang Yuan (75 %), was born in 1977. He is qualified as a certified public
accountant in the PRC with a master’s degree in business administration. Mr.
Fang Yuan is the founding managing partner of Starquest Capital, a China-
based private equity investment firm with its investment strategies focused
on consumer, healthcare and technology sectors. Prior to founding Starquest
Capital in 2017, Mr. Fang Yuan served as the head of LGT Capital Partners
in China for 12 years. Before joining LGT Capital Partners in early 2007, Mr.
Fang Yuan worked for AXA Private Equity Group in Singapore, focusing on
fund investment and direct investment in the Pan-Asia region. Mr. Fang Yuan
has over 20 years’ experience in the financial sector. Mr. Fang Yuan holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, an MBA
degree from INSEAD Business School and an EMBA degree from Tsinghua
University PBC School of Finance. Since March 2021, Mr. Fang Yuan has
been an independent non-executive Director of the Company. He has been
an independent non-executive director of VCREDIT Holdings Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2003.HK) and Hansong (Nanjing) Technology
Limited.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Yao Yanqiu (ZkZ8%k), was born in 1970. She is a second-grade lawyer
with a postgraduate degree in economics and law from the Law School of
Zhengzhou University. Ms. Yao holds qualification as an independent director of
a listed company recognized by the China Securities Regulatory Commission.
She has been engaged in the work of a lawyer since May 1994, and served as
a partner and director of Henan Asia Pacific People’s Law Firm (Ja] Fg 25 K A
EME75FT); since April 2017, she has been a senior partner of Shanghai
Hiways (Zhengzhou) Law Firm (B8 &EE K2 (E50N) 2EDEIEEN).
Since December 2023, she has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. She served as a council of direct subordinate of Henan Provincial
Lawyers Association, a director of the civil law business committee of direct
subordinate of the Henan Provincial Lawyers Association, and a member of
the administrative law business committee of direct subordinate of the Henan
Provincial Lawyers Association; currently, she serves as a standing director of
the administrative law association of the Henan Provincial Law Society, and an
executive member of the real estate specialty committee of the Henan Provincial
Lawyers Association. She has extensive experience in corporate governance,
mergers and acquisitions of enterprises, real estate development, expropriation,
as well as administrative litigation.

Supervisors

Mr. Liu Qiang (£)5%), was born in June 1969. He is a native of Yongcheng
City, Henan and a member of Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law and economics from Nankai University in 1990, a
master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University in 2004, and a Ph.D.
degree in economics from Henan University in 2009. From July 1990 to
November 2002, he worked at the Department of Audit of Henan Province;
from November 2002 to November 2012, he served as a full-time supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered
by Henan Provincial Government (AE& & EHAGEEES); from
November 2012 to December 2014, he served as a researcher of Economic
Cooperation Department (€75 & {EEZ) of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government; since
December 2014, he has been the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of
the Company; from February 2015 to February 2018, he served as a director
of the Company. Since February 2018, he has been the chairman of the Labor
Union and the chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Liu Qiang held 11,500 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.0007% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.0006% of all the shares of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Xiangdong (f2#8 5R), was born in December 1973 in Qixian,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a political analyst with a master’s degree in
management. From September 1993 to July 1995, he studied at the History
Department of Shangqiu Teachers College (7 - B &5 = % B RIE2EY). From
July 1995 to September 2000, he was a staff member of the Office of the
Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu (%% = ¥ & BPFA ZE). From September
2000 to December 2002, he was a deputy director of the Office of the Party
Committee of the Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu. From December 2002
to June 2008, he was a deputy director of the Office of Shanggiu Material
Circulation Centre (7 £ 0 & /7 3B /L A Z) (during which, he studied
at Zhengzhou University with undergraduate qualifications from September
1996 to June 2000, majoring in administration management). From June 2008
to August 2008, he worked at the human resources department of Yongcheng
Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd. From August 2008 to December 2009, he
worked at the Beijing Office of Yongcheng Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd.
From December 2009 to October 2010, he was a general manager assistant
and a sales director of Shangqiu Longyu Chemical Co., Ltd. From October
2010 to January 2011, he was a deputy general manager of Shangaiu Longyu
Chemical Co., Ltd. From January 2011 to September 2013, he was a director
of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary Commission (40 Z Z {41
& =) of Henan Coal Chemical Industry Group. From September 2013 to
August 2015, he was a director of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Energy and Chemical Industry Group (during which, he
enrolled in EMBA studies at Beijing Jiaotong University from December 2012
to January 2015 and obtained a master’s degree in management). From
August 2015 to November 2017, he was a director of the Case Supervision
Office of the Disciplinary Commission, a member of the Party Committee and
the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Sales Company of Henan
Energy and Chemical Industry Group. From November 2017 to May 2020, he
was a member of the Party Committee and the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. From May 2020 to
January 2024, he was a member of the Party Committee, the secretary to the
Disciplinary Commission, and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (currently Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co.,
Ltd. (AIF A ERELEEIREBR A R). From February 2022 to
June 2024, he was an executive director of Henan Equipment Investment New
Energy Co., Ltd. Since June 2022, he has been a supervisor of Henan State-
owned Capital Operation Group Co., Ltd. From February 2024 to June 2024,
he was the secretary to the Party Committee and a director of Henan Zhongyu
Gelin New Energy Co., Ltd. Since June 2024, he has been the secretary to the
Party Committee of Henan Zhongyu Gelin New Energy Co., Ltd. Since March
2021, he has been a shareholder representative supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Zhu Yuan (%% 58), was born in July 1994 in Zhongxiang, Hubei, with a
postgraduate degree. She graduated from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in June 2018 with a master’s degree in finance. She has been
working with the Company since July 2018. She served as an investment
manager in the strategic development department. Since December 2023, she
has been a supervisor of the Company. Since January 2024, she has been
the deputy head of the strategic development and Investment division of the
Company. Since April 2024, she has been a supervisory of Zhengzhou Suda
Industry Machinery Service Co., Ltd.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (E%) is a general manager of the Company. Please refer to
“Directors” of this section for his biography.

Mr. Fu Qi ({33), was born in November 1969 in Biyang, Henan. He is a
member of the Chinese Communist Party and a senior engineer. He is a deputy
general manager of the Company. From September 1988 to July 1992, he
studied at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical
design and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section
member of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December
1996, he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first
development division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he
was a section officer and the deputy head of the sales planning division, the
deputy head of the marketing department, and the deputy head of the sub-
plant of installation of the Company. From January 2006 to March 2008, he
was the head of the production and manufactory department of the Company.
From March 2008 to April 2010, he was the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading Co., Ltd. From April 2010 to
February 2012, he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee
of Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been
the deputy general manager of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Qi held 635,700 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.041% of all the A shares of the
Company and approximately 0.036% of all the shares of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin (3R3&3&), was born in September 1981 in Xinmi, Henan
and is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in
July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general
office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief
secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March 2010,
he was the chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From March
2010 to September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the general
office of the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he served as
the deputy head of capital operation department and representative for securities
affairs of the Company. From January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head
of general office, head of capital operation department and representative for
securities affairs of the Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was the
head of division of party and masses’ affairs. From February 2015 to February
2018, he has been the deputy general manager and the board secretary of the
Company. From July 2017 to February 2018, he has concurrently been the
chief financial officer of the Company. From February 2018 to December 2023,
he has been the board secretary of the Company. Since December 2023, he
has been the deputy general manager of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Haibin held 846,200 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.055% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.047% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Wang Yonggiang (E 7k &), was born in September 1971 in Hebei. He
is a member of the Chinese Communist Party, and graduated from Zhengzhou
University and obtained a master’s degree in mechanical engineering. From
August 1993 to February 2014, he has successively served as an engineer
and director of the technical department in the hydraulic branch of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory, deputy director and director of Zhengzhou
Hengda Hydraulic Engineering Center, and general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Hydraulic and Electric Control Co., Ltd. From February 2014
to February 2015, he was the head of human resources department of the
Company. From February 2015 to February 2018, he was the deputy general
manager of the Company. From March 2018 to December 2023, he has been
the assistant to the general manager, the chief engineer, the deputy general
manager and the chief engineer of the coal mining machinery segment of the
Company. Since December 2023, he has been the deputy general manager of
the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang Yonggiang held 282,300 A
shares of the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.018% of all the
A shares of the Company and approximately 0.016% of all the shares of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang Yichen (58 3 ), was born in April 1986 in Xiangcheng City,
Henan. He is a member of the Chinese Communist Party with Chinese nationality
and no right of abode in any foreign nations. He is a university graduate with
a bachelor degree. He graduated from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in July 2009. From July 2009 to January 2016, he served as an
office secretary, a member of the capital operation department, an assistant
to the head of the general office and an assistant to the head of the strategic
development division of the Company. From February 2016 to February 2020,
he served as the deputy head (person in charge) of the strategic development
division of the Company. From August 2016 to February 2018, he concurrently
served as the deputy head of general office of the Company. From February
2018 to March 2021, he served as the employee supervisor of the Company.
Since February 2020, he has served as the head of the strategic development
division of the Company. Since December 2023, he has been the secretary
to the Board of the Company. From March 2016 to April 2024, he was the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Zhengzhou Suda Industry Machinery
Service Co., Ltd. Since April 2024, he has been a director of Zhengzhou Suda
Industry Machinery Service Co., Ltd.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Yichen held 87,000 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.006% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.005% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Qiu Quan (BB &), was born in October 1977 in Yudu City, Jiangxi. He is
a Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA) and Senior International
Financial Manager (SIFM). He graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance
and Economics Jiujiang Branch (7T 75 B/ 4% 285 17T 2 F5e) with a major in
Financial Accounting in July 1998, and Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics (/& B 4% K £2) with a master’s degree in business administration
in January 2010. Since 1998, he was engaged in financial related work at
companies such as Geshang Jewelry (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd., Delphi Parker
Electrical Systems Co., Ltd., Daigo China Co., Ltd., Tyco Electronics (Kunshan)
Co., Ltd., and Fiat Chrysler Asia Pacific Investment Co., Ltd. From November
2018 to August 2022, he served as the Vice President of Finance for the Asia
Pacific region at Jost Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. From August 2022 to October
2023, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of Marelli (China) Co., Ltd. in the
China region. From November 2023 to March 2024, he served as the Group
Chief Financial Officer of Aurora Bay Power Company. In April 2024, he joined
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., and served as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since 1 July 2024 to date.

Company Secretaries

Mr. Zhang Yichen is the joint company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (BR#E2E), aged 49, is the joint company secretary.
Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited. She has over 20 years of professional experience in handling
the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters for listed
companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally well-
known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan holds
a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. She is
also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential to the development of the Group and can safeguard and
enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the requirements in
the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Culture

Corporate culture is of paramount importance to the Company. During the
Review Period, the Company re-examined its vision, mission and values
based on the development philosophy of “Technology Changes the World,
Intelligence Leads the Future”, and determined the mission of “Driving the
Future with Intelligence, Creating and Leading a Better Life”, the vision of
“Becoming a Leading and Sustainable Intelligent Industrial Solution Provider”,
and the corporate values of “Facing the Future, Transformation and Innovation,
Openness and Collaboration, Pursuing Excellence”. The Company has always
practiced the corporate culture in the process of business development and
continued to build and consolidate the corporate culture.

For details on the Company's corporate culture practices, please refer to the
Group's 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four Board committees, namely,
the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee. These Board committees are assigned respective
responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors five days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in
case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone
or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener explains at the
meeting. A written notice of meeting shall at least include the business to be
considered and the meeting information as necessary for the Directors to vote.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is concluded. The participating Directors shall
sign the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorise them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.

EFEHAAERITEXERRE  ZBEZLBEN
A

HE RARF AR BN EEERBER R ER

o M KEFREFLRENEEABNEIIRFERE
R

o IR REERANREETAEREEIRTE A HENK
RRER

o HITE BRI MEREEREENRTEIRERTF

fi(wmE) &

o RIARBEBTEEE AT
#&WE’]BZE% o

e A A A
EETeH

EXeeFELAMANRERESH  ROBF—R &
RAREEEE A*Emﬁﬁ DERNFEEENES
BEHE &LL%%LﬂHTﬁﬁ/A EHRERS
EHEH  BRERGFAATHRANEmBNZBES
ﬁ%% BHEFERFER  BRERTCHILAE
MBANEREENES - FRAES  FEBRARE=S
SR EEMN - A ABREBE Eiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁtﬁﬁ
SHBM - BEAKARESHELIELFHRA - EHERE
HOABREZLBRERESANEANESERRMVEANS
BIMHERR

WIS RERARF

PN

EXHBEREEERABZTEMSI RN EBREBEE
o ﬂtﬁ§¥TEZI§5E§§fTﬁf§§éEﬁ§ SRR MES
TTRERORME -

EFEYRERE  EFRAERBRALBESHLEN
VREREERELLRES  VRHEFRESR
BEERANERELH LA - BEEFEERKEARA
MEFRERALFERNETH SR CHERELEE
TRFHER EFHIHRCHIRBACHEETIRER
0 IAERFRELSEGN - K2R - BENER
BEERMIWSE - Al ABRAFER -



Corporate Governance Report

TEERB|E

Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board convened 8 meetings in total, one on each
of 28 March 2024, 26 April 2024, 7 May 2024, 1 July 2024, 28 August 2024,
14 Qctober 2024, 28 October 2024 and 13 December 2024.

Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as

follows:

Name of Directors
L

Mr. Jiao Chengyao
Mr. Jia Hao
Mr. Fu Zugang
(resignation effective from 9 January 2025)
Mr. Meng Hechao
Mr. Li Kaishun
Mr. Cui Kai
Mr. Yue Taiyu
(resignation effective from 9 January 2025)
Mr. Cheng Jinglei
Mr. Ji Feng
Mr. Fang Yuan
Ms. Yao Yangiu
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Board of Directors (Continued)

General Meeting

During the reporting period, the Company convened a total of one general
meeting, which was attended by all of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as
follows:

Name of Directors

E=fR

Mr. Jiao Chengyao
Mr. Jia Hao
Mr. Fu Zugang
(resignation effective from 9 January 2025)
Mr. Meng Hechao
Mr. Li Kaishun
Mr. Cui Kai
Mr. Yue Taiyu
(resignation effective from 9 January 2025)
Mr. Cheng Jinglei
Mr. JiFeng
Mr. Fang Yuan
Ms. Yao Yanqiu

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, the Board consisted of eleven Directors, comprising
five executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. One-third or more of the members of the Board of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors.

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors possess extensive
experience in equipment manufacturing industry, and the independent
non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications in law and
accounting as well as financial management expertise. In accordance with the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in
all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period, the members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao (Vice Chairman),
Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Meng Hechao and Mr. Li Kaishun.

Non-executive Directors: Mr. Cui Kai, Mr. Yue Taiyu.

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Cheng Jinglei, Mr. Ji Feng, Mr. Fang
Yuan and Ms. Yao Yangiu.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao (Vice Chairman),
Mr. Meng Hechao and Mr. Li Kaishun.

Non-executive Director: Mr. Cui Kai.

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Cheng Jinglei, Mr. Ji Feng, Mr. Fang
Yuan and Ms. Yao Yanqiu.

The biographies of all the current Directors are set out in the “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board of the Company has, at all times, complied with the requirements
under the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors (accounting for more than one-third of the number of
Directors), one of whom shall possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management knowledge.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the
Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The Company recognises that the independence of the Board is pivotal in good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. The Board has established
a mechanism to ensure that the Board has access to independent views
and opinions, including but not limited to the ability of the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense upon reasonable request; and the Board and individual Directors should
have their own access to the Company’s senior management for the purpose
of accessing information and making enquiries about the Company. The Board
reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the relevant mechanism each
year.

During the reporting period, the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations, the Company’s
Articles of Association, the relevant rules of procedure and the provisions of
the Company’s independent Director system, adhered to the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors, performed supervisory functions,
participated in the making of various major decisions and the review of
regular reports, financial reports and related-party transactions, and played an
important role in the Company’s standardized operation, thereby safeguarding
the legitimate rights and interests of minority shareholders.
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Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.

Directors
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
elected or replaced at the shareholders’ general meeting and can be removed
from their office prior to the expiry of their term by the general meeting, with a
term of 3 years. At the expiry of such term of office, the term is renewable upon
re-election.

Employee representatives in the Board shall be elected or removed at employee
representatives’ general meetings, employees’ general meetings or other
demaocratic elections.

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.
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Directors (Continued)
Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.

The Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be
improved and updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the
Directors by seminars and provision of training information.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all the Directors during the
Reporting Period, namely Mr. JIAO Chengyao, Mr. JIA Hao, Mr. FU Zugang,
Mr. MENG Hechao, Mr. LI Kaishun, Mr. CUI Kai, Mr. YUE Taiyu, Mr. CHENG
Jinglei, Mr. JI Feng, Mr. FANG Yuan and Ms. YAO Yanqiu, had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.

Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 10 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018 and from 18 July 2018
to 17 July 2019. At the annual general meeting held on 20 June 2019, the
Company resolved to take out a Liability Insurance plan at a total premium of
not more than US$10 million, the Liability Insurance covered the periods from
18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020, from 18 July 2020 to 17 July 2021 and from
18 July 2021 to 17 July 2022. At the annual general meeting held on 30 May
2022, the Company resolved to take out a Liability Insurance plan at a total
premium of not more than US$10 million, the Liability Insurance covered the
period from 18 July 2022 to 17 July 2023, from 18 July 2023 to 17 July 2024
and from 18 July 2024 to 17 July 2025.
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Directors (Continued)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Gode”) set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, who have confirmed
their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle
of combining incentives and disciplines, and market-oriented adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph D.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, the Board has established a
risk management and internal control system, and has continuously supervised
and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s operation. The system is
aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient operation, and
offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial reports and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding the
Group’s assets, to the extent of only reasonable, rather than absolute, assurances
against material misrepresentation or 10ss.

Structure of Risk Management and Internal Control
Functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organisational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the management of the
Company, the Audit and Legal Department, the Risk Management Department
and various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance of
the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and
makes recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit and Legal
Department and the Risk Management Department of the Company conducts
internal audit and supervision for risk management, and is responsible to the
management of the Company. As the first line of defence in risk management
and internal control, various departments of the Company organise and carry out
the daily work in risk management and accept the organisation, coordination,
guidance and supervision by the management, the Audit and Legal Department
and the Risk Management Department of the Company in doing their part of risk
management and internal control in their respective professional areas.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Commencement of Risk Management Work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system and
internal control structure. During the Review Period, based on the methodology
of risk management covering risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganised and identified the
possible risks from different aspects, such as strategy, operation, finance,
market, law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database that was
unique to the Company.

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with.
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.

The Risk Management Department of the Company is responsible for internal
audit in risk management. By organising and commencing the supervision
and assessment of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company
continuously monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes
in risks in the course of operation and management of each responsible
department for risks, supervises and assesses whether each department is
able to commence risk management work in accordance with the relevant
regulations and the results of the work, and makes recommendations on
improving the effectiveness of implementing risk management work.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Operation of the Internal Control System

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterised by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 28 March 2025. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2024 indicated no control failure
for major risks in the Company and revealed no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.
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Board Committees

During the Review Period, the Board has set up four committees, namely,
the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code. These Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference. The composition and main functions of these committees and their
work during the Review Period are set out as follows:

Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy and
Sustainable Development Committee comprised executive Director Mr. Jiao
Chengyao (Chairman), executive Director Mr. Jia Hao and independent non-
executive Director Mr. Cheng Jinglei.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy and Sustainable Development
Committee are:

()  to study the long-term development strategies and key investment
decisions of the Company and table proposals;

(i)  to study and table proposals on major investment and financing plans that
are required to be approved by the Board of Directors under the “Articles
of Association”;

(i) to study and table proposals on major capital operation and asset
management projects that are required to be approved by the Board of

Directors under the “Articles of Association”;

(iv) to study and table proposals on other major matters affecting the
development of the Company;

(v)  to conduct inspections on the implementation of the above matters;

(vi) to study and table proposals on the Company’s sustainable development
strategies, plans and programmes, and to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities regarding sustainable development management; and

(vii) exercising other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

The Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee did not convene any
meeting during the year.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee comprised independent non-executive Director Mr.
Ji Feng (Chairman), non-executive Director Mr. Cui Kai and independent non-
executive Director Ms. Yao Yangiu. The Audit and Risk Management Committee is
chaired by an independent non-executive Director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are
to review and supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing work,
including:

(i)  proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors;

(i) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports
and accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding
financial reporting as stated in financial statements and reports;

(i) coordinating the communication between our internal Audit Department
and the independent auditors;

(iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure of such
information;

(v) reviewing the Company’s internal control system and auditing on the
material connected or related party transactions;

(vi) reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems and to evaluate whether there is material failure or
weakness in the risk management and internal control of the Company;

(vii) discussing the risk management and internal control system with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to

establish such effective systems;

(vii

=

researching on major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters and the management’s response to these findings
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative;

(ix) evaluating the changes in the nature and extent of significance of the
material risks the Company faces after the previous year and its ability
to respond to the changes in the business and the changes in external
environment; and

(X)  exercising other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Audit and Risk Management Committee convened
six meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 25 March 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
sixth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2024, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on 2023 Audited Domestic and
Overseas Financial Report of the Company, the Proposal on 2023 Annual
Report and Summary of the Company, the Proposal on the 2023 Report
on Internal Control Assessment of the Company, the Proposal on the 2023
Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee of the Board of the Company, the Proposal on the 2023 Report
on the Performance of Supervision Responsibilities by Accounting Firms of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of the Company,
the Proposal on the Provision for Impairment of assets and Changes in
fair value of trading financial assets for the Year 2023, the Proposal on
Formulating the System for Selecting and Hiring Accounting Firms for the
Company;

(2)  On 25 April 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
sixth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2024, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2024 First Quarterly Report
of the Company;

(3) On 7 May 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
sixth session of the Board convened its third meeting in 2024, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the Appointment of External
Audit Institution and Internal Control Audit Institution for 2024;

(4)  On 28 June 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
sixth session of the Board convened its fourth meeting in 2024, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on Appointing the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company;

(5) On 24 August 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
sixth session of the Board convened its fifth meeting in 2024, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on 2024 Interim Report of the
Company;

(6) On 27 October 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
sixth session of the Board convened its sixth meeting in 2024, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2024 Third Quarterly Report
of the Company;

In addition to the aforementioned meetings, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee also heard reports from the audit firms of the Company on 2024
audit work plans on 25 October 2024,
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised independent non-executive Director Ms. Yao Yangiu (Chairwoman),
executive Director Mr. Jia Hao and independent non-executive Director Mr.
Cheng Jinglei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-
executive Director and is composed of a majority of independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to:
() advise on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the
position of the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding

structure;

(i) formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the
Company’s Directors and management personnel;

(iiiy  search for qualified candidates of Directors and management personnel;

(iv) review the qualifications and other credentials of the candidates of
Directors and management personnel;

(v) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(vi) make recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the
Company’s Directors; and

(vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting,
with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 28 June 2024, the Nomination Committee of the sixth session of
the Board convened its first meeting in 2024, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Appointing the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised independent non-executive Director Mr. Ji
Feng (Chairman), executive Director Mr. Jia Hao and independent non-executive
Director Mr. Fang Yuan. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is
chaired by an independent non-executive Director and is composed of a majority
of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to:

U

(i)

i

(iv)
v)

formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes for
the Company’s Directors and Senior management personnel;

evaluate the performance of the Company’s Directors and Senior
management personnel and assess the appropriate remuneration package
for such Directors and Senior management personnel;

under the authorization of the Board, formulate the remuneration packages
of individual directors and managers and make recommendations to the
Board;

supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and

exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
convened two meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

M

On 27 March 2024, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the sixth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2024, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on the Remuneration packages
for non-independent Directors of the sixth session of the Board of the
Company, the Proposal on the Remuneration packages for independent
Directors of the sixth session of the Board of the Company, the Proposal
on the Remuneration packages for Senior Management of the Company
and the Proposal on the 2024-2026 performance incentive scheme of the
Company.

On 28 June 2024, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the sixth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2024,
where it considered and approved the Proposal on the Proposal on the
Adjustment to the exercise price of the 2019 Share Option Incentive
Scheme, the Proposal on the Adjustment to the repurchase price of the
2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, the Proposal on Reviewing the
Annual Performance Assessment Results of Incentive Objects for the Third
Release of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, the Proposal on
the Repurchase and cancellation of partially Restricted Shares which are
granted but not yet released under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme and the Proposal on Meeting the Unlocking Conditions for the
Third Unlocking Period of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out below:
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Remuneration band A Bl Number of individuals
A
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 07 7T - 1,000,000/ 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T - 1,500,000 7T 5
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001} 7T - 2,500,000 7T 2
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001} 7T - 3,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001} 7T - 3,500,000 7T -
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 3,500,001} 7T - 4,000,000 7T -
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T - 4,500,0003% 7T
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 4,500,001;% 7T - 5,000,0003% 7T 1
Board Diversity Policy BEEESZTILBER
Purpose =1

With a view to achieving sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and maintaining its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.
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Board Diversity Policy (continued)
Measurable Objectives (Continued)

In order to implement the board diversity policy, the following measurable
objectives have been adopted: (i) the Company shall comply with the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the composition of the Board from
time to time; (ii) the number of independent non-executive Directors shall not
be less than three and one-third of the number of Board members; (i) at least
one Director shall possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (iv) at least one female Director.
The Board has achieved such measurable objectives for the year.

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take, steps to promote
diversity in its workforce at all levels. All qualified employees shall have access
to equal employment, training and career development opportunities without
discrimination. During the year, female employees accounted for 24.59% of
the total number of employees (including senior management) of the Company.
During the year, the training rate, average number of training hours and
employee turnover rate by gender are as follows:

Indicator

EE

Training rate I =R
Male St

Female gk

Average number of training hours $E TR
Male St

Female gk
Employee turnover rate BIRKLEZE
Male St

Female gk
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In order to promote the diversification of the Company’s management and
employees, the Company will give due consideration to increasing the proportion
of female members when selecting and recruiting employees. The Group is not
aware of any factors and conditions that would render gender diversity for all
employees (including senior management) more challenging or irrelevant.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively.

During the Review Period, the international auditor of the Company has been
changed from PricewaterhouseCoopers to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 May 2024 and 17 May
2024, respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 13 May 2024
respectively for details. Save as disclosed above, there is no change to the
auditors of the Company for the last three years.

Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 are as follows:
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Company Secretaries

The joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Zhang Yichen (“Mr.
Zhang”) and Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”). Mr. Zhang also acts as the
Board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the Company and has
knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs. Ms. Chan’s primary contact
within the Company is Mr. Zhang.

Pursuant to Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules, a listed issuer must appoint a
company secretary who satisfies the requirements under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules. Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules provides that a listed issuer must
appoint as its company secretary an individual who, in the opinion of the Stock
Exchange, is capable of discharging the functions of company secretary of
the listed issuer by virtue of his/her academic or professional qualifications or
relevant experience. Mr. Zhang currently does not possess the qualifications and
relevant experience as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. However,
given his experience in information disclosure, investor relations management
and corporate governance, coupled with his rich industry experience and
familiarity with the Company’s business operations, the Company has applied
to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted on 11 January
2024, a waiver (the “Waiver”) from strict compliance with the requirements
under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules for a period of three years
from the date of appointment of Mr. Zhang as a joint company secretary of the
Company (the “Waiver Period”), on the following conditions:

1. during the Waiver Period, Mr. Zhang will be assisted by another joint
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Chan, who serves as the other
joint company secretary of the Company and could fully comply with the
requirements set out in Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, in the performance
of his functions as a joint company secretary. The Waiver may be revoked
immediately if and when Ms. Chan ceases to provide assistance to Mr.
Zhang. The Stock Exchange may revoke or modify the Waiver if the
Company'’s situation changes; and

2. the Waiver could be revoked if there is a material breach of the Listing
Rules by the Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information. The
Company formulated the “Investor Relations Management System of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd.”, which clarifies the communication
methods of shareholders and the organisation and implementation of investor
relations activities.

Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the website of the Company
(http://www.zmj.com). The means of communication between the Company and
the shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or seminars,
one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media interviews
and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

The Company publishes its solutions and products, market expansion
information and updates on its official website, so that investors can keep
abreast of the Company’s latest developments. At the same time, in order to
promote the communication between the Company and investors, the Company
will report the annual operating conditions and financial data and answer the
questions of investors and analysts in the form of results presentations. The
Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event of the
Company during the year, and the Directors and key senior management try
their best to attend and communicate with investors.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
investor relations policies. Taking into account the implementation of diversified
communication channels and participation channels, the Board believes that the
Company has properly implemented effective investor relations policies for the
year ended 31 December 2024,
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Investors’ Rights

According to the “Articles of Association”, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for over 90 consecutive days shall have
the right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Board and the Board of Supervisors to convene a meeting as
required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company, and any sum
so compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the Company to the
defaulting Directors.

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit a temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.
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Investors’ Rights (continued)

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations department of the Company:

Strategic Development and Investment Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited

Address: No. 167, 9th Street,
Zhengzhou Section (Econ-Tech Development Zone) of
China (He'nan) Pilot Free Trade Zone, PRC
Telephone: (86 371) 6789 1199
Fax: (86 371) 6789 1000
Postal Code: 450016

Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the Review Period, the Articles of Association of the Company has not
been revised.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth (the “Dividend Policy”).

In accordance with the “Articles of Association”, the Dividend Policy is as
follows:

()  Profit distribution of the Company shall reflect reasonable investment
returns to the investors and, by giving considerations to the reasonable
capital demands of the Company, work out a profit distribution plan in
conformity with the sustainable development requirement and profit
optimisation principle of the Company by referring to factors such as the
size of share capital, development strategies, investment plans, profit
growth and cash flows.

() The Company may pay dividends in the form of cash or shares and may
conduct interim dividend distribution in the form of cash. If the cash flow
allows, profit distribution should be conducted in the form of cash dividend.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

()

The conditions of cash dividend of the Company: when the Company
records a profit for the year and the cumulative undistributed profit for the
year, after making up for losses in previous years and allocation to the
common reserve fund in accordance with laws, is positive in value, and
where the auditing firm issues an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
report of the Company for the year, the Company may prioritise distribution
of dividend in cash. If the Company distributes dividend in cash, it shall
follow the rules below:

1. If the Company is in a mature development stage without significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 80%;

2. If the Company is in a mature development stage with significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 40%;

3. If the Company is in a growth stage with significant capital
expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend in profit
distribution shall be 20%.

If it is difficult to determine the Company’s stage of development while
it has a significant capital expenditure plan, the profit distribution may
be dealt with pursuant to the rules applied in the previous distribution.
Major investment or significant cash expenditure refers to the proposed
external investment by the Company within the next twelve months,
asset acquisition (including land use rights) or facilities procurement with
accumulated expenditure amounting to or exceeding 10% of the latest
audited net assets of the Company.

Specific conditions for share dividend distribution: provided that the
Company’s business is in a sound condition and the reasonable scale
of share capital of the Company is ensured, and when the Board of the
Company believes the share dividend distribution will be in the interests of
all shareholders of the Company, the Company may propose to distribute
the share dividend and implement upon the consideration and approval at
the general meeting.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

)

(Vi)

(v

The profits of the Company to be distributed shall not go beyond the scope
of cumulative distributable profits.

When profits are recorded in the current year and after the Company has
sufficiently allocated to the statutory reserve fund, the cumulative profits
distributed in cash for the last three years shall not be less than 30% of
the average distributable profits realised for the last three years.

Where there is a change in the Company’s control resulting from securities
issuance, material asset reorganisation, merger, division or acquisition,
the Company shall disclose in details the cash dividend policy and relevant
arrangements after such offering, issuance, reorganisation or change in
the control, as well as the Board’s explanation of the aforesaid, in the
prospectus, offering proposal, material asset reorganisation report, report
of change of interest or acquisition report.

(VIll) On the premise that the returns to shareholders has been thoroughly

considered and the legitimate rights and interests of the public
shareholders are guaranteed, if the Company realises profits at the current
year, the Board of Directors shall bring forward scientific and reasonable
profit distribution suggestions and proposal and submit them to the
shareholders’ general meeting for voting. The Company shall practically
secure the right of public shareholders to attend the shareholders’
general meeting; and the Board of Directors, independent Directors and
shareholders meeting certain conditions may solicit the right to vote at the
shareholders’ general meeting from shareholders of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the
Company:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall devise a reasonable
dividend distribution recommendation and proposal based on the
profitability, capital requirements and shareholders’ returns plan of
the Company and implement after the consideration and approval
at the general meeting upon the consideration and approval by the
Board. Any adjustment thereof shall go through the procedures above
again. The independent Directors of the Company shall examine the
profit distribution proposal and issue independent opinions thereon;
independent Directors may solicit opinions of minority shareholders,
prepare a dividend distribution proposal and submit it directly to the
Board for consideration.

The Company shall strictly implement its cash dividend policy as
determined in the Articles of Association and the specific cash
dividend proposal as considered and approved at the general
meeting. If the Company needs to adjust or change the cash dividend
policy as determined in the Articles of Association, it is required to
satisfy the conditions under the Articles of Association and execute
appropriate decision-making procedures after substantiation. The
adjustment or changes shall be passed by shareholders representing
not less than two-thirds of voting rights held by all shareholders
present at the meeting; the independent Directors shall give
explicit opinion on matters such as the truthfulness, adequacy
and reasonableness of the reasons for adjustments and changes,
truthfulness and validity of the approval procedures as well as its
compliance with the conditions required in the Articles of Association,
and communicate and exchange ideas with minority shareholders
before the general meeting and give timely reply to issues that
concern minority shareholders. Independent Directors may collect
opinions from shareholders through the online voting system, if
necessary.

Specific conditions for the Company to adjust the cash dividend
policy: (1) the Company suffers from losses or has issued a loss
warning announcement; (2) the balance of cash, excluding cash
raised from capital markets and cash within special funding for
special purposes or special account management funding such as
government special financial funds (including bank deposits and
bonds with high liquidity), is not sufficient to pay the cash dividends
within two months from the date of general meeting approving the
profit distribution; (3) execution of the established dividend policy
will render it impossible for the material investment projects and
material transactions approved by the general meeting or the Board
to be implemented according to established transaction plans; (4)
the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that execution of the
established dividend policy will have a material adverse impact on the
continuing operation and profitability of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(X)  Mechanism for supervision and restraint on cash dividend

1.

The Board of Supervisors shall supervise the implementation of the
Company’s dividend distribution policy and shareholders’ returns
plan by the Board and the management, and the decision-making
procedures thereof;

The Board and the general meeting of the Company shall, in the
decision-making and substantiation process in respect of the
profit distribution policy, fully consider the opinions of independent
Directors and minority shareholders. When considering the specific
plan on cash dividend distribution in the general meeting, active
communication and exchange with shareholders, especially minority
shareholders, shall be conducted via different channels, including but
not limited to telephone, facsimile, e-mails, letters and the Internet,
to thoroughly listen to the views and needs of minority shareholders,
and reply to questions concerned by minority shareholders shall also
be made in a timely manner;

If profit is recorded but the Board of the Company does not put
forth a cash dividend distribution proposal, reasons therefor and
the capital retained by the Company that may otherwise be used as
dividends shall be disclosed in its periodic report, and independent
non-executive Directors shall express explicit independent opinions
thereon;

The Company shall fully disclose the formulation and execution
of the cash distribution policy in its periodic reports. The report
shall explain: whether the profit distribution is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association or with the general meeting
resolution; whether the standard and proportion of profit distribution
is precise and clear; whether the decision-making procedures and
mechanisms are adequate; whether the independent Directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities and played their role; whether
the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their
views and needs; whether the legitimate rights and interests of
minority shareholders are fully protected and so forth. In the event
that adjustment or change of the cash distribution policy is carried
out, full explanation shall also be given as to whether the conditions
and procedures for the adjustment or change are compliant and
transparent.
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Board of Supervisors
Composition of the Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed of
three members, two of whom were nominated by the shareholders and one was
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three
years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period and the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board of Supervisors were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong
and Ms. Zhu Yuan.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under
the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the financial affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who
have violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for remedy in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by the Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
“Company Law”;
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TEERBE

Board of Supervisors (Continued)
Duties of the Board of Supervisors (Continued)

e proposing motions to general meetings;

e liaising with the Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal
proceedings against the Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the “Company Law”;

e incase of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at
the expense of the Company;

e reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation
report and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the
general meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a
certified public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such
documents if a suspicious item is identified;

e exercising other duties and powers specified in the “Articles of Association”.
During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held seven meetings in total.

Details of the meeting of the Board of Supervisors are set out under the section
“Report of the Board of Supervisors” of this annual report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEOHRES

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Financial, Business, and Family Relationships among
Directors, Supervisors, and Senior Management

Except as disclosed herein, there are no relationships, including financial,
business, family or other material relationships, among the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that had a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where it operates. The Group actively gives back
to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to striving for good
performance, with an aim to foster credibility and build a good corporate image.
Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and strives
to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources, reduces wastage, and advocates water and electricity conservation.

For details of the Company’s environmental policies and performance, please
refer to the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group.

Business Review

Please refer to the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. The sections of Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this Report of
the Board of Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the financial
position of the Group as at that date are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements on pages 117 to 283 of this annual report.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

A relevant resolution was passed at a meeting of the Board held on 28 March
2025, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Dividend”)
of RMB11.20 (tax inclusive) per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December
2024, Based on the 1,746,481,400 shares representing the Company’s
total share capital of 1,785,399,930 shares as at 28 March 2025 less the
38,918,530 treasury shares in the A-share repurchase dedicated securities
account, the total proposed dividend is RMB1,956,059,168.00 (including
tax), representing 49.72% of the net profit attributable to shareholders of the
listed company for 2024. If the profit distribution proposal is approved by the
Shareholders at the 2024 Annual General Meeting (“2024 AGM”), the final
dividend on H shares of the Company will be payable on or before 18 July 2025.
The date of the 2024 AGM and related arrangements will be announced in due
course.

Pursuant to the Rules for Share Repurchase of Listed Companies ({_=T
NEIRRDEBEFR Y ) and other relevant regulations, shares held in the
designated repurchase account of a listed company do not have the right to
profit distribution. If during the period from the date this profit distribution plan is
considered and approved by the Board to the record date for the implementation
of profit distribution, there is any change in the Company’s total share capital
due to share repurchase/repurchase and cancellation of shares granted under
equity incentive, etc., or that part of the shares do not participate in this profit
distribution for some reasons, such as share repurchase, the total distribution
amount will be adjusted based on the total share capital of the Company as at
the record date for the implementation of profit distribution in the future, less the
shares held in the designated repurchase account, and on the principle that the
amount of distribution per share remains unchanged. Details of the adjustment
will be announced separately by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any Dividend.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (F#E A R £ FNE
EEPTSFSE) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax
rate of the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares
registered under the name of a non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares
registered under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or
trustees, or other organisations and entities, shall be deemed as shares held
by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined under the “EIT Law”). The
Company will distribute the final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise
shareholders subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and
paid by the Company on their behalf.
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Results and Dividends (continued)

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC and whose
name appears on the Company’s H Share register of members should deliver
a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited in
due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10% enterprise income
tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 ( € [E8 7 B % 3£ [1993]04555 S 14
EE1E 12 BB APTSTEE REAEED ) (the “Notice”) issued by the
State Taxation Administration on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed
by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise, which has issued shares in
Hong Kong, to overseas resident individual shareholders is subject to individual
income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates for respective
overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending on the relevant
tax agreements between the countries of their residence and Mainland China.
Accordingly, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from the final Dividend
upon such Dividend payment to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose
names appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the
record date, unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation
agreements or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identity of shareholders or any disputes over the
mechanism of withholding.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income tax rate of lower
than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the competent tax
authorities of the Company for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty
or may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent
tax authorities, the paid tax amount in excess of the tax payable based on the
tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Northbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of A Shares of the Company.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of
the Company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound
Trading”), the Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of
“Cash Dividends of H Shares for the Southbound Trading” ( €% &R HAS A%
IR S AL F)R B 5% ) ) with China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited, pursuant to which, China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited or its branches, as the nominal investors of H
Shares for the Southbound Trading, will receive cash dividends distributed by
the Company and distribute the cash dividends to relevant investors of H Shares
of the Southbound Trading through its depository and clearing system.

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the “Notice on
the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect” (Cai Shui No. [2014]81) (BN JEBIREZE M5 5 G Bt
B mik SR A AN U ECR R mAn) (B154[2014]815%) ) and the
“Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect” (Cai Shui No. [2016]127) ({BAR R BIRET
BRSEHEBEEHHREEBATNBEROBE) (15[2016]127
g%=Y), for dividends received by domestic individual investors from investing in
H Shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the companies
of such H Shares shall withhold individual income tax at the rate of 20% on
behalf of the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment
funds from investing in shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that for individual investors. The
companies of such H Shares will not withhold the income tax of dividends for
domestic enterprise investors and such investors shall report and pay relevant
tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. Save as described in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the update on the use of proceeds
and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in relation to the proposed change
to the use of proceeds from H Share offering, the use of proceeds was in line
with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of the Company.

As of 31 December 2021, all the proceeds raised from H Share offering have
been used up.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 49 to the financial statements, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2024, the reserves of the Company available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie amounted to approximately
RMB13,649,458,000 (2023: RMB11,234,396,000).

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2024, details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the “Articles of Association”
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Donations

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made charitable and other
donations of a total amount of RMB787,445.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 284 of this annual report.

2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved by
shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, The First
A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and The First H Shareholders Class
Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the Share
Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of options to
the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company. Under the
plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain performance
standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the board’s discretion and
no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits.
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has provided Nil (For
2023: RMB1,326,000) in respect of these options as share-based payment
expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 4,332,960 shares were exercised
under the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme. Exercisable shares at the year
end of 2024 are Nil (2023: 4,332,960).

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date on
which the options were exercised was RMB12.51 and RMB12.71 respectively.
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise was RMB12.55 (2023: RMB11.50).

As of 31 December 2024, there were no outstanding options under the Share
Option Incentive Scheme.

The following table discloses movement of the Company’s share options held by
the Group’s directors and employees during the year:
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Forfeited during the year RERZUL = (676,640)
As at 31 December 712 A31H - 4,332,960

2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a restricted
share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a total number
of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted to the selected 186
employees (including directors) of the Group (the “Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the date of
the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares to the date when
all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are unlocked or repurchased
and cancelled.
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2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (Continued)

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to the
Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant and the
unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled to acquire
the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted shares after the
lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to the fulfilment of the
relevant conditions under the Scheme.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price of RMB5.88
per A share under the Scheme, and the amount of RMB248,724,000 cash
received from the Participants was recorded as trade and other payables. In
2023 and 2024, upon the first unlocking period and second unlocking period
due, except for some forfeited shares which were repurchased, the related
repurchase liabilities for these unlocked shares were derecognized. As at 31
December 2024, the remaining balance of repurchase liability was Nil (2023:
RMB52,427,000) recorded in trade and other payables (Note 32).

In 2024, the Company has provided RMB6,923,000 (2023: RMB24,464,000) as
share-based payment expenses in respect of these restricted shares.

Upon expiry of the Lock-up Period, the Company shall proceed with unlocking
for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and the restricted
shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the Unlocking Conditions shall
be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.

The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares and
unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme are set out
in the table below:
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Arrangement of Unlocking

Unlocking Period Unlocking duration percentage

EBRPREHA 2 Bk 1% B PR £ I 2 1% B PR 5 EE 5

First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date of Grant to 40%
the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of Grant

B — IR FRBRIR & EA ARTHEREAZHEERZZ BREERTAEUEA AN KE —EZZFHERLE

Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of Grant to 30%
the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of Grant

FEIRERIRER ARTHEUEAZHEERZ S BREER T AEGEAANKE —EZXZHERIE

Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of Grant to 30%

the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of Grant

BT REGEARNEERS HEERTHESEARNNKR —EAXZEE AL
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2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (Continued)

The evaluation period for unlocking the restricted shares under the Scheme
shall be from 2022-2024 and the evaluation shall be conducted annually.
The performance evaluation for each Unlocking Period includes performance
evaluation requirements for the Company and individual performance evaluation
requirement for the Participants.

The movement of restricted shares during the year is listed below:

2021 F PR &I R Z B 8l (o)

ZE BB TR IR E R IR S M B A202E S
20044 - FHEISEERTT - SMRIBERNLBEERE
FEATEBERE LR SBE S EAAERERERMR
B IR S A o

PR B MEACR N F AR BB INT

Number of restricted shares

PREIMERZEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Opening balance as at 1 January 1 A1 B E 94 11,214,000 24,648,000
Unlocked during the year RERERRR (10,872,000) (11,706,000
Forfeited during the year RERZUL (342,000) (1,728,000)
As at 31 December 712 A31H - 11,214,000

Major Suppliers and Customers FEHRERREF

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 22.86% of the
Group’s total sales, less than 30%, while the sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 6.95% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 14.30% of the
Group’s total purchases, less than 30%, while the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 7.30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, except for Henan State-owned Capital
Operation Group Co., Ltd. (which is a substantial shareholder that interested
in more than 5% of the issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) of the
Company), none of the Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders
who were interested in more than 5% of the issued share capital (excluding
treasury shares) of the Company has any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains ongoing and steady relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

REZE2024F12831H EFE - AEBRAREFE(LH
ERREE AL E A EEE422.86% @ DF30% © MAE
B S AR PGSR AN S E 42 5 50496.95% ©

REZE2024F12A3 B IEFE  AEERRHEERE
(B B RN AN B AR R R 4914.30% + D HA30% i
AEEFAHERERRBREIG A EELRERELY
7.30% o

BEEMA RWIEEAENELRBERAR(ER
BHEBBARAEEHTRA(TBREEFRD) Z5%H)
TERR) 25 BEEAES REZBHEASNER
HBEARREBEITEA(TEEEFRN) Z5%HER
BRRAEENTREF M AR R EET A E#2

= °

AEBBEEEFREER - ERSERERTEROM
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Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2024, details of movements in property,
plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed Securities
of the Company

In January 2024, pursuant to the 2019 A share option incentive scheme (“2019
Share Option Incentive Scheme”), the Company processed the exercise of
share options and the related registration procedures of the exercised share
options for 280 participants and issued 4,128,960 A shares at an exercise
price of RMB4.5901 per A share with a total consideration for the exercise of
the option of RMB18,952,339.31. Registration for the exercise was completed
at the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited on 17 January 2024. Please refer to the announcement and the Next
Day Disclosure Return dated 18 January 2024 of the Company for details.

In July 2024, pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme, the
Company processed the exercise of share options and the related registration
procedures of the exercised share options for 3 participants and issued
204,000 A shares at an exercise price of RMB3.7501 per A share with a total
consideration for the exercise of the option of RMB765,020.40. Registration
for the exercise was completed at the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on 15 July 2024. Please refer to
the announcement and the Next Day Disclosure Return dated 16 July 2024 of
the Company for detalils.

In September 2024, the Company repurchased 342,000 Restricted A Shares
from 13 participants under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme at the
highest price of RMB4.35697 per A Share and the lowest price of RMB3.3851
per A Share, for a total consideration for the repurchase of RMB1,414,934.46,
and completed the repurchase and cancellation procedures at the Shanghai
Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on 15
September 2024. Please refer to the announcement dated 12 September 2024
and the Next Day Disclosure Return dated 20 September 2024 of the Company
for details.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its other subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including
the sale of treasury shares) during the Review Period. As of 31 December 2024,
the Company did not hold any treasury shares.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreement in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.
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Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions under relevant accounting standards,
please refer to note 41 of this report. The Company confirms that the related
party transactions do not fall within the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions - the
Commodities and Services Transactions with Ansteel
Group

Reference is made to the overseas regulatory announcements of the Company
dated 28 March 2024, 29 March 2023 and 28 March 2022, respectively,
in relation to the projected annual ordinary connected transactions of the
Company, and the circulars of the Company for the 2023 Annual General
Meeting and the 2022 Annual General Meeting dated 13 May 2024 and 26
April 2023, respectively (collectively the “Announcements and Circulars”),
which disclose the transactions of the Group in respect of the purchase of
commodities and receipt of services from Ansteel Group for the years from
2022 to 2024 and the transactions of Ansteel Group in respect of the purchase
of commodities from the Group for the year 2024. The Group purchased steel
products such as steel plates and coils and industrial gases such as liquid
oxygen and liquid argon and receives steel transportation services from Ansteel
Group; and Ansteel Group purchased steel products such as continuous casting
billets from the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, the actual amounts
incurred by the Group for the purchase of commodities and receipt of services
from Ansteel Group were RMB2,551,947,500, RMB2,641,595,200 and
RMB2,053,879,000, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
actual amount of purchase of commodities from the Group by Ansteel Group
was RMB89,042,800.

Ansteel Group, which is under direct administration by the Henan Provincial
Government, is an important production base for quality building materials
in Henan Province. The provision of steel materials by Ansteel Group to the
Group will ensure the stable and continuous production of the Group. The sale
of products by the Group to Ansteel Group can further expand the Company’s
sales channels for such products. The Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) consider that the previous continuing connected
transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company and on normal commercial terms, which are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and all shareholders of the Company.

Under the shareholding structure of Ansteel Group, Ansteel Group is a
subsidiary of Henan Capital Group, a substantial Shareholder of the Company,
and therefore constitutes a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Transactions in respect of the Group’s purchases of
commaodities and receipts of services from Ansteel Group and transactions in
respect of Ansteel Group’s purchases of commodities from the Group constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions - the
Commodities and Services Transactions with Ansteel
Group (Continued)

Since the percentage ratio for the transactions of the Group’s purchases of
commodities and receipts of services from Ansteel Group for each of the
years from 2022 to 2024, as calculated under the Listing Rules, are more
than 5%, the transactions of the Group’s purchases of commodities and
receipts of services from Ansteel Group for the years from 2022 to 2024 are
subject to the independent Shareholders’ approval, reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Since the percentage ratio for the transactions of purchase of commodities
from the Group by Ansteel Group for 2024 is more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the transactions of purchase of commodities from the Group by Ansteel
Group for 2024 are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the Company expects that the entering into of the transactions of
commodities and services between the Group and Ansteel Group will occur
on an ongoing basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on 21 March 2025, the Company entered into the Commodities and
Services Framework Agreement with Ansteel Group. The aggregate amount
of commodities purchased and services received by the Group from Ansteel
Group under the Agreement was RMB2,400,000,000, RMB3,000,000,000
and RMB3,000,000,000 for the years ended 31 December 2025, 31
December 2026 and 31 December 2027, respectively, and the total amount
of commodities purchased by Ansteel Group from the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2025, 31 December 2026 and 31 December 2027 were
RMB270,000,000, RMB500,000,000 and RMB500,000,000, respectively.

Connected Transaction Acquisition of Shares in a
Subsidiary

On 14 October 2024, the Company entered into a share transfer agreement
with the transferors of shares of Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control
Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Hengda Intelligent Gontrol”) to acquire from the
transferors of shares of Hengda Intelligent Control an aggregate of 14.4728%
equity interest in Hengda Intelligent Control. Prior to the signing of the share
transfer agreement, the Company held 85.0197% equity interest in Hengda
Intelligent Control. After completion of the transaction, the Company will hold
99.4925% equity interest in Hengda Intelligent Control.
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Connected Transaction Acquisition of Shares in a
Subsidiary (continued)

The consideration for the transfer of shares in the transaction is RMB20.14 per
share. The Company intends to acquire a total of 52,102,209 shares of Hengda
Intelligent Control, for an aggregate consideration of RMB1,049,338,488
(tax inclusive), which will be paid in cash by the Company to the transferors
of shares of Hengda Intelligent Control out of the Company’s own funds.
The specific number of shares to be traded between the Company and the
transferors of shares of Hengda Intelligent Control and the consideration to be
paid are set out below:

BERZ WEKHBARRED @

R S H B 8 R E A A RE20.1470, 1% o AR
AIAETH UL EES2,102, 209 B2 B LR D - X P HEA
T A ARME1,049,338,488 7L (B HI £ 5E) « AR ARILA
EEEeMEEEEROERT ARSI - AARH
BESEROEZEINEEIIBNEBE MBS (THE
(EP S UNNE

Number of Consideration
shares proposed proposed to be paid
No. Name of transferor of shares of Hengda Intelligent Control to be traded by the Company
Fi  EEEEROESELSER KSR BXZROHE AA BRI ATHE
(shares) (RMB)
(B) (AR% )
1 Henan Hongsong Equity Investment Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) 8,700,135 175,220,719
EBMARER EE AR PR (ARERE)
2 Henan Assets Enterprise Transformation and Development Fund (Limited 5,800,090 116,813,813
Partnership)
MEEECHENEREAS (BRER)
3 Wuhu Xinzheng Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) 4,640,072 93,451,050
HNEEREAREE(ERER)
4 Jiaxing Shuntai Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) 4,060,062 81,769,649
RHIERREREEBLE(BRER)
5 Zhongyuan Qianhai Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) 2,900,045 58,406,906
FRAVEREREES(BRE)
6 Jiaxing Rongying Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) 2,900,045 58,406,906
RHEERRERESRBLE(BRER)
7 Zhengzhou Xian’an Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) 7,458,917 150,222,588
EMNELZrEERABEE(BERER)
8 Zhengzhou Xianke Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) 3,813,559 76,805,078
HMERCXEREEBLE(BRER)
9 Zhengzhou Fengheng Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) 4,350,067 87,610,349
HMEEPEEREREE(BRAER)
10 Zhengzhou Qunda Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) 3,332,153 67,109,561
BMEEECXBREBLE(BRER)
11 JIAO Chengyao 580,010 11,681,401
V=
12 JIA Hao 580,010 11,681,401

EEEQﬂ:
B/a
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Connected Transaction Acquisition of Shares in a BERXSZ WEHBARRM @
Subsidiary (Continued)

Number of Consideration
shares proposed proposed to be paid
No. Name of transferor of shares of Hengda Intelligent Control to be traded by the Company
Fi EEEEROEESEE B8 BRXZRGOEE PN SR D E IR
(shares) (RMB)
() (AR¥T)
13 XIONG Xiaoli 464,006 9,345,081
REMERE
14 FU Zugang 464,006 9,345,081
(EENE
15 LIU Qiang 290,005 5,840,701
2138
16 FU Qi 290,005 5,840,701
&
17 ZHANG Haibin 290,005 5,840,701
R
18 HUANG Hua 290,005 5,840,701
=it
19 LI Weiping 290,005 5,840,701
=R
20 LUO Kaicheng 174,002 3,504,400
ZEFIRK
21 HU Wei 87,001 1,752,200
PHAE
22 ZHANG Xingfu 87,001 1,752,200
wER
23 CHANG Yajun 87,001 1,752,200
BLE
24 WANG Junfu 87,001 1,752,200
F&H
25 WANG Jingbo 87,001 1,752,200
TR
Total 52,102,209 1,049,338,488
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Connected Transaction Acquisition of Shares in a
Subsidiary (continued)

The transaction is in line with the actual business development needs of
the Company, and after the completion of the transaction, the proportion
of shares held by the Company in Hengda Intelligent Control will be further
increased, which will be conducive to increasing the Company’s performance
and optimizing and integrating resources in an all-round manner such as the
Company’s internal business, technology, market and capital operation. It will
enhance the Group’s internal business collaborative development capabilities,
promote the continuous high-quality development of Hengda Intelligent Control,
promote the implementation of the Group’s intelligent and digital strategies, and
improve the performance attributable to the Company’s shareholders.

As the transferors of shares of Hengda Intelligent Control include directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company and associates of Henan
Asset Management Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company, the
entering into of the share transfer agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute connected transactions of the Company.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Hong Kong
Listing Rules) in respect of the entering into of the share transfer agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%,
they are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcements dated 14 October 2024 and 4 November
2024 of the Company for details.

Connected Transaction Acquisition of Equity in a
Subsidiary

On 13 December 2024, the Company entered into the equity transfer
agreement with the transferors of equity of ASIMCO (Nanjing) Limited (*ASIMCO
Nanjing”) to acquire a total of 16.6081% of equity in ASIMCO Nanjing from the
transferors of equity of ASIMCO Nanjing. Prior to the entering into of the equity
transfer agreement, the Company held 83.3919% equity interest in ASIMCO
Nanjing. Upon completion of the transaction, the Company will hold 100%
equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing, and ASIMCO Nanjing will become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Connected Transaction Acquisition of Equity in a
Subsidiary (Continued)

The consideration for the equity transfer under the transaction is approximately
RMB2.92476 for every RMB1 in the registered capital. The Company intends to
acquire a total of 16.6081% equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing (corresponding
to RMB238,989,107 in the registered capital of ASIMCO Nanjing), with a total
consideration of RMB698,985,650.96 (tax inclusive), which will be paid in
cash by the Company with its own funds to the transferors of equity of ASIMCO
Nanjing. The specific equity ratio and consideration to be paid between the
Company and transferors of equity of ASIMCO Nanjing are as follows:
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ARZGHREEZHEAT —TaMELAHEY
ARBE292476 THI X HEIE - NAR AT HEIKE T
P R166081% M E (MY EEFHEERAR
#:238,989,107 TR M ER) - KHHEAFTAAR
698,985,650.96 T (EFi &%) « HARAARUERERM
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TR RS AR S LG Mg A E BRI
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Capital Shareholding Consideration
contribution to be  percentage to be to be paid
No. Name of transferor of equity of ASIMCO Nanjing transferred transferred by the Company
Fih @ EHNERREEESER REZEHEE REZERELS XARBRZGEHE
(RMB) (RMB)
(ARMT) (AR¥TT)
1 Zhengzhou Xianming Enterprise Management Partnership 37,717,579 2.6211% 110,314,845.90
(Limited Partnership)
HBMBAGEEREECE(BRAER)
2 Zhengzhou Xinkezhihe No. 1 Enterprise Management 24,941,846 1.7333% 72,948,899.98
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
BN EEETREEBERGRLE(BARERE)
3 Zhengzhou Xinkezhihe No. 2 Enterprise Management 42,572,621 2.9585% 124,514,675.90
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
FMFRESRREPEETRAREE(ARER)
4 Zhengzhou Xinkezhihe No. 3 Enterprise Management 14,512,496 1.0085% 42,445,559.93
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
BMNHIBEE = FOEEEARCE(BAREE)
5 Zhengzhou Xinkezhihe No. 5 Enterprise Management 33,805,477 2.3493% 98,872,888.57
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
BN EEOREEERGRLE(BRERE)
6 Zhengzhou Xinkezhihe No. 6 Enterprise Management 22,284,072 1.5486% 65,175,550.33
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
MR ESERPEETREAREE(ARER)
7 Henan Hongsheng Equity Investment Fund (Limited 13,157,295 0.9143% 38,481,922.99
Partnership)
TERLERREREES(ARER%)
8 Yangzhong Xuzhou Construction Industry Investment 13,157,295 0.9143% 38,481,922.99
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
HRMRIEERESELE(BRAER)
9 Qihui Runjin (Qingdao) Private Equity Investment Fund 13,157,295 0.9143% 38,481,922.99

Partnership (Limited Partnership)
REES(FR)LEREREESABCE(BERER)
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Connected Transaction Acquisition of Equity in a BERS WEHNEBATRKRE®
Subsidiary (continued)
Capital Shareholding Consideration
contribution to be  percentage to be to be paid
No. Name of transferor of equity of ASIMCO Nanjing transferred transferred by the Company
P55 DHNEEREESES S BEZELES BERERELS RATRIGHE
(RMB) (RMB)
(AE®T) (AE% )
10 Jiangsu Lvrun Investment Management Limited 13,157,295 0.9143% 38,481,922.99
BB EERERAF
11 Shanghai Jiarongsheng Enterprise Management Partnership 10,525,836 0.7315% 30,785,538.39
(Limited Partnership)
IEERBRMEEEABCE(BRER)
Total 238,989,107 16.6081% 698,985,650.96
att

The transaction is in line with the actual business development needs and
overall strategic planning in the consolidation of minority interests in subsidiaries
of the Company, and after the completion of the transaction, the proportion of
equity held by the Company in ASIMCO Nanjing will be further increased, which
will be conducive to enhancing the Company’s performance and optimizing and
integrating resources in an all-round manner such as the Company’s internal
business, finance, capital and capital operation. It will improve the efficiency of
resource allocation, promote ASIMCO Nanjing in accelerating the transformation
towards a new energy auto parts business model, accelerate the development
of new quality productive forces, and improve the performance attributable to
the Company’s shareholders.

As the transferors of equity of ASIMCO Nanjing include associates of the
Directors of the Company and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company, the entering into of the equity transfer agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute connected transactions
of the Company.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Hong Kong
Listing Rules) of the equity transfer agreement and the transactions thereunder
are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, they are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement dated 13 December 2024 of the Company
for details.
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Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:
From 1 January 2024 to 9 January 2025:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Meng Hechao (Executive Director)

Mr. Li Kaishun (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yue Taiyu (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)
Ms. Yao Yangiu (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 9 January 2025 to the date of this report:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)

Mr. Jia Hao (Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Meng Hechao (Executive Director)

Mr. Li Kaishun (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms. Yao Yangiu (Independent Non-executive Director)

Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:
From 1 January 2024 to the date of this report:

Mr. Liu Qiang (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong
Ms. Zhu Yuan

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 37 to 46 of this annual report.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix D2 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange) in which a Director, a Supervisor or
their connected entities are or were materially interested, directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to its business
and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially interested in any way,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities of the Company and its Associated Corporations”
and “Connected Transaction — Acquisition of Shares in a Subsidiary” of this
report, at no time during the Review Period were there rights to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouses or minor children, or any
such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the “Securities and Futures
Ordinance” (the “SFQ”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFQO); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:

Director/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares

Bz /Bg/
#e BETHAR a1/ BHME RER
Jiao Chengyao Director Beneficial owner A Share
BiRE 8% ExEAA Al
JiaHao Director/Chief executive Beneficial owner A Share
B % RRIBAE ERBEEA Al
Fu Zugang (resignation effective Director Beneficial owner A Share

from 9 January 2025)

TR (A05F1RIREE) £5 ExEAA Al
Meng Hechao Director Beneficial owner A Share
hEH# 8% ExEAA Al
Li Kaishun Director Beneficial owner A Share
ZHIE i ERBEEA Al
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share
2z g3 ExEAA Al
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Approximate Approximate
percentage of the percentage of  Long position/
Number of relevant class  the total number  Short position/
shares of capital % of shares %  Lending pool
tEBRAER hRGEEN  HE/ %R/
BRHHE  HEREAL% BHEALY  AHEHNRE
4,226,964 0.274 0.237  Long position
e
2,442,300 0.158 0,137 Long position
e
3,945,620 0.256 0.221  Long position
e
231,000 0.015 0,013 Long position
e
201,000 0.013 0,011 Long position
e
11,500 0.001 0,001 Long position
e
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the directors,
the supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed to have); or were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of members of the Company
as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

§$~%$&%Eﬁﬁkém$&ﬂ&
HABEENES D BB RKE @

B ESCPIREEE SN - 72024512 A318 - AR AR E
= BEHESAQNRESTTRABMERA A RS AE
BAE (TR R B EGESREEEND) A, - FHRER
WEEHF - B EAIRIEGE H RS EF])EXVE S
TRESHIBEMG AR R MR TS IAR (B1E
FERABFEANERIAR)  FRB(EERPEL
Bl YEE 35216 B H A Z KB Pt 0 B so e s sk & -
FARBEH T ERAAN T AR ERETESFR I
ZXEST A G AN A BB R TR RS A A o

BREREBRKRRAR

2024F 128318 » AARIRR A MRS RFS
T

Shareholders of A Shares ARRPR R 53,098
Shareholders of H Shares HAR A% 58 57
Total number of shareholders REER 42 8 53,155




Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2024, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members

kept by the Company:

Name

%R

Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd."

AREEEEBERARY

Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership)™

ARRAER(Tm) &%
(BRa%)

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan
Provincial People’s Government®

EEARBNEEEELEEER

F887

Henan State-owned Capital Operation
Group Co., Ltd.@

AEREEREEREERARR
Henan State-owned Capital Operation

Group Investment Co., Ltd.®
AEEEEAEREEREBRA

Henan Zhongyu Green New Energy Co., Ltd.@

AERBEAHERARARQ)

UBS Group AG®

Gapacity/
Nature of interest

g/ BENE

Interest of beneficial
owner and party
acting in concert

EaBEAR—H
TBA TR

Beneficial owner

EHBAA

Beneficial owner

EafBA

Beneficial owner/

Interest in a controlled

corporation
EnlEA/
ECX%I/il E}]Fgé

Beneficial owner
BEREAA

Beneficial owner
EEEEA

Interest in a controlled
corporation
Ny ot

Class of shares

Rt

AShare

Al

H Share
Hi%

A Share

ARk

A Share

A

A Share

ARk

A Share

Al

A Share
Al

H Share

Hik
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Number of
shares

RH8E

333,194,876

8,645,200

263,985,719

243,892,381

243,892,381

34,159,479

31,508,306

13,533,461

Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class

of shares %
EBER AR
A

21.61

3.0

15.81

15.81

2.22

2.04

5.56

Approximate
percentage of
the total number
of shares %
ERGAZH
BABED %

18.66

048

14.79

13.66

13.66

0.76

Long position/
Short position/
Lending pool
e/ %R/
A R 5

Long position

e

Long position
e

Long position

e

Long position

Long position
e

Long position
e

Long position

e
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

)

Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly holds 69,209,157 A Shares and
8,645,200 H Shares of the Company. Pursuant to Article 317(1)(a) of the SFO,
Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. is deemed a party acting in concert with Hong
Yi Investment Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership). Hence, Henan
Asset Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to own the same batch of 263,985,719 A
Shares of the Company directly held by Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership). Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly owns
and is deemed to own an aggregate of 333,194,876 A Shares and 8,645,200 H
Shares of the Company.

Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. directly holds
34,159,479 A Shares of the Company. Henan Zhongyu Green New Energy Co., Ltd.
directly holds 31,508,305 A Shares of the Company. Henan State-owned Capital
Operation Group Co., Ltd. directly holds 178,224,597 A Shares of the Company.
Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. and Henan
Zhongyu Green New Energy Co., Ltd. are wholly owned subsidiaries of Henan State-
owned Capital Operation Group Co., Ltd. Henan State-owned Capital Operation
Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government.

Pursuant to the SFO, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government is deemed to own the same
batch of 243,892,381 A Shares of the Company directly held by Henan State-owned
Capital Operation Group Co., Ltd.

UBS Group AG is interested in a total of 13,533,461 (long position) H Shares held in
the Company. 3,561,400 (long position) H Shares are held by non-listed derivative
instrument through cash settlement. As disclosed in the notice of interest submitted
by UBS Group AG (with the relevant event dated 10 December 2024), UBS Group
AG is interested in the following H Shares:

% control

i%ﬂiiﬁ"‘zﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ - HHER G
Z*Eﬁﬂﬁlx)a

MiEE

(M

AHEEEEERR AR AREFH69,209,157 1 AKX AIAK
128,645,200 A% 7N 2 AIHA% o RIEFE FH K& B S (&5 8 317(1)
@ T EEERAR DR RFARIEARIEEEE (T
M)ABTEBERER)N—BITHAL  AbumEsE
EEERAGEGIEEERAIBREAEECTRE)ABD
¥ (ERAE)EEHFHAR—111263,985 7198 A2 RIARK ©
AEEETEAR AR AR KR ERES & 333,194,876
RS AN 2 BIARS K2.8,645,200A% A X AIHAK ©

HHEEEREESEIRERR AT EERHF34,159,479
RARBAR - MR RIENEEERERAREERFE
31,508,305 N A FIARR - AR Bl B E A EEEEFR AR
BEFFA178,224597 R AR R EIARR < B A B RNEEE
B EFR A 7 KA R BE I EER B R A R &2
HMEEEAELEEBERARNEZENBAR - WEEHA
BEABEEEEBRARATHEARBNEEEEE
BEEEEEEN2EANBRR -

RIRFES LR  AMEARBREAREEEE
BZEERRFREAmIMEAENELEEAR AT
BEERFE R —1243,892,38 1 AR AN X BIAR <

UBS Group AGRAZR A B1H5 8 & $£13,533,461 % (47 &2 ) HAR &
@ © 3,561,400/% (FF B HRR @B AR @ EE R IE LHITAE
T E45E - 1RIEUBS Group AGIRBiES B M (AR E 4
HHEA2024F12 3108 ) FriksE - LA T AHAR A 5 FRUBS
Group AGH & -

Name of Name of
controlled Corporation controlling person
FEFEEERE BREALER
UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC UBS Group AG

UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd ~ UBS Group AG

UBS 0’Connor LLC UBS Group AG

Direct interest (Y/N) Number of shares
HEER(RB) RHHE

Y Long position 10,302,400
= e

Y Long position 949,200
=z 5o

Y Long position 2,281,861
= e




Material Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related party transactions” of this
Annual Report on page 86, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any material contracts with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries other than the Group.

Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
a total contribution of RMB188.92 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Corporate Governance Gode

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or
its associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in
the Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and chief
executives, in respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.
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Subsequent Events

On 12 March 2025, the Board agreed for the Company to use its own funds and
self raised funds to repurchase some of its issued ordinary shares in A-shares
market through centralized bidding trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
trading system, and will use the repurchased shares for future share-based
payment scheme. The total funds for the Company’s share repurchase shall
be between RMB500 million and RMBB00 million. The repurchase price of the
shares shall not exceed RMB17.00 per share, and the specific repurchase price
shall be determined during the implementation period based on the Company’s
stock price, financial condition, and operating conditions. The deadline for this
A-share repurchase plan is within 6 months from the date of approval by the
board of directors.

As of 31 March 2025, the A-share repurchase plan has been implemented and
completed, the Company has repurchased a total of 39,120,130 A shares, with
an average repurchase price of RMB15.335 per A share. Please refer to the
announcement dated 1 April 2025 and the multiple Next Day Disclosure Returns
released in March 2025 of the Company for details.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and the audited annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 with
the management and the external auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
28 March 2025
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Report of the Board of Supervisors
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In 2024, in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “Company Law”), Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “Securities Law”) and other relevant laws and regulations as well as the
requirements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited’s
Articles of Association (the “Articles of Association”), Rules of Procedure of
the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited (the “Board of Supervisors”) earnestly safeguarded the
interests of the Company and all shareholders as a whole and strictly and legally
performed the relevant duties of the Board of Supervisors. During the Reporting
Period, the Board of Supervisors supervised the Company’s production and
operation, financial position and the performance of duties by the Directors
and senior management of the Company mainly through convening meetings,
attending meetings, face-to-face communication, on-site inspections and
reviewing materials, so as to ensure the Company’s standardised operation and
safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole. The work of
the Board of Supervisors in 2023 is set out below:

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2024

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board
of the Company was able to strictly comply with the requirements of
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and other relevant laws,
regulations and systems, and operated and made decisions in accordance
with the laws. All major operation decisions of the Company were rational
and the decision-making process was lawful and valid. The Company has
established and enhanced its internal management system and internal
control mechanism. The Directors and senior management of the Company
conscientiously executed their respective duties in accordance with the
national laws, regulations, the Articles of Association, and the resolutions
of the general meetings and the Board meetings. None of the Directors or
senior management of the Company were found to have violated any laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association in discharging their duties for the
Company or engaged in any acts which contravened the interests of the
Company or its shareholders.

In 2024, global economy experienced a moderate recovery, but the
international situation remained complex and volatile, and geopolitical
conflicts intensified. The adverse effects brought by changes in the
external environment increased, while domestic effective demand was
insufficient, leading to a divergence in economic operations. The industry
in which the Company operates faced intensified “involution”, and the
challenges of volatility increased. Confronting the severe and complex
external environment, the Company focused on strategic goals, closely
tracked market dynamics, adhered to innovation-driven approaches,
further refined operation management, continued to promote business
reform and digital transformation, various indicators of production and
operations have been continuously enhanced, maintaining a stable and
positive development trend.
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EEST/ERE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in T 0UFEEEET/EER
2024
() Composition of the Board of Supervisors (—)EEEEEXBER
Upon election at the Company’s third extraordinary general meeting N FI2023F 12 150 B 2023 F 55 = )X B8
of 2023 held on 15 December 2023 and the employee representative B A& F2023 512 A1 A BB TR K
meeting held on 11 December 2023, the Company elected the GRER - NAN2023F 12 A1I5BEA S NE
Sixth Session of Board of Supervisors on 15 December 2023, which EEY mARERREZTRIZBINRRE
consists of two shareholder representative supervisors and one staff EHEK o B BTRKRES RS - RER
representative supervisor. Among them, the staff representative RESRIEMR Wk ARREAESEeE
supervisor is LIU Qiang and the shareholder representative & BIRRESNLAMER=02— " &
supervisors are CHENG Xiangdong and ZHU Yuan, of which LIU EENREKFTEEEEEEATE -

Qiang is the chairman of the Board of Supervisors. The proportion of
staff representative supervisors is not less than one-third, and the
composition of the Board of Supervisors complies with relevant laws
and regulations.

(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (D)20U4FEESESRARBR
in 2024
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors of the REHA - RAEFSRB(RENE) (A7
Company convened a total of 7 meetings in accordance with the ERNMEERT  LERTRETEEH
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of T 24IBREE o B RAT ¢

Association, at which 24 resolutions were considered and approved.
Details are as follows:

Date of the
Meeting Session of the Meeting Proposals Considered at the Meeting
ZHAH EEER ERNEE
28 March 2024 The Third Meeting of the The Proposal on the 2023 Report of the Board of Supervisors of the Company

Sixth Session of the The Proposal on the 2023 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of the Company
20243 A28H Board of Supervisors The Proposal on the 2023 Annual Report and Summary thereof of the Company

The Proposal on the Occupation of Non-operating Funds and Other Related Fund Movements of the
FREEEE Company in 2023
FoR@E The Proposal on the 2023 Assessment Report on Internal Control of the Company

The Proposal on the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company

The Proposal on the 2023 Profit Distribution Plan of the Company

The Proposal on Provision for Impairment of Assets and Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets
Held for Trading in 2024

The Proposal on the Daily Related Party Transactions of the Company in 2023 and the Expected Daily
Related Party Transactions of the Company in 2024

The Proposal on Provision of Guarantees for Controlling Subsidiaries and Mutual Guarantees between
Controlling Subsidiaries

(AR AR020XFEEEL TEREMNZR)

(AR A B0 F EAEHE TR MINS IERE R R)

(R RARRBEFERERFBENZE)
(BERRARR0BFEIELEES AR EMEHESERBRNZER)

(R D E2023F B RS HIRHER S MHEER)
(BRARI02FEIRE HENRARVAERENZE)

(BN RRR02BFFEFEDE A ERRHRE)
(BR0UFEHREERBEELR SEEREEAABEEHNZER)
(R ATI023FEE B H IS BN R2024EE 85T B BB HIENNER)
(AR BT LR REERIIER T AR M ERREERNZR)
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

BEERTHRE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in T 0UFEEEETEERE
2024 (Continued)
(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (D)204FEESeERARBLE®
in 2024 (Continued)
Date of the
Meeting Session of the Meeting Proposals Considered at the Meeting
BHEH BBER FRNER
The Proposal on Provision of Financial Lease Repurchase Guarantee and Buyer Credit Guarantee to
Customers
The Proposal on Continue to Utilise Idle Funds to Invest in Financial Wealth Management Products
The Proposal on Continue to Carry Out Hedging Businesses
The Proposal in Relation to the Remuneration Plan for Supervisors of the Sixth Session of the Board of
Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd.
<%%H§ﬁh«ﬂ§ﬁh@%?1~;EﬁEﬁﬁﬁ%m%R
(BREETRHEESRECHBMERNER
(BAREERREDREEBNER)
(ERBMNEBEENEERNERATE\EESEEFHIARNER)
26 April 2024 The Fourth Meeting of the The Proposal on the 2024 First Quarterly Report of the Company
Sixth Session of the The Proposal on Termination of Spin-off and Listing of a Subsidiary of the Company on the STAR
2024F4 5268 Board of Supervisors Market
EPNEE (ERRRR0AFE-FERENAR)
BMREGH (AR TFABF LB EREIR ETHER)
1 July 2024 The Fifth Meeting of the The Proposal on Adjustment of the Exercise Price of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme
Sixth Session of the The Proposal on Adjustment of the Repurchase Price under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive
20247 A1H Board of Supervisors Scheme
The Proposal on the Repurchase and Cancellation of Certain Restricted Shares Granted but Not Yet
ENEEEE Unlocked under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
FRNEE The Proposal on the Fulfilment of Conditions for Unlocking of the Third Unlocking Period under the
2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
(BN AR 9F IR B BTTREBIRNER)
(AR FHEE2021 SRR B RSB 5 BB BB (B AR VR )
(AR R HE021 FR A REHEEHH ERTEERERRBSORGITRES
ER)
(RN FREAMBREZBDFEIEE=ZABERRENBRBREREXLTD
ER)
28 August 2024 The Sixth Meeting of the The Proposal on the 2024 Interim Report of the Company
Sixth Session of the
202458 528 H Board of Supervisors (ARRATRUELEERENZER)
EREEEE

B N A A
EAVN-T-
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ESETERSE

Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2024 (Continued)

(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

in 2024 (Continued)

T UFEEESTEER®)

(D04FEEEeSHAMRBEL@®

Date of the
Meeting Session of the Meeting Proposals Considered at the Meeting
ARAH gREER BERNER
14 October 2024 The Seventh Meeting of The Proposal on Acquisition of Part of Shares of a Controlling Subsidiary and Related Party
the Sixth Session of the Transactions
2024107148 Board of Supervisors
(BAREERF AR RN EBHB I ZNER)
EPNEEES
ERt-
28 October 2024 The Eighth Meeting of the The Proposal on the 2024 Third Quarterly Report of the Company
Sixth Session of the
20245108281 Board of Supervisors (BERRTRUFE=ZTERENZR)
FREEEE
EJAVAE -+
13 December 2024 The Nineth Megting of the The Proposal on Acquisition of Part of Shares of ASIMCO Technologies (Nanjing) Co., Ltd., a
Sixth Session of the Controlling Subsidiary, and Related Party Transactions
202412 4138 Board of Supervisors
(BARUEERTF AR DRI I ERM(BAR)BERA DB RELEFEH I HHER)
ENEEEE
BARGE
Note: Among the proposals considered at the above meetings, except for the i Pl eREENEEY RTIENEESEE
Proposal in Relation to the Remuneration Plan for Supervisors of the ZIREHFT R BN R AR S B D

Sixth Session of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Co., Ltd. considered at The Third Meeting of the Sixth
Session of the Board of Supervisors, which was directly submitted to

BERARSANEEFEEFHHORNAR)
BEREMERYEBRRAMBEZRERIRRAE
FRZ AMBROEEFSERZBEG -

the general meeting for consideration as all supervisors abstained from
voting, all other proposals were considered and approved by the Board
of Supervisors.

Over the past year, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
performed its duties conscientiously in accordance with the law,
strengthened the supervision of the performance of the Board and
the management, supervised and inspected the production and

—FR - RAEFERRERERER - MaiE
Fe KEEERNEE  OEREREAQF
EEREBRMEAFERREN - HEAF]
HERRENTE  RRATNEEERESR -

operation of the Company and the decision-making of major issues in
accordance with the law, and strived to promote the standardisation
and improvement of the Company’s system, and fulfilled its duties
and responsibilities for the development of the Company.



lll. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2024

1.

Law-abiding Operation of the Company

In 2024, the Supervisors of the Company were present as non-
voting delegates at or attended the Company’s Board meetings and
general meetings according to law, with rigorous supervision carried
out over the Company’s decision-making procedures as well as
the performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and senior
management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Board of
the Company has complied with the laws and regulations such as the
Company Law and the Securities Law, as well as the requirements
of the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure of the
Board of Directors, with regulated operations as well as lawful and
valid decision-making procedures. The Company has established
and improved its internal control system, under which the Directors
and senior management of the Company discharged their duties
conscientiously with no acts found in violation of laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association or prejudice to the Company’s
interests.

Inspection of Financial Status of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the financial position of
the Company for 2024 and is of the view that the Company has an
established financial system, a standardised financial operation and
a good financial position. The financial report of the Company truly
reflects the financial position and operating results of the Company,
which is conducive to the shareholders’ correct understanding of
the financial position and operating conditions of the Company. The
financial report prepared by the Board of the Company reflects the
Company’s position in a truthful, accurate and complete manner,
without any false record, misleading statement or material omissions.
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lll. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2024 (Continued)

3.

Inspection of the Company’s Share Incentives

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors inspected the implementation
of the Company’s share incentive in accordance with the laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company adjusted the repurchase
price of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (hereinafter
referred to as the “Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”),
repurchased and cancelled the restricted shares granted to some
participants but not yet unlocked. The conditions for unlocking the
third unlocking period under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
have been fulfilled. The Company handled the third unlocking and
trading matters of the restricted shares for 166 eligible participants.
Upon verification, the Board of Supervisors considers that except for
some participants whose restricted shares were required to be partly
repurchased and cancelled due to the occurrence of circumstances
such as departure from the Company, change of duties and failure to
achieve excellent results in the individual annual appraisal, all other
participants satisfied the conditions for unlocking of restricted shares
during the third unlocking period. The unlocking of the Restricted
Share Incentive Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of the
Administrative Measures on Share Incentives of Listed Companies
(hereinafter referred to as the “Administrative Measures”) as well
as those of the Incentive Scheme, without prejudice the interests of
the Company and all Shareholders.

During the reporting period, the Company adjusted the exercise
price of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Share Option Incentive Scheme”).
After verification, the Supervisory Committee believes that the
procedures for this adjustment are legal and compliant, the
adjustment would not affect the continued implementation of the
Scheme, it would not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position and operating results, and will not harm the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Inspection of the Capital Operation of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company terminated the spin-off of
its subsidiary, Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co.,
Ltd., for listing on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and withdrew the relevant listing application documents. Upon
verification, the Board of Supervisors considers that this matter will
not have a material impact on the Company, will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s existing production and operations
and financial position, will not affect the implementation of the
Company’s future strategic plans, and will not harm the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

= EE&E%‘%T’D\ B0 FERBEEENE
(%)

3 WMERRIREABIS N

2024%F - BEEEROAKME A RBIEMB E it
BRETTHRE

SREHAR - A FE2021 E R HI R MR T 2
(AT ST PRFIMER E B8 ) ) B S (B
EITTHAZ  DEFHETISEBHREER
TR AR ARRRIR S AR B AR SR - AR R 1%
IR BENRT B = X ERBRIR & HIAR R IR & i
HRHE - RRIATE 1665 8RN Y Sl
BT RFIERZMNE = X E EThiRE
FH - BEEOLRE  RAKRTISHBER
EE A - BEE EAFEESZRERK
ENEFZERREZLEEEHEDSREIERSE
2O - H AR R R = IR AR R R HA
RERRR IR &M - RSB ETEIRRRR E =18
FE(EM AR BRESEE R E) (AT ETE
[(EEYE)]) - CHBEDEREHRTE - T
GFHEEEATMBRRAZNER

54 EA - T E2019% B AR HE A B
(oA T ST SRR 8 ) 174 (72677 7 28
B EFEALE  RAAKBENEFA
% A THEAARBINEETE T
SURATMHBRRAE LR RE L EA MY
€ TP AERT R ERERFISHER -

BB RRENEERBR

BEHA - RARIESHIEFRREBMEZE
BEMBEENERARE LEFFRHHRA
R ETIEHE AR LR ERBE X - EEGEX
LT BRAZETSHARELEEURE
TEHARREEELLRPNUBHRESE
BEATHFE  TTEFERRRRBEESE
MEH  TEEREQARMERBEROME o



lll. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2024 (Continued)

5.

Inspection of Related Party Transactions of the
Company

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the related party transactions
of the Company in 2024, and considered that the related party
transactions of the Company in 2024 took place in strict compliance
with the provisions of the Articles of Association, were strictly carried
out in accordance with the regulations of the related party transaction
regulations, and the transactions were fair and reasonable. Such
related party transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis,
with the statutory approval process performed and no act prejudicial
to the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the matters relating to the
Company’s acquisition of part of the shares of its subsidiary
Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd. and
related party transactions, and the acquisition of part of the equity
interests in its subsidiary ASIMCO Technologies (Nanjing) Co.,
Ltd. and related party transactions, and is of the view that the
aforementioned transactions were fairly priced, which is conducive to
increasing the Company’s shareholding in its subsidiaries, improving
the efficiency of operational decision-making, and enhancing the
competitiveness and sustainable development capabilities of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and will further enhance the profitability
attributable to shareholders of the listed company. The decision-
making procedures for the relevant related party transactions are in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Articles of
Association, and no circumstances that are detriment to the interests
of the Company and minority shareholders have been found.

Inspection of Internal Control of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the internal control of the
Company in 2024 as well as the establishment and operation of the
Company’s internal control system, and considers that the Company
has established a robust internal control system which is under
effective implementation.

Inspection of the Information Disclosure of the
Company

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the information disclosure of
the Company for 2024 and considers that the Company has strictly
complied with the information disclosure working system and the
disclosed information is true, accurate and complete, without any
false records, misleading statements or material omissions, and
without leakage of inside information or insider trading, which is in
compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations and prescriptive
documents such as the Securities Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Measures for the Administration of Disclosure of
Information by Listed Companies and the Rules for Listing of Stocks
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, etc.
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IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2025

In 2025, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to strictly
comply with the requirements of the Company Law, the Securities Law,
the Articles of Association and the relevant state regulations and policies,
perform its duties faithfully, and further facilitate regulated operations of
the Company.

(1)

Comply with Laws and Regulations and Discharge
Duties Conscientiously

The Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the Company Law, the Securities Law and the
Articles of Association, supervise the Board and the management
in performing the obligation in accordance with law, and facilitate
the Company to further improve corporate governance structure and
improve its level of governance.

Continue to Strengthen Supervision and Inspection
to Avert Operational Risks

The Board of Supervisors will take financial supervision as the core,
and monitor and inspect the financial position of the Company in line
with the law. The Board of Supervisors will maintain communication
and liaison with the internal auditors and external accounting firms,
S0 as to make full use of internal and external audit information to
keep abreast of relevant situations. The Board of Supervisors will pay
particular attention to high risk areas of the Company and carry out
inspections on critical aspects such as major investments, related
party transactions, external guarantees, financial endorsement and
fund utilisation.

Bolster Professional Capabilities through Greater
Self-improvement

Constantly broaden our professional knowledge and improve its
professional capabilities by receiving more training in banking,
finance, law, auditing and securities, so as to enhance the
supervisory role, actively explore innovative ways of supervision, and
better perform the supervisory function of the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

28 March 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 283, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters
BRETEE

The revenue (excluding other revenue) recognition from sales of products
Em#EERA(TEEAMBRA)ER

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has recognised revenue of
Renminbi (“RMB”)36,830,751,000.

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, revenue
(excluding other revenue) from sales of products is recognised when control of
the products has been transferred to the customer, being at the point the goods
are delivered to the customer’s specific location and accepted by the customer.

We identified the revenue (excluding other revenue) recognition from sales of
products as a key audit matter due to the significance of revenue recognition to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

BREFESEH

BRET FESREBERMNEEHE - RAEYAHRS
PBHRERNBARRBEENETIER - GUERRERME
AHERSAMBRER L L AZRRETRIEN - BT
SYHELEREHREBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BB EERERETSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to revenue
(excluding other revenue) recognition from sales of products:

e \We obtained an understanding of design, tested
implementation and operating effectiveness of the internal
control related to management’s key controls in respect
of the revenue (excluding other revenue) recognition from
sales of products.

e We reviewed the sales contracts with customers, and
understood the terms and conditions set out in the
sales contracts regarding the criteria of satisfaction of
performance obligation to assess if the revenue (excluding
other revenue) recognition is in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

e \We tested the sales of products, on a sampling basis,
by inspecting the supporting documents related to the
customer’s acceptance on control transfer of the products.

e Ve tested sales transactions of the products that took
place before and after the date of financial position, on a
sampling basis, by examining the supporting documents
related to the customer’s acceptance on control transfer
of the products to assess whether the sales transactions
were recognised in the correct reporting periods.



Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters
BRETSEE

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

BREFTEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
RPN ET N EEEREEE

The revenue (excluding other revenue) recognition from sales of products (Continued)

EREERA(TEEAMEBA)BR(E

REZE2024F12A31BILFE - EEEEERABRAARE(TARE])

36,830,751,0007T °
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
BRETER

BREETEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BANET AR EBEETEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables of the manufacture of coal mining machinery

BERERERENE S BRRFURNERERE

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
of the manufacture of coal mining machinery were RMB5,354 million for which
a loss allowance of RMB585 million was provided. Management assesses
the loss allowance for trade receivables of the manufacture of coal mining
machinery on a periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables of the
manufacture of coal mining machinery are calculated based on management’s
estimates of the lifetime expected credit losses, which is determined by taking
into account:a) the customers’ aging profile of their overdue balances and other
relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts of future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables of the
manufacture of coal mining machinery as a key audit matter because the
expected credit loss is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the expected credit loss is considered significant due
to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of significant assumptions used,
and the significant judgements and estimates involved in the process.

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment when determining the loss
allowance for trade receivables of the manufacture of coal
mining machinery:

e \We obtained an understanding of the design and tested
implementation of the internal control related to providing
loss allowance for trade receivables of the manufacture of
coal mining machinery.

e We tested the integrity of information used by management
to develop the provision matrix, including trade receivables
ageing analysis as at 31 December 2024, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis with
supporting documents.

e Ve evaluated whether the historical loss rates considered
collectively of trade receivables of the manufacture of
coal mining machinery have been properly assessed
and appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.

e  For trade receivables of the manufacture of coal mining
machinery having a higher risk of default, which are
assessed for impairment individually, we reviewed
those customers’ background information provided by
management and evaluated the management’s judgments
and the reasonableness of the loss rate adopted.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
RPN ET N EEEREEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables of the manufacture of coal mining machinery (Continued)
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Gonsolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the ISAB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Htpfz 2
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e  Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Kay Man Wo, Dick.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBEaRkEMEZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, 2024412 A31 B 1L &€

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt ARET T AREEFTT
Revenue WA 5 37,052,042 36,423,236
Cost of sales SHERAR (28,198,869) (28,821,178)
Gross profit ER 8,853,173 7,602,058
Other income E g A 7 724,885 492 117
Other gains and losses Hihozs R EE 8 113,978 (13,204)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R EEX (1,069,410) (910,381)
Administrative expenses THFHAZ (1,493,708) (1,199,587)
Research and development expenses s A (1,516,437) (1,568,223)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ FEERS EEBER THUREEE -
model, net of reversal R EE (157,718) 51,226
Share of profit of associates it A=YNG vl 21 48,320 46,966
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(LEBESET 22 6,336 5,891
Finance costs BEE R 9 (297,947) (388,601)
Profit before tax BRB AR R 5,211,472 4,118,262
Income tax expense FriSHifs 10 (980,574) (616,668)
Profit for the year FRRF 11 4,230,898 3,501,594

4
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T AREETIT
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hit2m (5 X)W -
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEEFHEE
profit or loss: EamhyEE -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit BT ERBRENET
obligations 4,861 16,329
Changes in the fair value of equity instruments at LAA (&2 B &8st A=
fair value through other comprehensive income 2 EHZEHIRA T A A TFE
(“FvTOCI") #H) 8,381 3,202
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to  BIFERA 2 E R IEE
profit or loss: EamhyEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation of A& SN TS EE O IE H, 258
foreign operations (119,771) 27,667
Fair value loss on hedging instruments ETARES REYE T
designated in cash flow hedges R TARAFEES (3,635) (773)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the  FRH M EE (B )
year, net of income tax USRS R (110,164) 46,425
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2HEKZEAEE 4,120,734 3,548,019
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AL FREF
Owners of the Company ARAIPE 3,943,489 3,301,334
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR FE RS 287,409 200,260
4,230,898 3,501,594
Total comprehensive income for the year AT ALEIEFAEERESERE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARARE 3,833,186 3,348,618
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR FE RS 287,548 199,401
4,120,734 3,548,019
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARES) 15 221.62 187.22
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(ARED) 15 221.06 186.09




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI &R

As at 31 December 2024 722024512 531 H
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As at 31 December

M2A31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR%T T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKRE 16 7,389,243 6,295,147
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 2,101,338 1,828,283
Investment properties BEYE 18 260,671 314,605
Goodwill e 19 88,283 88,283
Intangible assets | EE 20 804,801 813,309
Investments in associates REEZ R AIRE 21 658,067 677,520
Investments in joint ventures NEZBPENEE 22 65,330 99,664
Financial assets at fair value through AAFETE B EEF A
profit or loss BRemEE 23 7,050 6,872
Equity instruments at FVTOCI AAFAER 2 BEESBEA
EmemimErRAT A 23 419,334 408,159
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISFEE 24 372,486 382,679
Finance lease receivables & TH & e EOE 25 62,404 78,998
Long-term receivables RHEEW S 26 319,202 213,498
Bank deposits RITIER 30 980,022 1,468,712
13,528,231 12,675,729
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion REFHE WIS - REED 25 20,662 21,825
Long-term receivables, current portion REIEW TS - mEED 26 248,237 216,230
Inventories FE 28 9,453,770 9,296,608
Trade and other receivables, contract assets B REMBEKIE cREE 29 11,920,546 10,353,472
Transferred trade receivables BalEnE 5 rkEE 35 431,851 198,861
Financial assets at fair value through AT ETE B EEFEA
profit or loss BaemEE 23 5,821,562 5,944,162
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT ERTE B E# A
EmrmEianertEE 23 2,502,853 3,848,095
Derivative financial instruments TESmIE 23 36,386 33,867
Tax recoverable AT Uk [B] 7 18 38,663 31,969
Assets classified as held for sale PEERFEHNENEE 31 91,072 91,072
Bank deposits RITIER 30 1,934,565 1,945,896
Cash and cash equivalents RENRIREEEBY 30 2,987,585 4,729,233
35,487,752 36,711,290
Total assets WEE 49,015,983 49,387,019
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As at 31 December

A12831H
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥T R AREETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Borrowings ’g 33 2,631,415 6,159,723
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 1,050,013 1,202,523
Deferred income tax liabilities REFFISHEE 24 111,843 152,475
Contract liabilities aREE 27 48,118 37,491
Provisions B 34 12,686 26,283
Employee benefit obligations EERNEME 36 297,377 298,132
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE 366,641 248,653
4,518,093 8,125,280
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 N H M FRIA 32 13,932,210 12,916,362
Contract liabilities ARAME 27 3,070,926 4,174,250
Income tax liabilities SR a’E 396,718 244,606
Borrowings gE 33 3,404,232 1,143,514
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 144,702 145,305
Provisions B 34 273,033 532,108
Liabilities associated with transferred trade HE B E 5 EW IR
receivables B@EMAE 35 445,802 212,812
Derivative financial instruments TESRMT A 23 84,558 11,453
21,752,181 19,380,410
Total liabilities i =R 26,270,274 27,505,690




BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

n‘l_\% ﬂj;]’%;‘iﬁ 5R 2%
As at 31 December 2024 7220244512 A31H

As at 31 December
M2A31H

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARMET T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E

Share capital R A 1,785,400 1,781,409
Share premium B& 10 m B 4,548,778 4,533,431
Reserves e 15,616,621 14,063,372
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN S g 21,950,799 20,378,212
Non-controlling interests FEIEARRE RS 794,910 1,503,117
Total equity FERMEE 22,745,709 21,881,329
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAEE 49,015,983 49,387,019

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 283 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao

IR ENTE283B AR A T SRR 202593 H28H
CEESIERFETE YR TIATREREE:

Jia Hao
=93

DIRECTOR

EF

2l
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 ;2024412 A31 B 1L &

A3t Decomber 023 endat - NBENANAR

Sharg
capital

B
RUB000

ARETT

Share
premium

RitER
RIB000

ARBTT

Treasury
share

ERRf
RIB000

ARETT

Attributable to owners of the Company
AAARRER

Revaluation
reserve

Eftfif
RMB'000

ARETT

Statutory
surplus
reserve

EE

Boge

RBI000
ARET

Currency
translation
reserve
g%
EriGfE
RIB'000

E¥TT ARET

Gash flow
hedging
Teseres

RN

bapil- 4
RMB'000

Other
Teserves

Rttt
RUB000

T ARETTL

Retained
gamings

REEA
RUB000

AEETT

Non-
controlling Total
Subtotal interests  equity

It FEREE RRER
RUBOOO  RVBOOD  RMBIO00

ARETTL ARBTR T

1 January 2024 NUEIAIA 1781400 4533431  (52427) 112399 1198347 (83212) (m3) 872436 12016602 20378212 1,503,117 21,681,329
Proft or the year B = = = = = = - - 3043400 3043480 267409 4230808
Othercompehensiieneome. AR 2ENE(FR)

(expenses) for the year - - - 134 - (19910)  (3,6%) - - (110303 139 (110,164)
T comprehensiencome——— ERZENH(ER)2E

(expenses) for the year - - - 134 - (119910) (3639 - 3043409 3833186 287548 4120734
Ererise ofshare opfions (Note 38) 7Rk B (Mizas) 4333 15,347 - - - - - - - 19,680 - 19680
Unlock of resticted shers (ote 36) R 514 2R RE (Miz8) - - 508 - - - - - - 5Mm - 508
Bpenses recognized elied o BARBEIMRERE A

resticted shae ncentie BRER (i)

scheme (Note 36) - - - - - - - 6,874 - 6,74 49 6,923
Forfitofresriced share (Note 36) AR R E (iz38) (342) - 159 = = = = = - 14 - 1
Employee stock ownership —HEHBARNETHR:E

plan of a subsiciary - - - - - - - B - B 5076 B
Rouison of on-contoling~~~ UkEB e R AR AR (R3ER0)

et loe 39 - - - - - - - (300900 - 00 (1T (1T186H)
Acquiston of a subsiciary (Note 43) U — M B AR (343 - - - - - - - - - - 1071% 107,13
Captal contribution rom FEHERTE

non-controllng inerests - - - - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Contrbution from associates BENAILE - - - - - - -3 -3 -3
Didencs ot 4 ) - - - - - - - - (991 (149915  puAZT) (1793424
At 31 December 2024 R0UF12B31A 1,785,400 4,548,778 - 15640 1198347 (03122  (4408) 39225 14460938 21950799 794910 22,745,709
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

LINGE
Staoy —~ Currency ~ Cash flow Non-
Share S Treasury  Revaluaon — supls  tranlation  hedging Other ~ Retained controling Total
captal— premium shae  /eSeNe  UeSeNe  fesene  /eSeves  resenes  eamings  Sublofdl  interests equty
T g% ReRe
e BieE ERRD EREE RURE EXBE WARE  EbBE RERA Nt HEREE  ERAE
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOD  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOOD  RWB00D
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETH ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note a)
(Kiita)
A3t Dpoember 202endat - 0012831 B R
1 January 2023 ABEIAIA 1782245 4538675 (118,198 331708 1198347 (111739) - B0B8% 937733 17807267 831014 18638281
Proft for e year ERgH - - - - - - - -3 330134 200260 350154
Othercompreienshe neome.——— EAER2ERE(FR)
(expenses) or the year - - - 1953 - 8% (R} - - e (59 4642
T comprehensieneome A2 ERE (%) 8%
(ewoenses) for the year - - - 195 - B m) - 33013 338618 199401 3548019
Share options (Note 35) FETRiE (Fie) 892 3189 - - - - - 1316 - 5307 10 5407
Resticted share ncentie Rl RE R ()
scheme (Note 36) (1728 (433 6571 - - - - um 2082 81985 191 815
Change of an investment (Noteb) ~ —JER B V&S (Ffzth) - - - (238840 - - - - 3o 9,071 - %N
Transacton with non-conrolling.— FER RIS R 5 (HE%0)
inerests Notg 39) - - - - - - - Bpd - BRM 516219 BN
Employes stock onersip ~HHBARN B TRRHE
plan of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 8239 - 823 1452 9691
Contibution from associaes BELAILE - - - - - - - - 1m - 1M
Dividends (Note 14) e - - - - - - - - (9B0%8) (98058 (5,230 (1,043,288
At 31 December 2023 ROBEIANA 1781400 4533431 (2420 112309 1198347 (83212) 73 87243 12016602 20378212 1503117 21881309
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Note a:

Note b:

The cash flow hedging reserves represent the cumulative effective portion of
gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered
into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non-
financial hedged item.

In February 2023, as communicated with the Board of Nanjing Bestway Intelligent
Control Technology Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control”), the Company
assigned one director to Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control for the interest of its
long-term development. As the Group has the significant influence over Nanjing
Bestway Intelligent Control, the investment was reclassified from financial assets
at fair value into investments in associates. Accordingly, the cumulated net fair
value gain recognised in the other comprehensive income was transferred to
retained earnings amounting to RMB283,825,000.

MisEa :

FiaEh -

RengfihrEEtReRE I ImEh TA
MR FEEPELNNEMERRFT AR - ER
ReRnBfhREHERILZFTOED T AN TFESR
PELNRFRR REREEYNIARZERRRT
SEMHBEIES KT AFFBEPRENFE L
A o

F2023F2 A -+ fEHim RS EREROBR AR
((ERILEER ) ESGHITERE AARAER
REEMAZER—BEFEATRILESE - AR
AEBEHERILEEREEATE N  GERERE
AFEFENSREEEN D EAREE R AINE
& o At - REMEERS T ERE R A FE R
FROCERZREAT - ©% /8 AR283,8250007T
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, 2024412 A31 B 1L &€

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANHLLEE
2023
20234F
RMB’000
ARBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Profit before tax MR B B o A 5,211,472 4,118,262
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs A& R A 297,947 388,601
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term IRITTFK ~ REAFEUGIE &
receivables and finance lease receivables R0E T E FE YR IE A F) B U A (242,536) (201,319)
Share of profit of associates JE(RER A A RLRF (48,320) (46,966)
Share of profit of joint ventures JELEEERT (6,336) (5,891)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BERREARL
equipment and intangible assets EREENREFE (1,476) (3,701)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE AR 2 W (624) -
Dividend from financial assets at fair value through ~ LAAF(EEHE A &8 ABEH
profit and loss TREEMBRE = (89)
Net fair value loss of derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£ R T AN FAEEIBFRE 96,980 86,556
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value ~ AR {EFHE B EE Bt ABREA
through profit or loss SREENA AR FHE (235,889) 43,179)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENREITE 743,920 694,647
Depreciation of investment properties EYEITE 16,158 21,399
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHE 227,550 252,318
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEE 168,453 162,011
Net impairment loss/(reverse) on financial assets and & @b &2 & R & &R EEE,(#@)
contract assets FE 157,718 (51,226)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR ERE 1,457 113
Impairment losses of investments in an associate R—REBE QBN ERERE 93,315 -
Impairment of goodwill BEEE - 43,622
Impairment of intangible assets EmEEERE 26,210 290
Share options FE G R - 1,326
Restricted share incentive scheme Gl e R 6,923 24,464
Employee stock option plan of a subsidiary —MIf B ARME THRFTE 33,921 9,691
Accrual of inventory provision EEHTEE RS 7,151 29,986
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREFFHTE (5,619) (84,138)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEASHEFIINEERSRE
working capital 6,548,375 5,396,777
Increase in inventories FEEN (18,027) (1,419,666)
Increase in trade and other receivables E 5 K E i FE YR IEIE N (1,561,631) (1,199,910)
Decrease in notes receivable FEURZ R 1,345,242 646,230
Increase in long-term receivables and EHEWSE LG ERE
finance lease receivables FE U SR TE 3 AN (125,005) (158,356)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I B FE A SRIEIE AN 474,781 1,285,316
(Decrease)increase in contract liabilities ERaECHRD)E N (1,084,002) 441,882
Cash generated from operations RS IRFTISIR S 5,579,733 4,992,273
Income tax paid BAFTSH (857,416) (542,208)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING e TEBABRSFEE
ACTIVITIES 4,722,317 4,450,065
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Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2023
20234F
RMB’000
ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REIERFIE R
receivables and finance lease receivables e E FE W IE AR A 240,951 201,319
Government grants related to assets received BEEWER BT ED 257,541 88,482
Dividends from equity instruments at FVTOCI AT EEBEZSTA
EmemiizsmEs TAZRE - 89
Dividends from associates /N[0l 9S) 7,965 7,332
Proceeds on disposal of an associate & — B A RIS RIA 1,000 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% « ME kR ETEHIE 138,815 37,298
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEYE  BENEE (1,996,499) (1,431,077)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE (270,606) (99,196)
Purchases of land use right S+ i {F AR (439,247) -
Payment of contribution to an associate [ —REEE A RIS R (2,000) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary B8 —FEI P BB A R (68,845) -
Payments for other financial assets, SHEMSREE - BBEFERK
structured deposits and certificate of deposits Tz (7,909,549) (8,967,899)
Proceeds from other financial assets and Ef e EEMEB TR
structured deposits and certificate of deposits FEGHIE 8,268,038 8,295,092
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity FHRRE A =@ A E8RITER
over three months (1,229,422) (1,511,738)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity REUREHIH = @ AL ERYERITIF K
over three months 1,395,895 2,192,999
Payment of pledged bank deposits SREEBRITER (1,287,371) (1,359,043)
Proceeds from restricted bank deposits SRR BRI TF AT 5B 617 -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R B IIPIRITIF R 1,620,302 665,609
Net settlement amount of derivative TESRMT AR EEEFE
financial instruments (33,965) (87,329)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHFMARSTE (1,306,380) (1,968,062)
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANHLLEE
2023
20234F
RMB’000
AREET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ALESEE
Proceeds from new borrowings FIEERTE A 1,719,063 4,567,150
Proceeds from exercise of share options TT{ERE RS A 19,680 4,081
Purchase of non-controlling interests BB I (1,660,360) -
Repayment of restricted share incentive scheme PRI 1A R BT BB R (1,941) (8,079)
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (2,975,431) (4,951,881)
Interests paid BEAFLE (266,739) (343,007)
Contribution from non-controlling interests IEIERR RS B A 4,000 544,920
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ENAR B EE (1,499,153) (998,058)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR ERAR B (294,271) (81,916)
Lease payments MEFIAE (196,892) (242,135)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFE AR S FE (5,152,044) (1,508,925)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BHE&RIREZEYORL)EiEEE
EQUIVALENTS (1,736,107) 973,078
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES RekBESSAEEE CEXEHNTE
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,541) 142,712
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY M A1EMBEESRBESZEY 4,729,233 3,613,443
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RI2ANBHNRERESEEY
AT 31 DECEMBER 2,987,585 4,729,233

2
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1.

General information

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability under
the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the PRC.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the controlling shareholder of the Company are Hong Yi Investment
Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Hong Yi
Investment”) and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Henan Asset”) after
a series reorganisation, and the Company has no de facto controller.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery
and auto parts.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“‘RMB”),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

Application of new and amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2024 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7 and
IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

—REH

BN EE R D BRAR([ARAF )RR E
ARFELFB ([ BB EEMNEREE N SEEE
REMFAFEAR - BRIFFEARER2008F 124
28 BB BRI BRRAR]

201058 A3 H - A A58 140,000,000 A% AR £
FEBSHERIMERARBEEL LW (RMD AR
601717.5S) ° AR A FA2012F 12 A HEB B S
RHMBRAE([BARA]) ER Em (RN
00564) °

ARREZR([EFDRA  R—RINERZE - 5
RREEECIE)ARECE(BRAR) ([HRE
BDMAREEERERAR(IEEE ) RAR
BIAVEEIRBCR - AR RLBMEBIESIA o

KRR E i fe = B B R 5K E
RERIARER | —& - RRREEME QR (5
M ASE DR ERBERR L TETHBAREMK

HAMBHRRAARB(TARE D27 - AR
RARREIHEEERAR o

FE FIFTR] B A4S 7T Bl PR B 15 3 5 22 A
ST ER

B 37 ST BB B SR 2 B & R
MIERTA

RAFE - AEBERERUGE Y BHREERER
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BT Y BIBRB A5 R 5 E R 2 EREANSET AN

BIPR B 5  2E R L IEEEED
165k (ERTA) HERE

B g ET AR BESBAREH
F1RUERTA) FRE

EER g ET R Hs225aH
F1RUERTA) SERENRE

RERHERIETIR K HERmBE LB
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FETRUERTA)
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AEERAFERBEFENMBRARKAR
AR E M MR WBEL HENEATE -



BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of new and amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent Electricity?

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!

Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards — Volume 113
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

T O

Except for the new IFRS Accounting Standard mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which sets
out requirements on presentation and disclosures in financial statements,
will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new IFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the requirements in
IAS 1, introduces new requirements to present specified categories and
defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to the financial
statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation of information
to be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some IAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7. Minor amendments to
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IAS 33 Earnings per Share are also
made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early application
permitted. The Group is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of
IFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

e MRS R R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

FE FA 3R] B AR5 5T B R B 76 R 25 ZE Al
&R )

£ 95188 4 7K 2 R 7 T B R B 4R
B EEHER R E SR A

AR5 B30 R A2 T8 A UA T R {E 18 R AR R R T
B SE EA G S ERI R EERT AN

BRI ERIER R HemI AN
AR BT R FTEMERIETE
ENEACCEIR:N) BB ETS

BIPREI SRR SRS OSR K KR B AR
I % B 7 e o 22 ) BEHEKS
EFCHACCHIRN)

IR s EAE105E . REFEEBRER
&R AERI 522858 AlREEREY
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BRI SRS R R ER] BB SRS 2R
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CHEN
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3. FEMBHBRREHNEERBEANEFTH
statements and material accounting policy KEHR
information

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

3.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

31 ERA M HRARBESE

FAVBBRREBREHERE =S RM R
M HREE G ERRR - BREGA MBHRE
meE HAEERERENGYELTRERENR
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRS
Accounting Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3. REF
RE

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired processes
are considered substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with the
necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform the related
processes or they significantly contribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unigue or scarce or cannot
be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC-Int 21 Levies,
in which the Group applies IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes;

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS
16 Leases) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate
or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to revenue
from contracts with customers is provided in notes 5, 27 and 29.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception of the contract. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

3. MENBBREHUEERENSHHK
KER )

32. BERGFTHRER (#)

REERARREEEENREE)

HAEETHHBENREEEATESYA
BB AREGE - AARIELERE
BHRH AR - T H L E SR KRESE R
FREBRTHER - WARERERAEE AR
A EhENER B ZRE RS RERT SR
SEABIRBBANSREE  AAEES
RZBRAAEBEAERE R MRARE
BERRARIEHERBNAABE - BE AT
HEECERAERTAREEENAAER
RSB E N RHA S DEAMERNERR
BREZENER  ERETHEZBLE AT
HABDENBAERIFAR o N - K
EeREiERMEEKRAMZEE A ARHE
EEMANMELBEAR  EEEZBER
AR ECRERLENREEXRBERED
EAEAAR o Eitt - WS AR AR RESL
AIE R E 2 E R EERAN R AR SR T
EHEEEXRBERENVEERD - ARE
EeRtE o HEREBEARNEED
ERBRASEEREREN O RERE(E
REMDEHE) -

EEEEREALEENBREQRNAEDEE
IRZE - AEBERRHEEEERFME
ERIBEENIE A RINA S E R EA
SEERER - NAKBERGREWHERRER -

REEFERIKA

AEBHREFAERWABBNSFIER E RS
A EES ~ 27 %29 °

HE
REERA DR RIEERIT SRS ENE
16k ERFHAERELAHEEXEEHE -

BRIFBERE A R Gl - BRITGEH
HEBEEAR -



BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

3. MEUBBRRBREERENSFHK

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial AR
RE® @)

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 32ERNEFERER ®)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of motor vehicles, machinery and equipment that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets (such as motor vehicles, low-value
machinery and equipment). Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3. KEMBERRFEREEREARSTTH
statements and material accounting policy FER @
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32.EREFTBURER (@)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit in
the respective leases. Initial direct costs for leases in which the Group
is the manufacturer or dealer lessor are recognised in costs of sales
at the commencement date of the finance leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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3. MEUBBRRBREERENSFHK

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial AR
RE® @)

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 32ERNEFERER ®)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial . e i%ilﬁ%ff HEENERETH
statements and material accounting policy KER (=
information (Continued)

32. BERGFTHRER (#)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as “other non-current liabilities” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.

Employee benefits
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS Accounting Standard
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another IFRS Accounting Standard requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. In determining the present value of the Group’s
defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and,
where applicable, past service cost, the Group attributes benefit to
periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level
of benefit than earlier years, the Group attributes the benefit on a
straight-line basis from:

(@ the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits
under the plan (whether or not the benefits are conditional on
further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will lead to no
material amount of further benefits under the plan, other than
from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return
on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on settlement is
recognised when settlement occurs. When determining past service
cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an entity shall remeasure the
net defined benefit liability or asset using the current fair value of
plan assets and current actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without considering the
effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan).
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continuea)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
However, if the Group remeasures the net defined benefit liability or
asset before plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, the Group
determines net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using
the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after the
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount rate
used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or asset, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset
during the period resulting from contributions or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as
well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

e netinterest expense or income; and
e remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees, or third parties
reduce service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be
contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are linked to service, as
follows:

e |f the contributions are not linked to services (for example
contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses
on plan assets or from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability or asset.

e |f contributions are linked to services, they reduce service
costs. For the amount of contribution that is dependent on the
number of years of service, the Group reduces service cost
by attributing the contributions to periods of service using the
attribution method required by IAS 19.70 for the gross benefits
(i.e. either using the plan’s contribution formula or on a straight-
line basis). For the amount of contribution that is independent of
the number of years of service, the Group reduces service cost
in the period in which the related service is rendered.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when
the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination
benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share/Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (other
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the other reserve.
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information (Continued)

32. BERGFTHRER (#)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share/Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, and when shares granted are
vested, the amount previously recognised in other reserves will
continue to be held in other reserves.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects either the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at
the time of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 requirements to
the lease liabilities, and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred
tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, including costs of testing whether the related assets is
functioning properly. Sale proceeds of items that are produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management (such as samples produced when testing
whether the asset is functioning properly), and the related costs of
producing those items are recognised in the profit or loss. The cost
of those items are measured in accordance with the measurement
requirements of 1AS 2. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or oss.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 32 BREETERER (#)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are being
recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets-research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally — generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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IIV_\/EI\/H\ZI-ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'IH—% B{qﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives and contract costs to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment 10ss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated statement
of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits,
excluding bank balances that are subject to regulatory
restrictions that result in such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

(o) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3. REF
RE

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed
a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to
those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision
includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the
entity.

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
Group’s obligation.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised
and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to
exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the net cost of fulfilling it and
any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.

When assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, the
Group includes costs that relate directly to the contract, consisting
of both the incremental costs (direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs (an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling that
contract) that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be
required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a
provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs, except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be
made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i

(i)

(i)

Debt instruments/receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments/receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in
the carrying amount of these debt instruments/receivables are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of other reserves. Impairment allowances
are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment
to other comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments/receivables. When these
debt instruments/receivables are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the “Revaluation reserve”; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments and is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, transferred trade receivables, long-term receivables, bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments)
and other items (contract assets, finance lease receivables) which are
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets, transferred trade receivables, long-term receivables,
finance lease receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

()

(i

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal
or external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

()

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IFRS 16.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract assets
are considered on a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

e Ageing;
e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and other
receivables, contract assets, long-term receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For investments in debt instruments/receivables that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the other reserves
without reducing the carrying amount of these debt instruments/
receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the other
reserves in relation to accumulated loss allowance.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

e  For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’
line item (note 8) as part of the net foreign exchange gain or
loss;

e  For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line
item as part of net fair value gains on financial assets at FVTPL
(note 8).

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

0On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument/receivables
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the other reserves is reclassified to profit or 10ss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
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3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3. REF
RE

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (i) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing
it in the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e tis aderivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and other payables,
liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables, other non-
current liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based
on the amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the ‘Other gains and losses’
line item in profit or loss (note 8) as part of net foreign exchange
gain or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. For those which are designated as a hedging
instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are
measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part
of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in praofit or loss for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (ontinued) 32ERNEFTHERER #)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on
the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether
the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk.

THMEE(GE)
RUTERTHAE

AEBReTE HAETERR  BUEEEH
RRIIERTRAE - KRULEERZSRAER
EEEENREMREZ ZENERETER -

TESMTA

TTHETEMFRATE  REILTETASR
AHRER  RRRBEPRRZ QI FESH
B o TEEZWaENEIENBEER - RIFDT
ATABIEEAERIEREHMTA - FIER
T IR RERAR T ER R 2 EE M

F e

TETRABIRRRBEELRBAILE -
BHETREERTRMEE

= HEERAREEREA A ERGINTENE
HEATH  WABRFREERENRE
BREENEHAGR SREERABTE
RIS - WRE BN R P IIREFER -

HhastRE

REBETES TITETAIEARTEE HFLE
EREHPZEHTA -

RERELEHRER - AEBETEEHT
ARFrEOhIa R 2 BR - ARETEEEITR
HZRBER B RREKR o o NEEE
REREDN RERSFE ST TARS
BREEEE PR G PP IRE MR FER

Pa =1
BensgE -

165



166

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;Z2024%12 A31 B It F[E

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3. REF
RE

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Hedge accounting (Continued)
Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether
the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk,
which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following
hedge effectiveness requirements:

e there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument;

e the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes
that result from that economic relationship; and

e the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that
resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that
the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same,
the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e.
rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and
other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserves,
limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from
inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in
the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss
accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserves will not be recovered
in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. HEVBHRRFEREERERSFHK
KER )

3. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 32 BREETERER (#)

Hedge accounting (Continued)
Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only when
the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the
qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes
instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised. Discontinuing hedge accounting can either affect
a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a part of it (in which
case hedge accounting continues for the remainder of the hedging
relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the profit or loss is
impacted by the forecast transactions. a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognized immediately in profit or 10ss.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on
aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into consideration
the Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note
46h.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2024, a deferred tax asset of RMB24,024,000 (2023:
RMB15,991,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Deferred tax asset
has not been recognized for those tax losses of RMB6,273,449,000
(2023: RMB6,193,812,000) due to the unpredictable of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future or taxable
temporary differences are expected to reverse in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary differences, which is a key
source of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation,
a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s financial assets
amounting to RMB2,930,533,000 (2023: RMB4,264,422,000) are
measured at fair value with fair value being determined based on
significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these
factors could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. See note 46¢ for further disclosures.

Estimated impairment of interest in an associate

As at 31 December 2024, in view of impairment indicators that the shares
price in open market of the associate noticeably dropped down, and also
the network equipment manufacturing industry was not promising as
expected, the Company performed impairment assessment on interest in
an associate. Determining whether impairment loss should be recognised
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of interest in the relevant
associate which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the management of the
Group to estimate the present value of the estimated cash flows expected
to arise from dividends to be received from interest in the associate and
the proceeds from the ultimate disposal of the investment taking into
account of discount rate, dividend pay-out rate, etc. In cases where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future cash flows estimation or
discount rate, a material reversal or further recognition of impairment may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of interest in an associate (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the associate amounted
to RMB367,899,000 (2023 RMB453,498,000), after taking into account
the impairment of RMB93,315,000 (2023: Nil) recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group of
cash generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been
allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets subject to impairment assessment were
RMB977,074,000 and RMB625,855,000 (2023: RMB1,320,845,000 and
RMB640,339,000) respectively, after taking into account the impairment
losses of RMB1,457,000 and RMB26,210,000 (2023: RMB113,000 and
RMB290,000) in respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible
asset that have been recognised respectively.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of provision

The Group makes provisions for product warranty (assurance type),
onerous contracts and restructuring cost. Management estimates the
related provisions based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent that it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and that the amount can be reliably estimated.

As for onerous contracts, the Group assessed at the date of the statement
of financial position on whether unavoidable costs of meeting contractual
obligations have exceeded the economic benefits expected to be received,
and made provision for these onerous contracts based on the estimated
least net cost of exiting from the contracts. See note 34 for further
disclosures.

Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of pension obligations. Details of key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in note 36.
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5. Revenue 5. KA
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () KEEPERMHWAEISD
customers

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12A31HILEE
Manufacture of
coal mining  Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
SUSHEEME SERESTHMG st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T ARET T

Sales of auto parts VBT ER RS - 17,467,175 17,467,175
Sales of hydraulic roof supports BB JRASHE 12,547,762 - 12,547,762
Revenue from steel and other i) 2 & ELAt FRORHE S B9
materials trading 3,034,576 50,336 3,084,912
Sales of spare parts for coal BRI A S &
mining machinery 2,907,175 - 2,907,175
Sales of other coal mining equipment E b S E R GBI IHE 823,727 - 823,727
Other revenue EagA 156,419 64,872 221,291
19,469,659 17,582,383 37,052,042

Year ended 31 December 2023
B E20235F12A31 B ILEE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
SUEE B BLETETEMG “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARET T ARMET T

Sales of auto parts RETEIHNEE - 17,462,835 17,462,835
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RS BRI E 11,727,518 - 11,727,518
Revenue from steel and other B & H M R RHE S R
materials trading 3,746,353 67,281 3,813,634
Sales of spare parts for coal IH TS AL R S &
mining machinery 2,536,593 - 2,536,593
Sales of other coal mining equipment  EL{th B & A E5 & 593,642 - 593,642
Other revenue EH bl A 249,699 39,315 289,014
18,853,805 17,569,431 36,423,236
All revenues from contract with customers are recognised at a point ZEARABRENE —SEEER -

in time.
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5. WA
i) EFPERMNENEERER RS

5. Revenue (Continued)

(i) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers and revenue recognition policies

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining
machineries, auto parts and steel and other materials directly to
customers in accordance with the orders form and framework
contracts entered with the customers. Revenue are recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered and accepted by the customers. Transportation and
handling activities that occur before customers obtain control are
considered as fulfilment activities. The normal credit term is 30
days to 180 days effective from the revenue recognition date. When
the customer pay in advance for the orders, the transaction price
received by the Group is recognised as a contract liability until the
goods have been delivered to the customer.

Under manufacture of coal mining machinery segment, nearly 10%
percent of warranty deposit is contained in the contracted amounts,
due to the warranty provision in the contracts with customers. The
Group will receive the warranty deposit if no major quality issues
happen during agreed period (normally 1 year). The deposit serves
as an assurance that the products comply with agreed — upon
specifications in the contracts and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately. Accordingly, the Group accounts for warranties
in accordance with IAS 37.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 2 to 5 years.
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5. Revenue (Continued)

(i

(i

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies (Continued)

The Group engages in trading of steel and other materials trading.
The Group concluded that the Group acts as the principal for such
transactions as it controls the specified good before it is transferred
to the customer after taking into consideration indicators such as
the Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods. The Group has inventory risk and price risk. When the
Group satisfies the performance obligation, the Group recognises
trading revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised revenue
relating to trading of steel and other materials trading amounted to
RMB3,084,912,000 (2023: RMB3,813,634,000).

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All the sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Segment information

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group’s
reportable segments under IFRS 8 are (i) manufacture of coal mining
machinery; and (i) manufacture of auto parts. No operating segments have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

CODM primarily uses a measure of segment net profit to assess the
performance of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 December 2024 BZE2024F12831HILEE

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &

7 RRE R

RERHER A BERFERARABHTRAR
(BDEBEBARE HEHDHEF RS
MERSRBIES AR S - REERH SRS
RRIFBY: - AKEE T 2HH HA()RERBE
RIS TETIE - LR DBAGRA
AKEALEA o

IRREARETZEADEFNENFEFEE
BOERRE o

REBH WA T R 2] ML E 5 #R R D40

N o

_|

Manufacture of

coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total

SUERBHMM  RESETHRMG #at
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARBETTT

Segment revenue D aBUA 19,469,659 17,582,383 37,052,042
Segment net profit excluding o —;4 }@%IJ o el

unallocated expense HEF 4,167,466 265,535 4,433,001
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE2023F12A31HLLFE
Segment revenue SERUTA 18,853,805 17,569,431 36,423,236
Segment net profit excluding DELEFE - T EERERE

impairment of goodwill 3,262,067 283,149 3,545,216
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6. Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Segment revenue and consolidated revenue DEBRA R ERE 37,052,042 36,423,236
Segment net profit excluding impairment of goodwill, SESHEFE - TEEEERE - &

unallocated expense Ak 4,433,001 3,545,216
Unallocated expense KA (202,103) -
Impairment of goodwill EEDEAE! = (43,622)
Consolidated profit for the year FRERE =T 4,230,898 3,501,594

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepared the segment
reporting for total assets and liabilities excluding the impact of goodwill,

which is related to the manufacture of auto parts segment.

AEENEERA BRI 2HEEED BBHDHTN
e $EIT¢%@§F&%@Q1$%%’“ HE - TE
RESLETET R AR ENTE

As at 31 December
M12A318

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARMET T

SEGMENT ASSETS PHEE

Manufacture of coal mining machinery B IR AR 30,363,698 33,365,207
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R B T IR 18,564,002 15,933,529
Total segment assets wmoHEE 48,927,700 49,298,736
Goodwill fEES 88,283 88,283
Consolidated assets REEE 49,015,983 49,387,019
SEGMENT LIABILITIES PEBEE

Manufacture of coal mining machinery B TR 15,752,519 18,136,449
Manufacture of auto parts Bl T B T EE 10,517,755 9,369,241
Consolidated liabilities weaE 26,270,274 27,505,690




6. Segment information (Continued)

Geographical information
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z= 2024412 A31 B IL &
6. DEER @

b 3 & A

WAIRE PSR ST

follows:
For the year ended 31 December

HZE12ANAILFEE
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
The PRC 2] 24,939,246 23,562,860
Germany =k 5,330,446 4,343,077
Other countries E A BEIK 6,782,350 8,517,299
37,052,042 36,423,236

The analysis of Group’s non-current assets by geographical location is as

AEEZEREEELME DT

follows:
As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
The PRC =2 8,288,099 7,113,662
Germany = 1,061,601 1,139,927
Other countries HbBR 1,929,750 1,774,939
11,279,450 10,028,528

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, financial instruments, deferred income

tax assets.

Information about major customers

No customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for

the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

M FABEETEERE  SRITA EEMSH

IREFER

HE2024F 202312 A3 A ILFE - WHGARE
BB ABIBI0BHEF °
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7.

Other income

7. HiblgA

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Government grants (Note) TRATHE B (PR 5E) 236,208 259,367
Gain from additional input value-added tax credit FEIMNETE R ER K B WS 246,141 31,431

Interest income on bank deposits, long-term receivables  $R{7175% « REAfEW AR REME

and finance lease receivables EREWGIENF BUA 242,536 201,319
724,885 492117

Note: Government grants mainly represent government grants received from the
local government for compensation of research and development expenses
incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s new plant, which are
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss when related expenses
incurred or over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

Other gains and losses

MiaE - BRSHB TR EREEMEETERX RS

B RRTERS T B BUSEERE AL - 1
AR ELRNEREERERFERRNERE
WAB B =R

8. HittWmREE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12831HILLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Net fair value loss on derivative financial instruments TEER T AN FEBERFE (96,980) (86,556)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of the PR —FEEsE & R A B R FERR Y
interest in an associate VERIEY: SEic (93,315) -
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value NAFER =2 BHEEE T ABRN
through profit or loss SREEMND T ERGEFRE 235,889 43,179
Impairment of goodwill (Note 19) REFE(H7E19) = (43,622)
Net foreign exchange gain or loss SNE U Sl BB R EE 32,524 84,138
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEMREUR
equipment, and intangible assets ERE ERW TR 1,476 3,701
Dividend from financial assets at fair value through AT ETE BEEET ABEM
profit or loss TREEMBERE = 89
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and ME - BMEMRERENELEE
intangible assets (Note 16, 20) (FF5516 - 20) (1,457) (403)
Others Hitb 35,841 (13,730)
113,978 (13,204)




9. Finance costs
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9.

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLEE

2024 2023

20245 20234F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Interests on bank borrowings IRITIEEF B 259,835 350,493
Interests on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 38,112 38,108
297,947 388,601

10. Income tax expense 10. FREHEX
For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE

2024 2023

20244 20234F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Current income tax BIHRFTIS S 960,643 658,195
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RIS 767,625 481,723
Other jurisdictions HiprrEER 193,018 176,472
Under provision in prior years: BEFEBETT 48,635 13,050
PRC Enterprise 5 43,141 9,759
Other jurisdictions HiprprEERm 5,494 3,291
Deferred income tax — current year EEFER —AFE (28,704) (54,577)
980,574 616,668
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10. Income tax expense (Continued)

(@)

PRC enterprise income tax

The enterprise income tax is calculated based on the statutory profit
of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the applicable tax rate in
accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
on certain income and expense items, which are not assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes.

In accordance with the PRC tax laws, standard corporate income tax
rate is 25%. The Company and certain subsidiaries are qualified for
High technology enterprises status and enjoyed preferential income
tax rate of 15% during 2024 and 2023.

Germany profits tax

Applicable profit tax rate of Germany is 29%(2023: 29%). During the
year of 2024, no profit tax has been provided due to no assessable
profit (2023: Nil).

Others

Applicable profit tax rates of the Group’s other subsidiaries are
between 9% and 34.01% for the year of 2024 (2023: between 9%
t0 34.01%).

Pillar Two Rules

The Group is subject to the global minimum top-up tax Global Anti-
base Erosion Rules (“Pillar Two Rules”). Pillar Two Rules has become
effective in Germany in which the Company’s subsidiary, namely SEG
Automotive Germany GmbH subgroup (“SEG Group”), is incorporated.
The top-up tax relates to operation of SEG Automotive Products (China)
Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of SEG Group) in the PRC, where the annual
effective income tax rate is estimated to be slightly below 15%.
Therefore, a top-up tax is accrued in the current period using the tax
rate based on the estimated adjusted covered taxes and net globe
income for the year. The Group has recognised a current tax expense
of RMB4,698,000 related to the top-up tax for the year ended 31
December 2024 which is expected to be levied on New Neckar
Autoparts Holdings and Operations GmbH & Co. KG.

The Group has applied the temporary mandatory exception for
recognising and disclosing deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
impacts of the top-up tax and accounts for it as a current tax when it is
incurred.

10. FR8HMAZ ()

() FEILEMFH

EEMERERET BN BRBOREER AN BT
PR SZ B B B8 2% BB R i MR R B R GHE A
% ERKHEHNAAENN S BAF SN
BiEyE TWSTRR -

RIBR B E  IRERESIHEA25% ° 722024
F2023F - RRARINEDHBARFAESEHRD
LK ZZ15%NEEMEHE -

b) E=EFSEH

122 0 38 A RO FI) 18 T SR 7529% (20234F : 29%) ©
20244 fE - AR IEEERFBORF) - M EEt
IRFSRI B (20235 « Z)

(c) Efb

R2024F [ - ANEEE A E A 7 EANF
B RN F9%ZE34.01%(2023F : NFI%ZE
34.01%) 2 f& °

(d SZHF—#RA

REBBETERRBMERRR (=48
Al 2H&EMER - TEZHRAERER
AR AR BRI E A » BISEG Automotive
Germany GmbH subgroup(['SEG Group ) BIJ A E Y
B (RE)
AR T (SEG GroupHIft A &) A Bl ) 38
B EFEERMSHERMAFTIRIER15% -
Eit - AREIFBR RS ARREERF
EEREBAFBANTRTERBEN - &
EECBEREHE2024F 128310 L FEHH
BETR A REEY S HRTI TR S A R #4,698,0007T -
TEERRZ B T8 #% [mINew Neckar Autoparts Holdings and
Operations GmbH & Co. KG/U

N SEIRYARCI b2 S sk e e A
BRNERRREREHAEEREE - TN
EARASES| BRI HRIA -



10. Income tax expense (Continued)

(e) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455
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e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

10. R8BI (#)

(6) 4FAmiiERT X ] BT & 183 R H fh 2 T U 2%
RAOBRB S A 2 FRIET AR

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Profit before tax BB A% A 5,211,472 4,118,262
Tax at applicable tax rate of respective entities RECEBEANNEAENTIE 838,237 669,495
Tax effect of share of result of associates and JEEBE NI A EDEEED
joint ventures mBTE (7,719) (7,973)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose /BRI UM A BTG 52 28 (144,155) (144,213)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for A~ A 1B = B9 R 75 o2 &8
tax purpose 240,907 189,000
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary SRIERTIEEE L E i =580
differences not recognised B 150,957 101,805
Utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences  F| B S B R R IEE B R
previously not recognised TS5 (3,572) (5,869)
Additional deduction for qualified research and HEBRMIFE BREINIT
development expenses (133,960) (154,117)
Impact of eligible preferential tax rate RFEERNEETERNTE (33,020) (44,514)
Top-up tax under Pillar Two Rules THZRATH/mER 4,698 -
Withholding tax provision TEMT A 19,566 -
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBTR 48,635 13,050
980,574 616,668

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in Note 24.

FRRERIAF BRI RE24 o
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11. Profit for the year 1. FREF
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ME - BREMEEITE 743,920 694,647
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 168,453 162,011
Depreciation for investment properties WEYENE 16,158 21,399
Amortisation of intangible assets WA EEY 227,550 252,318
Total depreciation and amortisation mENBIEREE 1,156,081 1,130,375
Capitalised in inventories FEERE (859,153) (869,678)
296,928 260,697
Employee benefits expenses (including directors): EERNFAZ(BEES)
— Salaries and other benefits —¥e MEMET 3,559,369 3,317,284
— Share base payment — LA B AT R 6,923 25,790
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIREFIH IR 188,922 175,932
Total employee benefits expenses EEmFFAZ B 3,755,214 3,519,006
Capitalised in inventories FEERE (1,880,679) (1,777,797)
1,874,535 1,741,209
Provide of inventory provision included in cost of sales 3R ASHER AN EERE 7,151 29,986
Impairment losses of intangible assets included in AR W ER S ERIEEE
research and development expenses 26,210 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and STAEMBRAOYME BEN
intangible assets included in other gains and losses BEREREERE 1,457 403
Gross rent income from investment properties KEWERSWALE 75,710 71,306
Less: direct operating expense that generated rent B FREEESKAK
income during the year HEEERAY (14,802) (12,777)
60,908 58,529
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREM B & 10,164 10,644
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRARIHEERA
expense including inventory provision (BREGFEEE) 28,039,464 28,565,608




12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’
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12 EE - BeTRAEREEZME

remuneration
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RIREA R LR RES QRGO ENFANE
to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as EREEMSMT
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BEAUENANALEE
Restricted
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive
and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 3)
[
He 1% HRRHN BUEH MR
REMER i SRR EzHe BhRE (Hi3E3) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETR AEETT AEET T ARET R ARETTR AEETR
Erecutie directors: HITEE:
M. Jiao Chengyao ERERE 1,960 1,749 3% - - 628 4312
N Jia Hao (Nots 1) B 2176 1914 n - - 502 4,663
r. Fu Zugang L E 1,260 1,216 3% - - 418 2929
r. Li Kaishun FRIELE 1,081 899 4 - - 105 2132
Nr. Meng Hechao AERTE 1,140 1,09 3% - - 126 23%
Sub-otal 1Nt 1617 6,872 p7A) - - 1,779 16,491

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

ERBITEEME IR EEHARR RAKEER
BB IE MR A RIS A -

and the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HENUERANBLEE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  henefit scheme scheme

henefits payments  contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 3)

RiltRE

2 TER  EREEN RICER M
EiEAl i &3 HE 25 Exhe BiE (H&3) H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEETT AEETR AEETT ARETT AEETT ARETT

Non-grecutve drectors; FinEE:

M. Cui Kai (ote 2 B () = = = > = = =
Hir.Yue Taiyu fote 2 EFFRE(T) = = = = = = =
Sub-total et - - - - - - -

The non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for

their services as directors of the Company.

B SEMITEEME I R EEE AR RINESRM
REHBRIS M S AT ©
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12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BeTRAEBREEZME &)

remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HZNUF1ANALER

Restricted

Salary,wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme

henefits payments  contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 3)

RitRE

¥E TE  HRRAH BIER b LIEE ]

REAEH %3 FiE 5 - E2k ERE (H3k3)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Independent non-erecutive diectors: U EE -

r, Cheng Jinglei (ot 2 BERRE(HH) - - - 160 - - 160
M. i Feng (Note 2) FLEE (M) - - - 160 - - 160
. Fang Yuan (Note 2 FERE(IR) - - = 160 o = 160
s, Yao Vangiu (Note 2 ket (fi2) - - - 160 - - 160
Sub-total gt - - - 640 - - 640

BT IFRTEENE IR RERELARANE
EMmRHa RS M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BENUENANALEE

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors’ fee  Share options (Note 3) Total

Rt RE

He I  HREHEY BicEA HEHE
REMET e HE 5 ESHd BiE (FizE3) ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARTn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn ARETn  ARETzn

Supenvisors: £z
. Liu Qiang Bheks 107 596 35 - - - 1,338
Ms. Zhu Yuan REZL 232 182 pA] - - - 437
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong (Note 2 BARTE () - - = = - - -
Sub-total gt 939 178 58 - - - 1,715
Total fzt 8,556 7,650 21 640 - 1,179 18,906
The supervisors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in EXFTRNEENE - IBEERRARIRAEE

connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

MEREBRERE M o



12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)
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e MR MIEE

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

12 E% - BETRAEBREEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HENNFNRANALEE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors fee  Share options (Note 3) Total

Bl S

56 -1 HERREY RINER e 2
REMET k% HEo8 B2 FEiE (B3E3) b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR

Executive directors: HiTEE

Mr. Jiao Chengyao ERERE 1,516 1,365 34 - - 2472 5,387
Mr. Jia Hao (Note 1) BEEA(E) 2,176 1,966 68 - 2 1,978 6,210
Mr. Fu Zugang fHamLE 1,075 1,084 34 - 19 1,648 3,860
Mr. Li Kaishun FRIELE 46 39 4 - - 18 107
Mr. Meng Hechao hEBLE 36 3 3 - - 2 9%
Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Note 4) MR () 537 535 16 - - 824 1,912
Mr. Wang Xinying (Notes 2, 4) THEEEF - 4) - - - - - - _
Sub-total et 5,386 5,023 159 - H 6,962 17,571

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company KB MR M ARIS T S A -

and the Group.

Non-executive directors: HFHTEE -
M. Cui Kai (Note 2) B A ()
M. Yue Taiyu (Note 2) ERFRE(MF)

Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Notes 2, 4) ~ BERs2E 4 (Fisto - 4)

Salary, wages
and other
benefits

REMER
RMB'000
ARBTT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BR023F12R31ALLEFE
Restricted
Performance Retirement share incentive
incentive  benefit scheme scheme
payments  contributions  Directors' fee  Share options (Note 3)
Bl iR
BRFAMN BINGER HEEEl

igpen AR EENe FE (FitzE3)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARET:R

ERAFTEEMS IR ESHAA T RAREEY

Total

&t
RMB'000
AREFR

Sub-total s

The non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for

their services as directors of the Company.

MRS AT o

LASERITEEME MBS REEARRNESM
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12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BeTRAEBREEZME &)
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HENRFANALEFE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors' fee  Share options (Note 3) Total

R HIMERE

e I8 HRRES RAER G E]
REMET ifi5a HEE EE fEfiE (iz3) @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ARBTR ARETRT ARWMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Independant non-executive directors: BV B 7TEE -

Mr. Cheng Jinglei REELE - - - 140 - - 140

Mr. JiFeng S Dot - - - 140 - - 140

Mr. Fang Yuan HRLE - - - 140 - - 140

M. Yao Yanqju e L - - - 12 - - 12

M. Guo Wenging (Note 4) Bxant(fizEs) - - - 140 - - 140

Sub-total Nt - - - 572 - - 572
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were BT IERTESMe IR ESEEARRFNE
paid for their services as directors of the Company. EMIR RIS T2 o

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HEANF12ANALER

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors' fee  Share options (Note 3) Total

R HIMERE

e I HERRHN RARIER G
REMET M HEE ek B (iz3) &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Supervisors: £z
Mr. Liu Qiang Bk 705 554 34 - - - 1,293
Mr. Wang Yue (Notes 2, 4) TREE(2 - 4) - - - - - - -
Ms. Zhu Yuan nEzt+ 8 - 2 - - - 10
Mr. Zhang Minglin (Note 4) R LA () 67 73 5 - - - 145
Mr. Bao Xueliang (Note 4) BERFE (M) 100 85 11 - - - 19
Mr. Cui Zonglin (Note 4) EFMELE (M) 187 140 34 - - - 361
Mr. Cheng Xiangdang (Note 2) BARLE (W) - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Yonglong (Notes 2, 4) AL E (R - 4) - - - - - - -
Sub-total it 1,067 852 86 - - - 2,005
Total e 6,453 5875 245 572 4 6,962 20,148
The supervisors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in EXFTRREEINE - IHREEARARIRAER
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the MEREBRERE M

Group.
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12. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 B BETHRAEBREEZEME 9

remuneration (Continued)

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services THEEME DR EEH AR R NAEEEBENE

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the BRI RS m T -

Group.

Note 1: Mr. Jia Hao is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his WaE - BUE AN AR R BIMITEIREE - MEEETR
emolument for the role as chief executive officer is also included above. BEOFIEFT A LIS REA -

Note 2: Al or partial of these directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 M52 : B E20244F N 2023F 12 A31 B IF FE R AT A 25
December 2024 and 2023 were borne by investors, including Henan NEFWNeHITEERREERESEGREAR
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd., investor of Hong Yi Investment and A ABRRERIEAESREEERE-

Henan Asset.

Note 3: The amount recorded in the restricted share incentive scheme were the M3« ABRARBR SR HE T E S A ARRITE
amount recorded in the financial statement. WEHLRE -

Note 4: These directors or supervisors resigned from their positions in the Witd RS E R EER0BFEHEZERARA R 2B
Company during the year 2023. %% o

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis BRI RS T+ EIA S B R ERA B D RIR

of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December B 22024F M2023F 12 A B IEFEMRIBET ©

2024 and 2023, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement B ZE2024F K2023F 12 A1 HILFE - AEBWE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office MEEZ A - EAENENNMEREE
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, FFR)F A BB (A o

No directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration during the years B E2023F 2024 F12 AT HILFE » fEHEME

ended 31 December 2023 and 2024. EREERETMABE -
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13. Employees’ remuneration

Employee benefits expenses include wages and salaries, performance
related incentive payments, share-based payment expenses, pension costs
— defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group,
five (2023: three) were directors or supervisor of the Company whose
remuneration is included in the disclosures in Note 12 above. The
remuneration of the two remaining individuals in 2023 was as follows:

13. EEM S

BERNAXBEFERIE  ERRHHNE
& RO AERONRAX  BRKERA—RE
KA 8 R SERR A8 -

REBREZZSFALTZF  AR(20234F : =F)
BRATEEKES - HENMSFBIL LW
12 EE o 82 TR A TR2023F MBS T ¢

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HILFE

2024 2023

20244 2023%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMER = 2,192
Performance related incentive payments MRV RS - 1,977
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFFHEIER = 114
Share options MR - 22
Restricted share incentive scheme PR ) 14 A% Sk B AT &1 = 1,154
- 5,459

The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”) fell within the following bands is as follows:

MeNFTIERENTIRREHALTEE BT
(METDEHWT -

The number of five highest
paid individuals
TEBEHAL

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000

2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000 7T
2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 7T £ 3,500,000 7T
4,000,001/ 7 £ 4,500,000/ 7T
4,500,001/ 7T £5,000,0007% 7T
5,000,001/ 7T 25,500,000/ 7T
5,500,001/ 7T 26,000,000/ 7T
6,500,001/ 7T 27,000,000/ 7T

2024 2023
20245 20234
ORI TEEISE No. of employees
EE#E EEHE
1 —

1 1

1 1

- 1

1 —

1 —

- 1

- 1

5 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
14. Dividends 14. B2
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FABRADIRARE
— 2023 Final (RMBO0.84 per share) —2023F REA (R ARE0.847T) 1,499,153 -
— 2022 Final (RMBO0.56 per share) —2022F R (FE AR #0.567T) - 998,058
1,499,153 998,058

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2024 of RMB1.12 per share (2023: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of RMB0.84
per share) in an aggregated amount of RMB1,956,059,000 has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

15. Earnings per share

(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

WEKRE - AARIESCEEHE2024F124
STHEFEIRMN KBRS ERARE1.1270(2023
£ BB E2023F12 A3 B ILEEIRMN R 85
R AR®0.8470) - B A K ¥51,956,059,0007T -
BRERRNERERRBAFTRSHE - FAMEE -

15. R EF|
(@) BRIREREF
AT R R B IR B A R AR T B st

(=1
Ean

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31AILEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per HEGRERAEFHZEF
share (profit for the year attributable to owners (RARIREEEFEARF)
of the Company) (RMB’000) (AR®FT) 3,943,489 3,301,334
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for HEGRENEFE
the purpose of basic earnings per share AR ANAE L 8 1,779,357,575 1,763,366,008

Earnings per share (RMB cents)

BERAEN(ARED) 221.62 187.22
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e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&
15. Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

15. BB R (@)
b)) BRREEET
SR BB B BT S BRI T

BB A R BRI T
ATEE o

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3101ILFE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Earnings: BH
Profit attributable to owners of the Company used 5+ & &% #5E & FIFTF AN A 7]
in the diluted earnings per share calculation AR RS A (AR TFIT)
(RMB’000) 3,943,489 3,301,334
Number of shares: BRoEE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year per share calculation
Add: share options (Note 38)
restricted share incentive (Note 38)

I8

on - EERscaE (MY EE38)
52 PR R B £ D (PR E38)

SHEHERSREBEITEBERY

1,779,357,575
238,475
4,281,237

1,763,366,008
4,332,960
6,375,701

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue and potential ordinary shares used
as the denominator in calculating diluted
earnings per share

EREl

RETESEE RN RED
B S BT SR E BN

1,783,877,287 1,774,074,669

Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents)

FEREEARN(ARED)

221.06 186.09
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16. Property, plant and equipment

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

16. % - MERRE

Plant and Motor Other  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF BERES B Rtk ERIRE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%TR ARETT ARETT ARETR
COST A
At 1 January 2023 R023F1A18 2,015,284 4578,018 54,991 1,036,826 792,351 8477470
Additions RE 17,786 178,792 4705 151,615 1,243,533 1,596,431
Transfer E3 131,078 576,635 14,830 84,648 (811,569) (4,378)
Transfer to asset classified BRENEABEHENE
as held for see (Note 31) B (W) (108902) (8.442) - - - (117,344)
Disposels e (1,210) (187,159) (5,662) (103123) (14,509) (311,662)
Currency exchange differences ERHBES 16,010 148,069 - 116,012 12,161 292,252
At 31 December 2023 12023 12R31H 2,070,046 5285914 68,864 1,285,978 1,221,967 9,932,769
At 1 January 2024 202461 A18 2,070,046 5,285,914 68,864 1,285,978 1,221,967 9,932,769
Additions RE 54,7119 509,352 5,635 178,394 1,221,233 1,969,333
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —HEHB AT - 27502 1,052 3249 377 32,180
Transfer EE 613,140 637,783 29,610 78,842 (1,369,375) -
Transfer in from investment properties BIRBMEEA 41,669 - - - - 41,669
Disposels e (46) (230,094) (10,079 (173579) - (414219
Currency exchange differences EHRBES (17,010) (120,443) - (93,986) (11.291) (242,730)
At 31 December 2024 1R2024412R318 2,762,102 6,110,014 95,082 1,278,899 1,072,911 11,319,008
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHTEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At1 January 2023 20231 A1A 499,164 1,912,409 26,529 605,285 - 3,043,387
Provided for the year FREE 76,299 448,873 12,398 167,077 - 694,647
Impairment A 113 13
Disposals HE (1,120) (161,981) (3,101) (97,354) - (263,556)
Transfer to asset classified ERENBARIELEN (53,739) (4,965 - - - (58,704)
as held for sale (Note 31) BE(H3Es1)
Currency exchange differences ERGHESR 8914 113245 - 99,576 - 2173
At 31 December 2023 2023 12A31H 529,518 2,307,694 35,826 764,584 - 3,637,622
At 1 January 2024 H2024E1 A1H 529,518 2,307,694 35,826 764,584 - 3,637,622
Provided for the year FREE 99,997 464,907 14,701 164,315 - 743920
Transfer in from investment properties BIRENEEN 3,803 - - - - 3,803
Impairment RE - 1,457 - - - 1,457
Disposals e 19 (115,294) (5,709) (156,000) - (2717,222)
Currency exchange differences ERHRER (9,444) (92,141) - (78,320 - (179,909)
At 31 December 2024 R024F12R31H 623,745 2,566,623 44,818 694,579 - 3,929,765
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 R023%12A31H 1,540,528 2978220 33,038 521,394 1,221,967 6,295,147
At 31 December 2024 Ho0ME1RA3NE 2138357 3543301 50,264 584320 1072911 7389243
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

16. W% - BMERZRE@®

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction
in progress, after taking into account the residual values, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis on the following bases:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17% per annum
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00% per annum
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00% per annum
Other equipment 18.00%-33.33% per annum

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with a net book value of approximately
RMB814,576,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB480,990,000).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property
ownership certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring
significant costs.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of approximately RMB174,564,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB390,619,000) to secure borrowing granted to the Group.

17. Leases

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

LaE - BE RREEB (ERIRZERINNEE
BER  WTHERRAERERIINE

Bg¥F FFIE271%ZE317%
RS R i s FEFF9.00%Z18.00%
2k FEFZ18.00% %= 19.00%
Hih& £EF2£18.00% = 33.33%

RSB EI 2024512 331 REREDFENIRA
[ #814,576,0007T (20234 : A KR #480,990,0007T )
MBFIHRBMEMAES - ARREERAER
BUSHRRMEM AR - MASELERNKA -

R2024F12A31H - AEEEEREEFEOAR
#174,564,0007C (20234 : A R #390,619,0007T) A9
ME  BEREE  BASEERNEEREM -

17. &

() PBEIFEAR R RIERH ©RE

RN KRIIRA T BEESERN D -

As at 31 December
A128318

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Right-of-use assets EREESE
Buildings g 1,083,554 1,225,884
Land of use rights + i PR A 964,972 542,938
Machines o= 8,487 12,451
Office and operating equipment WAERGETA 3,027 2,595
Others Hit 41,298 44,415
2,101,338 1,828,283

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current BNEA 144,702 145,305
Non-current JEBNER 1,050,013 1,202,523
1,194,715 1,347,828
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17. Leases (Continued)
() Amounts recognised in the statement of financial

pOsition (Continued)

The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China
government.

The Group has land of use rights with a net book value of
approximately RMB57,979,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB73,135,000) to secure borrowing granted to the Group.

For both years, the Group leases buildings, lands, various offices,
machines and equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 50 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office buildings. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests, including
the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately only
if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has obtained the land use right
certificates for all leasehold lands.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for motor vehicles,
machinery and equipment. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

Additions to right-of-use assets are as follows:

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

17. &)
() PEBARRKRERN TR (®)

7R 52 | SR B s IR T R A LA E B

R2024F12 A31H - AL ECEFREF
B4 AR 57,979,000 7T (20234F : AR
73,135,0007T ) Fy -t {E R4 - RS EERHY
BB -

REZMEFE  NEEHERET i %
BWAE  MBERREEEEZA - HEAR
AT P ZE 504 6 &l TE BARR AT 32 © T EIRRTY
LB R R B A TRV IRR R - 1
ErHEFH LA AIRESRENRER
REEER A RKERILETE AR EIFTER
HERR o

SN - RNEE TR % B BN A ERIEN
TERBFERAET - ARBERZEME(R
ERRBEL ) NECHASE - RRGZE
MEREZD  RAIBANEENR - ZE8H
MERNHAE L E D ER P FIRRES AT 5203
FEHER T EBET -

R2024F12A31H - AEEBESHEHELT
A b AR E o

AEBEFMRITE  BERRBITLEHE
& o PR20244F Kk 2023F12 A31 8 - sGHAHEME
S PMFEENEHEHERNXMEMEEES
% e

EIEREEEFHIMT

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT

Additions to right-of-use assets: EINFEREEE
Buildings B 44,914 29,930
Land use rights -+ b s PR A 439,247 77,403
Machines 2R 980 10,958
Office and operating equipment MAE RIS 3,351 1,306
Others Hith 31,710 15,179
520,202 134,776
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

17. Leases (Continued)

()

Amounts recognised in the statement of financia
position (Continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB1,194,715,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB1,136,366,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: lease liabilities of RMB1,347,828,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of RMB1,285,345,000).
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities range from 2.85% to 4.90% (2023: from 2.83% to 4.90%).

Lease committed

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group has not entered into
any new leases that are not yet commenced.

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

The profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

17. HE )

()

]J_/\\Eﬁ JL‘V( /R% ﬁﬁ ET E}j frd %E ()

HERRH R R

AN - R2024F12 8310 - BREREEABA
R%1,194,715,000C R REEFE R EEEARKE
1,136,366,000 7T (20234F : EHERHEAGB A
R #1,347,828,0007T AR RA(E AR EE AR
1,285,345,0007T) - R HBEAFEMHEEE
$m#ﬁ%¥%'ﬂ Z e TR E b3
cHEEETSHAREERR -

HEaEMAMMEFIESEEFNENT
2.85%Z%4.90%(20234F : 2.83%=4.90%) °

BEEEE

20244 N2 202312 A31H - AEEIWEET L
R ARERFEE -
RiEZRMHEMEEKERERLN
FEA

BEFIIATEHERRNSE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A310LLFE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FEHEESETERX
Buildings g 130,215 126,543
Land use rights T Hb(F A 16,911 14,847
Machines s 3,341 2,950
Office and operating equipment WNE R E RN 2,160 2,392
Others Hi 15,826 15,279
168,453 162,011
Interest expense (included in finance cost) TR (FIARERKA) 38,112 38,108
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in %5 HAFA & #8851 % (B A S E AL AX
cost of sales and administrative expenses) RITHHEY) 2,881 4,550
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KR BT BEBERENKER
that are not shown above as short-term leases & EM SRR 2 (P AT
(included in administrative expenses) ) 5,604 7,283
Expense relating to variable lease payments RYNAFAEE BRI T E I8
not included in lease liabilities (included in AR (B AITTEREY)
administrative expenses) 16 428

The total cash outflow for leases in 2024 was RMB644,640,000

(2023: RMB254,396,000).

R4 FHEMBR R BEAARKE

644,640,0007T (20234 : A ER#5254,396,0007T) °
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e mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&
18. Investment properties 18. IREWE
Buildings
BF
RMB’000
ARET T

COST A
At 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 72023451 A1 8 &2023F12A31H 424,565
Transfer out to property, plant and equipment (note 16) BRI RE NERE (M) (41,669)
At 31 December 2024 72024128318 382,896
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2023 7220231 A1 H 88,561
Provided for the year FANEE 21,399
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 109,960
Provided for the year FANEE 16,158
Transfer out to property, plant and equipment (note 16) BT BB MRS (MiEE16) (3,893)
At 31 December 2024 72024F12 A31H 122,225
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 72023512831 H 314,605
At 31 December 2024 720245128318 260,671

The Group leases out buildings under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years (2023:
1 to 2 years).

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end
of lease term.

As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB660,742,000 (2023: RMB723,604,000). The
fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the
management of the Group. The fair value was determined based on the
direct comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are of
the view that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment
properties. The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction
prices or current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

AEBERBEEENDHEET  BERAXN - —
gmE  MENL R —FEMF(20284F : —F
EMEF) °

HRAEHENAEEERSBNEEEHE
AEETERBELRHFMAZINERR - HEAR
TEERHEERE R SAEALHRLEREE
BEVRAEEE -

R2024F12A31H - AEBEREMENRTFER
AR #660,742,0007T (20234 : A R #5723,604,000
TT) c R AFERRBREASEEEEFHNMEER
H o ZRAFERBBERLEEGEESL - ARF]
EZRRUDESREMENAFENKEDE -
BEERLBERREBLYEN IR HERIEFRE
RE - NMEEMENQTER  HRAERERHEE
BEREmLRENRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;Z2024%12 A31 B It F[E

18. Investment properties (Continued)

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.17%-4.75%

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised rental
income with the amount of RMB75,710,000 (2023: RMB71,306,000).

All the buildings recorded as investment properties are located in the PRC.
The Group had obtained all the relevant property certificates for buildings as
at 31 December 2024 (2023: relevant property certificates with net book
value of RMB45,451,000 have not been obtained).

As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, no investment property was restricted
to be pledged to secure banking facilities.

18. REW%E

PR E Y RS R AR B AR AR
#  RANMERDT

BF 317%%E4.75%

HE2024F12A31HILFE - AEERRBE WA
AR#75710,0007T (20234 : AR#71,306,0007T)

TR AR EMENMEEFHEMRPEIEAN - B
2024F12 8318 « AEEEESMEEFNERY
¥MBHEE(2023F « MABSEMFEAARE
45,451,0007C K AERAFT B HERE ) o

HE2024512 A31H 202312 A31H » #EKE
YR EIEHBARGRITEE -
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19. Goodwill

The Group carries out its annual impairment test on goodwill by comparing
the recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations used pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five year period with a terminal value related to the future cash flows
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below beyond
the five-year period. The accuracy and reliability of the information is
reasonably assured by the appropriate budgeting, forecast and control
process established by the Group. The management leveraged their
extensive experiences in the industries and provided forecast based on
past performance and their expectation of future business plans and
market developments.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUS”)
identified. The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGUS:

Year ended 31 December 2024
BRAUF12ANBLEE

ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring
(Yizheng) Co.,Lid.

BN EREERERAA

Opening Addition

RMB'000
ARBT R

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

19. BE

AEEBEBEBRRSEFBM(REEELEML D
AR E SRR MR (E - HEBETFERER
ReEf BB RECABETEE
E o RS EEAREEEEMIENRERFY
R BIREF LGRS RETRA - %
ARREREBBNREEERIER T XMIAF
HIRR M ARHE R TS - ZE O ERE R A5
FEBAEEFENEERE R REFEFE
FEERE EEEERTRENEETELSR
WIRBBERR R EFHRIEHE RHHER
HOTERRTR T IROM o

BENEEASEDBRINRCELEM - TXR
ERSELBUMNEEORHE

Impairment Closing

4 "B I LTS

RMB'000
AR#T T

RMB'000
ARBTL

RMB'000
ARBTR

(“ASIMCO Shuanghuan”) ([THhER]) 88,283 - - 88,283

Opening Addition Impairment Closing

£9 "E A EX

Year ended 31 December 2023 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HZABENANALEE AEBTFTL AEBTL NSO ARBTFL
ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. SHREREE(LRE) BB AT

(Shanxi) (“ASIMCO Shanxi") (TEARHLT ) 43622 - (43,622) -

ASIMCO Shuanghuan DHMER 88,283 - - 88,283

131,905 - (43,622) 88,283

Impairment review on the goodwill of the Group has been conducted
by management as at 31 December 2023 and 2024, according to IAS
36 Impairment of assets. For the purposes of impairment review, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculations.

As at 31 December 2023, after taking into consideration the competition
in the market of the products of ASIMCO Shanxi, the Group has
adjusted down the forecast and its cash flow projection. Accordingly,
RMB43,622,000 has been provided for the goodwill for the year ended 31
December 2023.

EIBEIN20234F M 20245E 12 A3 B IR BB &5t
BIZE365% [ B E R E | AL EmEEITRERT ©
RERFME - mENRESEREEREE

R -

2023512318 - & REFEHLUAERNEmM TS
FE ASEERKEAREBSRETRATH - W
Ity EREZE2023F12 A3 B IEFERBEETEA
R #43,622,0007T °
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ARE MIE R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&
19. Goodwill (Continued) 19. B ()
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, based on orders in hand and future 20234 [ 2024F 12 4318 - BIBEFFIE YD
expectation of the ASIMCO Shuanghuan, the Group has forecasted cash FIRERARRMTER - AEEE BB S REWET
flow and calculated value-in-use of ASIMCO Shuanghuan. No impairment SEDFRERNEABME - #E2024F12H318 1E
(2023: Nil) has been provided for the goodwill for the year ended 31 FE - WEN B FEHRERE(2023F : F) °
December 2024.
The key assumptions and discount rate used in the significant CGU value- BEARCELESBUGAEETETTABRRE
in-use calculations are as follows: BRIRZE AT
As at 31 December 2024 12024124318
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WA 8 R 2 (%) ERIZE(%) BiRIAER =R
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TRl IR 3%-4% 29%-30% 15.15%
As at 31 December 2023 72023F12A318
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WA B R F (%) ERIZE(%) BATREIR &
ASIMCO Shanxi s RHLTE Around 0% 16%-19% 14.57%
#10%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan DRFTRIER 0%-11% 31%-33% 15.07%
The budgeted gross margins used in the goodwill impairment testing, AREEREISNEEENEREREERERE
were determined by management based on past performance and its X RENTERENTEEET - IBHKRAEER
expectation for market development. The expected revenue growth rate REFREBEARR DM ERZEETE o BhIE R Ak
and gross profit rates are following the business plan approved by the B MEEMTESERBROTISEME -

Company. Discount rates reflect market assessments of the time value and
the specific risks relating to the industry.
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ll‘l_\é/ﬂjﬁiﬁ% MjEI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
20. Intangible assets 2. B EE
Development Patent Customer
Trademark Software Costs right  relationship Total
[l Bt R =il EFBE @zt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR  ARETR  AR%TR

(Notes a, b)
(Hska~b)

COST KA

At1 January 2023 20231 A1H 77,860 201,254 852,075 541,702 415,561 2,088,452
Adtions NE - 29,056 70,140 - - 99,196
Disposals HE - (36,925) - (5,790) - (42,719)
Currency exchange differences ERIHER - 8,843 52,251 19,703 17,409 98,206
At 31 December 2023 12023%F12A318 77,860 202,228 974,466 555,615 432,970 2,243,139
Aditions NE - 60,846 205,584 4176 - 270,606
Acquisttion of a subsidiary I — B AT - 264 - 2,686 - 2,950
Disposals st - (590) 1) ) - (652)
Currency exchange differences B RES - 6,331) (49,430) (14922) (13,307) (83,990)
At 31 December 2024 12024412R318 77,860 256,417 1,130,599 547514 419,663 2,432,053
AMORTISATION B

At1 January 2023 R2023F1A18 76,289 170,298 179,263 314,455 204,443 944,748
Charge for the year FRk 1571 26,262 131733 53,767 38,985 252,318
Disposals HeE - (36,925) - (5,790) - (42,715)
Currency exchange differences ERGHEE - 8,236 14,199 13,920 9,408 45,763
At 31 December 2023 120238124318 77,860 167,871 325,1% 376,352 262,836 1,200,114
Charge for the year ERk - 28,735 131272 28,107 39,436 227,550
Disposals HE - (264) - (40) - (304)
Currency exchange differences ShHBES - (5,965) (19,199) (11,498) (8,756) (45418)
At 31 December 2024 R20244512A31H 77,860 190,377 437,268 392,921 283,516 1,381,942
IMPAIRMENT HE

At 1 January 2023 12023F1A1H - 812 215,476 401 - 216,689
Additions (Note 8) FE(318) - 290 - - - 290
Disposals HE - - - - - -
Currency exchange differences ERAHES - 48 12,665 24 - 12,737
At 31 December 2023 0235 12A31H - 1,150 228,141 425 - 229,716
Additions (Note 8) RE (M7 - - 26,210 - - 26,210
Currency exchange differences B hEes - (36) (10,562) (18) - (10,616)
At 31 December 2024 120244128318 - 1,114 243,789 407 - 245,310
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2023 12023%12A318 - 33,207 421130 178,838 180,134 813,309

At 31 December 2024 RNAUE12A31A - 64,926 449,642 154,186 136,147 804,801
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20. Intangible assets (continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following period:

Trademark 10 years
Software 4-5 years
Development costs 4 years
Patent right 5-10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

Note a: Total research and development expenses incurred during 2024 was
approximately RMB1,722,021,000 (2023: RMB1,638,363,000), among
which, RMB205,584,000 (2023: RMB70,140,000) related to auto parts
technology project have been capitalised as development costs.

Note b: As at 31 December 2024, management determined that no further
impairment loss to be recognised for the development costs not yet
available for use with the carrying amount of RMB280,453,000 (2023:
RMB344,084,000). In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the key assumptions would not cause the recoverable
amounts to be lower than their carrying amounts.

As of 31 December 2024, the carrying value of development costs ready for
use is RMB169,089,000 (2023: RMB77,046,000). Taking into considering
of the orders in hand relating to these development costs and the market
expectation, the management of the Group concluded that there was
indication for impairment and an impairment of RMB26,210,000 was
recognised (2023: Nil).

21. Investments in associates

20. B EE @)

LB EEAGARNERFR - AFEBTEE
TP EARR A B AR R 8 -

[l 10%F
CINES 4ZE55E
R AR 44
= 5Z104F
PR 106

Mitka @ 20244F FE A ROAB T 25 RS2 49 B AR ME1,722,021,000
TT(20234F = AFR#£1,638,363,0007T) © EFR AR
BT IHHITE B A R205,584,0007T (20234 -
AR¥70,140,0007T) EE AL BF A -

Miatb « 2024512 A31H - EEEAETEREAEAL
AR #280,453,0007T (20234 : A B2 344,084,000
TC) B 1) R AT {45 A A B B AR AN e AR — D URVELES
B o FHEEREER  FrtRRBEEREIUR
RITIRRITEZHBEE - ZTEERBRE TS
HECHHEBEURZEERREFTRRAERE
FHRABRNBERBR TG - EEEME - EMAE
REEOEEIEZEITLEHAKESEE
REIEEE -

HZE2024F12 8318 - Al {F B AR K ANER
& A A R 169,089,000 7T (2023 4F = A R #
77,046,0007T) © EE R HZEREKANEENTF
BRI ENARTIBEY  AEBEEERBTHE
AR SR - WHERREARE26,210,0007T (2023
F:T)o

21. REBEE DN RINKRE

As at 31 December
A12831H

2024 2023

202445 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® Tt AREFTT

Cost of investments in listed associates RETBEATNRERE 448,570 445911

Cost of investments in unlisted associates AIE T E R R AR ER A 90,620 92,278
Share of post-acquisition profits and other SIS T R e mikes

comprehensive income, net of dividends received HBRE WA B 212,192 139,331

Impairment of interest in an associate (note a) RS AR ERRE

(FffzEa) (93,315) -

658,067 677,520

Fair value of listed investments EHREZATE 705,164 313,522




whgmeneERnERam 0058 ()]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIV_\éﬂjﬁiﬁéé M;J-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
21. Investments in associates (Continued) 21. REEE N RINRE (#)
The fair value of the listed investments is determined based on the quoted ETREZAFEDIRBTIRBLSRZFA2THE
market bid price available on the stock exchange of PRC multiplied by the NEBEUASBERBEZBROHEEEE -

quantity of shares held by the Group.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had interests in the 2024 [ 2023F 12 A31H - AREER A TEZ A
following associates: REAREZ -
Place of Proportion of nominal value Proportion of voting
Name of entities registration of registered capital power held Principal activities
ERZH S hEMEREELG EEERAELA TEEH
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 2003F 20245 2023%F
Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control (Note a) The PRC 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%  Manufacture of Network
BRI EREE (M) F equipment
Zhengzhou Suda Industrial Machinery Service Co., Ltd. The PRC 14.87% 19.82% 14.87% 19.82%  Aftermarket services
(*Zhengzhou Suda”) (Note b) H ERRS

WS T ERARHROEBRAT
(eI

Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd. The PRC 47.50% 47.50% 47.50% 47.50%  Manufacture of mining
PR EREREERERAT F machinery
HERER
Yizheng Nahuan Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Providing services for
BAERRBEAR AT H auto spare parts
R TBTHE MRS
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machine Co., Ltd. The PRC 35.00% 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%  Manufacture of mining
MERRDERERNRRRNER AR H machinery
HERER
ZMJ Tezhong Duanya Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Manufacture of mining
N E R EIRERERR AR H machinery
HERERM
Pingdingshan Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery The PRC NA 20.00% NA 20.00%  Sales of hydraulic
Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd. H TER TER products
FRELT SRS REEZERAA HERBEM
Taiyuan Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd The PRC 20.00% NA 20.00% NA Manufacture of hydraulic
AREZEERBERAR H TEA TEA products
KERBER
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in the A ERZE A R R R AR AN R A SRR T

consolidated financial statements. HIER o
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21. Investments in associates (Continued) 21. REEE N RINIRE ()
No associate is individually material. Below is the aggregate information of WHEBLNB)AERIER - A ~NABERRNEE
associates. AR

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILFEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit REFED (O HFBEE 48,320 46,966
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other REESGHMEEKZEERE

comprehensive income - -

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total AEE DG EEBEBRE
comprehensive income 48,320 46,966

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in INEBERN L ERL N TN

these associates R REERTE 658,067 677,520
Notes: Mi3E
@ In February 2023, as communicated with the Board of Nanjing Bestway (@ 2023628  EHEM AR ERESGHRITER
Intelligent Control, the Group assigned one director to Nanjing Bestway B AEBEAAERERERNARIER—BESZEA
Intelligent Control for the interest of its long-term development. The director BARIEEEE ZEEETELHEER itﬁ"*”%ﬁﬁ
is fully involved in Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control’s process in planning FRMIRE  EESLHRAMEREERARNB
of strategies, arrangements of the board of directors, and making other B -FRLEFN  AEBHMRILEEEEEKN
significant operational decisions. By this way the Group has significant FEN A FRREABHRATEAENEHE
influence over Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control. Thus, the investment was EENSERANRBERAINEKE - Bt - REME
reclassified from financial assets at fair value into investments in associates. Al =P ERNRA A FERSFROEEZRE
Accordingly, the accumulated net fair value gain recognised in the other BF| - 7 A ARE283,825,0007T °
comprehensive income was transferred to retained earnings amounting to
RMB283,825,000.
As at 31 December 2024, in view of impairment indicators that the shares R2024F12A318 » ERNREDNRBERERILEE
price of Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control in open market noticeably dropped TRFAMIBREREN D EGEE TS - AEKE
down, comparing to when it was reclassified, and also the network equipment HRIETTERNTBRER - AARHBE AR xS
manufacturing industry was not promising as expected, the Company EITRVERTE - FHRREZEHE A R#593,315,0007T ©

performed impairment assessment on interest in an associate and provided
impairment amount of RMB93,315,000.

(b)  The associate Zhengzhou Suda was successfully listed on A-share market (b) B QBN ERER 202479 A3 B AR £
on 3 September 2024, leading to an decrease in proportion of nominal value B ERNEEL A T o 7R2024F12/8318 -
of registered capital. As at 31 December 2024, the Group has one executive AEBAESNRENNEHTESTHEE — BRI
director out of four in Zhengzhou Suda and participated major strategic BE WSHBAREBAK BEMs AR
decision. In general, the Group still has significant impact over Zhengzhou BMNRENEEATE -

Suda.
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22. Investments in joint ventures 2 NEELENRE

As at 31 December
A128318
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Cost of investments in unlisted joint ventures RIEEMAEEERERNKAKR 27,895 55,895
Share of post-acquisition profits and other DU %% ) R B 2 E S
comprehensive income, net of dividends received R B U 2 37,435 43,769
65,330 99,664
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had interest in the 20244 2202312 A31 8 » REBRIATAE D
following joint ventures: AR
Place of Proportion of nominal value Proportion of voting
Name of entities registration of registered capital power held Principal activities
EREH sk R MERHEELS ERERAELA TEEH
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20234 20245 2023
NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing The PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%  Manufacture of auto-parts
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd. (Note a) i EEAETHN

FERRTHHN R e 2 EBR AR (fiEa)

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face Technology The PRC NA 28.00% NA 28.00%  Manufacture and sales of
Co., Ltd. (“Intelligent Working Face ") (Note b) H TER TER high-tech coal mining
EMNERSETERRRERDA((EEIER]) machines
(FizED) FERFESNRER

REBRTHMN
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22. Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

Notes:

a.  NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. is a joint

venture of ASIMCO Shuanghuan, a subsidiary of the Group.

b.  As of 31 December 2023, Intelligent Working Face was a joint venture of the
Company, that was incorporated by the Group in December 2018. The Group
had joint control on Intelligent Working Face due to the board representation

and voting right.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had acquired the
additional shares of Intelligent Working Face and thus had control over it. This
acquisition is determined to be a business combination. Details could refer to

note 43.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements.

No joint venture is individually material. Below is the aggregate information

of joint ventures.

2. REELENKRE R

PiaE

a. BUAERRGHENRACEEFRATRANEEN
MEAREAHERNAEDRE -

b. 20235 12A4311°

il o

Wi e R BER
Eh

BRI EAREAARRNEG
B HRAREBN2018F12 A - A&
ERESgARKRERY T TEREGRRE

HE2024F12ANBIULEFE AR KESET
YEE A RIREESNR D - AT EL ARG - ik
BT A —BEBEH - 5

BAM 43 o
B A RIS AR AN GRS R RE PR -

B UTRAELENTR

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A3N B LEFE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFTT
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit REE DL %42 %E 6,336 5,891
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other AEFEDGEMEE W SLAEE
comprehensive income - -
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total AREBDGEENELREE
comprehensive income 6,336 5,891
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in REERZESEDENERD
these joint ventures BRE{EAR%E 65,330 99,664
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23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or 23. LA EETERHEEHTABEN

loss/Equity instruments at FVTOCI/Financial EREE UNAVEESELRSH
assets at FVTOCI/Derivative financial instruments AT ARMREESENESTA UL
FEEHELES A HB2EK
HENEHEE (TEEMTA
Equity instruments at FVTOCI AR HEFEBREB T ARLMER
Wek FY IR T A
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2023
202345
RMB’000
ARBTT
Unlisted equity security FEETIRANEES 419,334 408,159
The above unlisted equity investment represents the Group’s equity Fat3E FRERERRAER R —RED I;&Lj
interest in a private entity established in the PRC. The directors of the AL EBREMRE - AR AN ATESZ AR
Company have elected to designate this investment in equity instrument as AEMSAENmES - HE’\—HEEUHHET\%LH
at FVTOCI as they believe that the interest is held for long-term strategic X5 HURIBS IS T AIEET AU A A
purposes and won't be traded in foreseeable future. 20 HEEE A MR EES o
Financial assets at FVTOCI UAFEE G A EMEE
WS REE
As at 31 December
M2A31H
2023
20234F
RMB’000
ARBFT

Notes receivable (Note a) FERZ 2 (MfzEa) 2,502,853 3,848,095

205
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23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or 23.

loss/Equity instruments at FVTOCI/Financial
assets at FVTOCI/Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UAFEEFTEEHS T ABEN
TREE LAV EEFERESE
FAREMEERENERT R A
FEEFEAESHHARLMEEK
BEHNEMEE TEEMIAw®m)

NAFEFEEREESTABRNS
L& E

As at 31 December
MA12H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT

Non-current assets JEMEBEE

Unlisted equity security FE AR AR 5 7,050 6,872

Current assets BN EE

Other financial assets (Note b) Eh e & E (Miskb) 5,454,739 5,265,413

Certificate of deposits TR 361,344 673,023

Equity securities listed in A-shares AR =T IR AR 5 4,183 4,430

Unlisted equity security JE TR AR 1,296 1,296
5,821,562 5,944,162

Notes: MisE

(@ The Group recorded the notes receivable as FVTOCI due to the Group’s
intention to either holding notes receivable to maturity or endorsing or
discounting.

For the year 2024, the Group has endorsed or discounted and then
derecognised notes receivable amounting to RMB8,419,266,000 (2023:
RMB10,070,280,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
risk of the default in payment of the endorsed or discounted notes receivable
is low because all endorsed or discounted notes receivable were issued
and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The related contingent liability is
disclosed in note 42.

(b) Asat 31 December 2024, the other financial assets were as following:

Assets management products (i) BEEBEMG i)
Principal non-guaranteed financial products IHRACRIEER

(@) BRAKERSERRREEDMKS SRR
MASEREEEBRIERARTFEEBEEZSF
AEfb2EE

H2024F - AEEB B EXAIR WA H B IEER
fEUR =3 A R #8,419,266,000 7T (20234 : A R#
10,070,280,0007T) - R AREER A HRFIAA
ERMRNEREEHBERTHTRBTELR
REER  MIANBSEREROEKEEORR A
& - ABRAkE B ED M T2 5 5E -

b) A2024F12A318 » Efh&FVEENT ¢

As at 31 December
MM2A31H
2024 2023

20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
5,204,015 4,660,138
250,724 605,275

5,454,739 5,265,413
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23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss/Equity instruments at FVTOCI/Financial
assets at FVTOCI/Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2024, the other financial assets were as following:
(Continued)

U

(i)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held some assets management
products amounting to RMB5,204,015,000. The assets management
products are the combination of different investment portfolios and are
managed by the financial institutions entrusted by the Group. The fair
value of the assets management products are assessed based on the
fair value changes of underlying investment portfolios.

0On 19 November 2023, the Group announced that one of the asset
management products named Foreign Trade Trust — Huaruan New
Power Selection No. 1-3 Single Fund Trust Plan had a risk of not being
able to redeem on schedule due to the breach of its underlying assets.
As at 31 December 2023, the principle of related asset management
products was RMB272 million, due to the high uncertainty on the
collection of these investments, the management fully impaired the
investment and recorded as net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. As of 31 December 2024, the lawsuit
against breach party was still going on.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognized net fair value
gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to
RMB235,889,000 in total, which were mainly related to assets management
products (Note 8).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as
speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the
hedging accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for
accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss below. The Group has the following derivative financial instruments:

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

23. LAV EESEEES BT ABREN
eREE UAFEETEEHLEH
SFAHMEERENEZTE UAQ
FEEFEEHSBHT ARLME2EK
mHEMEE TEE€MIAw)

AR FEFERZHABRNES R
BE)

MiEE - ()

b)  R20245F12A31H - EEEENT : (4)

()  HA2024F12A31H - AEBEBELHEEEIE
A R#5204,0150007C - ZEEEBIRE
METREEES ERMER - YAAEEZ
MEBMEBEE  LEETRERNAFETIR
BREBREAEAN A FEZE TS -

(i) H2023F11 A19H - AEBEH - HR—KE
BINBET-ERTHNBEIRE—ESE
AN EETEEMABBEEERY  T4&
R HER AR o 20235128318 - 48
BEETREEMNASAARBNEE T
HRKEZERENTREESS - EREY
ZWEELREBURE - YR ELAATFEER
HEFHABENEREEATEEBEFE -
HE20245F12A318 » SHEEHFRRINE
BT o

€ EE2024F12A3NBILFE AEEEZARFE
FTERBHEEHABEHNEREEAFERKSFE
AHARMK2358890007T ' TEMEEETIREMRE
78 (i) -

TTEEmMTA
PTET AEAMOEEH A ® - TRAREHEIER

& o i MOTETENT AP ETRE - B3t
SREEENDBRIFEREE] ARSI

A A2 BRI AR - AEEER THIT
EemTHE:

207



208

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 ;2024412 A31 B 1L &

23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or 23.

loss/Equity instruments at FVTOCI/Financial
assets at FVTOCI/Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial assets

UAFEEFTEEHS T ABEN
TREE LAV EEFERESE
FAREMEERENERT R A
FEEFEAESHHARLMEEK
BEHNEMEE TEEMIAw®m)

PTEEmMT Ewm)
fEemaE

As at 31 December
A12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT

Not designated as hedging instruments TETAHHPTA 34,770 23,533

Designated as hedging instruments EERHHIA
Foreign exchange hedges SN 5 1,616 10,334
36,386 33,867

Derivative financial liabilities

fTEERmas

As at 31 December
A12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT

Not designated as hedging instruments THEAHHIA 79,541 -
Designated as hedging instruments EERYHIA
Foreign exchange hedges SN b 5,017 11,453

84,558 11,453




24. Deferred income tax assets/liabilities

The following are the major deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

24 BIEFIEHEE BEFE
FRERME BETAEHEAE, (Al RESE N

recognized and movements thereon: K
Revaluation  Revaluation  Revaluation
on prepaid of of
lease intangible  property,
Property, payments assets  plantand
plant and anising g equipment
Write-~ Accruals equipment  Intangihle from from  arising from
ECL downof and  Unrealized f assefstax  business  husiness  business  Revaluation
provision inventory  provision profit  difference  difference  combination  combination combinaion  of FVTOCI Others Total
REaft RxBaf ERBQH NATEE
R T fiEth WEEN fiEEM  EHE®
BBk Eithix R¥%E EVEE RAER  BVEE MR R AR
FERE AENE  RBE AEEAE  BEER RBER  ARER Eff RiEER 2ENEER i it
RVBODD  RUBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOOD  RVBOOO  RWBOD0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  AVBOD0  RUBON0
MRET ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
The Goup A&R
At oy 2023 HO%EIAIR 16906 19008 18942 4540 (120%0) 118 (1330 o (8 @7 0T 13419
(Charggedtoproftorloss BB /A (13499 1184 11006 413 0019 %) W B 6,146 - (1968 g
Crarge ootrercompreenshie. — REH2ENENS
income - - - - - - - - - (9.00m - 9.00m
Tansertoetanedcamngs.~~ E0RZEF - - - - - - - - - W -
Curency eichange difences &M AEE 454 5 230 - 38 5 -y 1] - 166 B
At31 December 2023 RABEIRANA 10069 33 w70 8% (1962 KNP 1 O 1 YA
Credtchargg) oproftorloss— BERSEA /(A1) 1% BI0g BTy 0X0) @13 (19 51 19,862 490 - am o B
Crarge oothercompretenshie — REH2ENENS
income - - - - - - - - - 7% - 279
Transfer o reaned eamings &)\REET - - - - - - - - - - - -
Ourency uchange ifferences S FAEE 1526 L5 R ] - (M) @ - 1379 05 - 4080 45
At 31 December 2024 HAUERASIE 139333 5U9 168063 03 ) ] (1209 440 @22 (7503 94t 20643
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24. Deferred income tax assets/liabilities (continued)

The net balances of deferred income tax assets and liabilities after
offsetting are as follows:

24 BEEFIEBEE BfFw)

RIEFFSTEE R BB E BRI G N AR F R
T

As at 31 December
A12831H

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Deferred income tax assets, net FIEFTISHE EFE 372,486 382,679
Deferred income tax liabilities, net FIEFTISH B EF5E (111,843) (1562,475)
260,643 230,204

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB6,433,610,000 (2023: RMB6,300,417,000) available for offset
against future profits. Among these unused tax losses, a deferred tax
asset of RMB24,024,000 (2023: RMB15,991,000) has been recognized
from unused tax loss of RMB160,161,000 (2023: RMB106,605,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused
tax loss of RMB6,273,449,000 (2023: RMB6,193,812,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The expiry dates of the above
unrecognized tax losses are as follows:

RIBEHRR  AEEBERDABEBSBARE
6,433,610,0007T (20234 = AR #56,300,417,00070) 7]
REHREARET - RZEFRDABIEEEF -
AR #160,161,000 7T (20234 A R #106,605,000
TN ABBERBEEEERRECHBEEARE
24,024,000 7T, (20234 : A R #15,991,0007T ) © £
REETERIR HOHE FIRR - B EF R T RE A
TRIEE 18 A R 16,273,449,000 7T (20234 « AR
6,193,812,0007T ) ERIRERR HE & « Ll R MER
FRIEEEMER BN T

As at 31 December
A12831H

2024 2023
202445 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT

31 December 2024 2024912 A31H N/A
TEHA -
31 December 2025 2025912 A31H 1,747 2,014
31 December 2026 2026512 A31H 3,548 3,562
31 December 2027 2027412 A31H 86,605 86,605
31 December 2028 20284F12 A31H 244,302 258,228
31 December 2029 20294F12 A31H 283,281 -
No expiry date = 5,653,966 5,843,403
6,273,449 6,193,812

RBEMR - AEENITEHNTEREZER/ARE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB464,652,000 (2023: RMB418,571,000), in relation to
which no tax asset has been recognised as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

464,652,0007T (20234 : AR #418,571,0007T) *
R KR] e FERR B a1 B] R YEHCHN AT $E 30 B 1
=& RUEEREEREEE -



25. Finance lease receivables

Contractual finance lease receivables
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e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
25. BEHERWRIE

As at 31 December
A128318
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

el =P A RREHERERIA

due from customers 144,200 163,217
Less: loss allowance S R RME (61,134) (62,394)
Finance lease receivables due from customers R PR EHE EW A 83,066 100,823

o IMEREERR
Less: Finance lease receivables due within 1 year BhE T E R RIA (20,662) (21,825)
Non-current finance lease receivables JERE R A T & eI GRIA 62,404 78,998
Certain of the Group’s equipment is leased out under finance leases. All REFBETFRERBERERERM - FTEHEENUA
the leases are denominated in RMB. The terms of finance leases entered EEHE - EHEEFHNF 22104 o
into ranged from 2 to 10 years.
Minimum lease receivables are as follows: HEAEREKFIENT ¢
As at 31 December
A12A831H
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 1 year 1ER 22,516 26,531
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BIE1FEB D R2F 39,432 27,297
Over 2 years but less than 5 years EBIE2 1B D AB 20,636 39,963
Over 5 years R 12,757 21,183
Less: unearned finance income B AR BREREA UL A (12,275) (14,151)
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable HIEREEKHIBIRE 83,066 100,823
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25. Finance lease receivables (Continued) 25.

Present value of minimum lease receivables are as follows:

MEREEWRFIE &)
SERERICERENT :

As at 31 December
R12831H
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Within 1 year 1R 20,662 21,825
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BIBIFEDR2F 36,816 23,974
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BT B DS 13,660 35,569
Over 5 years HRIB5F 11,928 19,455
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable S /K0 & e R IBIRE 83,066 100,823

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease terms. Interest rates implicit in the above finance leases
range from 3.35% t0 5.17% (2023: 3.65% to 5.17%).

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities.

Please refer to Note 46b for the loss allowance of finance lease
receivables.

THEMSHERNARBET  BRANEEHREE
H o Pl @ EMRLRRESFEN T3.35%E5.17%
(20234 : 3.65%%5.17%) ©

HRAEREANEEERSANDEERHE
AEETERRELHMASZINERR -

EEMmEHERKFIENEERE  BL2HEME
46b °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

26. Long-term receivables 26. RHEAEW IR

As at 31 December

A128318
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Long term receivables due from customers e P ey R HAE R 0E 567,439 436,392
Less: loss allowance VER, St = (6,664)
567,439 429,728
Less: Long-term receivables due within 1 year B 1 EREERR REFE A (248,237) (216,230)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year 1123 e R Bl ER1E 319,202 213,498
The amount is expected to be received as follows: FRIBTEHARA LA T B R UG ER
Within 1 year 1R 258,341 230,463
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BiB1FEDR2F 324,040 214,235
QOver 2 years but less than 5 years FBiB2F B D PASE = 3,624
Less: unearned finance income B ARBREE AU (14,942) (18,594)
567,439 429,728
Among the long-term receivables, RMB467,654,000 represents REHERGIEF - AR®467,654,0007C 2 FH E m
long-term receivables from customers arising from sales of goods. $HE W E P &R B EUE © 722024612 A
As at 31 December 2024, the amount of RMB284,597,000 (2023: 318 - AR#284,597,0007C LA{S B B EHER (2023
RMB248,437,000) is secured by letters of credit. Deemed interest income F 0 ARM248,437,0007T) ° RAEIRERRF B)£5T
of RMB4,859,000 calculated based on effective interest method was BEHR B A AR 4859,0007T (20234 : AR
recognised during current year (2023: RMB8,580,000). 8,580,0007C ) A A F [E MR °
The rest amount is interest free, unsecured and repayable in 2 to 5 years. BRTIRIERAEE - BEHRARESFAREE -
As at 31 December 2024, no allowance was provided by the Group (2023: R2024F 12 A31H » AEBEWEG R AR GRIENE

RMB6,664,000) for the long-term receivables. 8 (20234F + AR ¥56,664,0007T) ©
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27. Contract liabilities 27. 6EEE

As at 31 December
A12831H8

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Contract liabilities, current RBEEAE

— Sales of coal mining machinery products — R ERNEE 2,671,040 3,960,530
— Sales of steel and other materials — S R AR E SR E 152,464 140,667
— Sales of auto parts — RET NS 175,118 26,908
— Research and development advance from customers — — & B FETHITHRE A 72,304 46,145
3,070,926 4.174,250

Contract liabilities, non-current kRBEREE
— Research and development advance from customers — — & B THITHRE A 48,118 37,491

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liability are
mainly for non-cancellable contracts, and normally would be recognized as
revenue in next 12 months.

In respect of the business of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the
Group generally receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash
from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product.

In the beginning of the year of 2024, amount of current contract liability
is RMB4,174,250,000 (2023: RMB3,769,859,000), among which
RMB3,713,225,000 were then recognized as revenue within the following
year (2023: RMB3,297,421,000).

Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled within the Group’s
normal operating cycle, are classified as current and non-current based
on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or services to the
customers.

The significant decrease in contract liabilities in the current year was
mainly due to larger revenue amount was recognized during the last
season in 2024 compared to 2023. On the other hand, during the 2024,
the business of manufacture of coal mining machinery confronting
insufficient external market demand, thus the customers slow down their
advance payment pace.

ARAGEEASERCAEPURIREGRES
BRI MARAEFEREMABBNEL -4
RBEIE/TAHEHAR - BEERAKI2EA
NFERRHA °

MBEEHEBERWESTS - ARE—RRTEESR
ATAEPWEER ZE IR AN (HER
A RERELI30%)

2024 FF4) c AR AGBEEAARE
4,174,250,0007T (20234 : A R¥3,769,859,0007T) -
Hrh A R#3,713,225,0007T R B ERER AU A (2023
& AR3,297,421,0007T) °

BHTERAEELELEBHNEENAREA
B REAEEAEFPEREYHRBNREE
T 2BERRBEIERBAE -

REEEREBEXRERD - TERHN20245 K%
—EHRNBASER0BF /KN - 5—FHHE -
R2024%F - REEHMEUER B EEINENHRB R
R BPRERNRIX -



28. Inventories
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &

28. 78

As at 31 December
A12831H

2024 2023

20244F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Raw materials and consumables RE B 1,923,388 2,038,490
Work in progress TR 976,169 952,967
Finished goods BURK B 6,804,655 6,554,669
9,704,212 9,546,126

Inventory provision FERH (250,442) (249,518)
9,453,770 9,296,608

Movement in inventory provision during the year ended 31 December

2024 and 2023 are as below:

H E 20244 22023 F 12 A31 B IE FEMTF SR e
BERMAT

For the year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2024 2023

20244 20234F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H 249,518 216,637
Additional provision in the year FEREEINEAE 7,151 29,986
Currency exchange differences EMHRERE (6,227) 2,895
At 31 December 2024 T2024512 A31H 250,442 249,518
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&
29. Trade and other receivables, contract assets 2. ESREMERFE SEEE

As at 31 December

M12A31H8
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT

Financial assets TREE
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRTE 9,656,275 7,661,570
Less: loss allowance of trade receivables B B S RWGE BB (664,267) (506,328)

8,992,008 7,155,242
Financial asset receivables (Note a) ©BhE B FE YR IE (B aTa) 102,163 500,178
Deposits HES 145,899 83,867
Receivable from disposal of investment HEEEW IR 65,519 65,519
Staff advances EERR 57,743 30,361
Tax expense to be collected from customers FERRPWERFRIES H 522,959 645,012
Others Hib 130,756 153,536
Less: loss allowance W ESTRR (102,794) (99,575)

922,245 1,378,898

9,914,253 8,534,140
Non-financial assets IEEREE
Contract assets (Note b) BREE(MEDb) 886,436 643,730
Less: loss allowance of contract assets B ARG EEIERE (25,315) (11,946)

861,121 631,784

Prepayments to suppliers MR TR A 661,460 625,721
Other tax recoverable HipaTYg B R IE 483,712 561,827

2,006,293 1,819,332
Total trade and other receivables, contract assets 2B 5 R EAMFEWGRIE - AR EEBEE 11,920,546 10,353,472




BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. Trade and other receivables, contract assets
(Continued)

The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables net of loss
allowance presented based on the revenue recognition date at the end of
each reporting period:

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

2. B REMEBEKRTE - SREEE &)

AT AEREHRRBARZBRZ2INE HRYK
IR B RRB R AR DT

As at 31 December
A128318

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETTT

Within 180 days 180K A 7,121,402 5,564,404
Over 180 days but within 1 year BiB180KEB1FER 1,126,972 943,325
Over 1 year but within 2 years BIEBFE2FR 594,099 586,469
Over 2 years within 3 years HBIEFH3FNR 149,535 56,697
Over 3 years HRiB3F - 4,347
8,992,008 7,155,242

Notes: MIsE

a. Asat 31 December 2024, the Group holds financial asset receivables
amounting to RMB102 million (2023: RMB500 million) purchased from a
third party securities company. The estimated annual yield rate is 2.85%
(2023: 3.6% and 3.1%, of two products respectively) and the financial asset
receivables will be due in March 2025 (2023: March 2024 and September
2024, of two products respectively).

b.  Under Manufacture of coal mining machinery segment, nearly 10% percent
of the contracted amounts was retained, due to the warranty provision in the
contracts with customers. The management disclose the retention fee as
contract asset. The Company will receive the retention fee if no major quality
issues happen during agreed period (normally 1 year).

As of 31 December 2024, the balance of retention fee net of loss allowance is
RMB861,121,000 (2023: RMB631,784,000), all expected to be received in
one year. The management expect no major quality issue for all the products.

R2024F12A318  AEBEBE=FBFFRAFE
JEU S B E E A RE1028 BT (20234 - AREES00
BEIT) ° 1510202553 A (20234 : MEE M BIR
20244F 3 3 2202449 A ) BB ER - HEEE S R
5T /52.85%(20234F : M{EE D B 53.6%53.1%)

REMEERR - ARNEEPRINERPERE
R FRT10%H & RS BERE - EEERRE
ERBRERAREE - ARBEHRCEE/IFIA
REEBRMEME  ARBHEIREER -

HE2024F12A318 MR EBHEREBHEENRBEE
e A AR 861,121,000 7T (20234 : AR
631,784,0007T) * TEHAR —F A2 - EE[E
EHBERHYTEEEAEEMAE -
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29. Trade and other receivables, contract assets

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The Group normally grants a credit period of 30 days to 180 days (2023: 30
days to 180 days) to customers effective from the revenue recognition date.
As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate gross amount of RMB1,782,820,000(2023:
RMB1,106,755,000) which are past due as at the reporting date and
assessed collectively based on provision matrix. Out of the past due balances,
RMB1,247,756,000 (2023: RMB893,623,000) has been past due 90 days or
more and is not considered impaired. With reference to the historical records,
past experience and also available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information to those customers, the management of the Group does not
consider these receivables as credit-impaired as these customers have good
wills and ability to settle the debts.

As at 1 January 2023, carrying amount of trade receivables and contract
assets from contracts with customers is RMB6,530,986,000.

Movement of loss allowance on trade receivables and other receivables,
contract assets:

2. EFREMEWFIE SRAEE®)

feE - ()

AEBRERTEEIKRE180K (20234F : 30K E
180K) HE B ER - B U ATERR B BARR A 4K - 102024
F12A3E AR EEE S REWRREHRTE
UG BR SR 42 %8 A A R #51,782,820,000 7T (2023 4F = A
R ¥1,106,755,00070 ) + Z SRR KR MRS B E
i - WIRIE BB T BTG - fEa
BREET - AR BE1,247,756,000 7T (20234 : AR
893,623,0007T ) B8 HAQO K sk LA | » B AR MR B
B E2ERADE  BALHBEEBZSEFLN
EEEIBHAMEEERE  AEEEREERAZ
SRUFBYEEERE  BAZSEFERER

BENBEE -

M2023F1 A18 - REER PRI A R ERERR
K& FAE/BREE A AR %6,530,986,0007T °

B SRR RS - & RAENIRE
2D

For the year ended 31 December

BENR2ANALEE
2024 2023
20244F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Opening balance FUER 617,849 676,166
Provided/(Reversed) during the year FERNEE(BEE) 171,180 (57,197)
Write off sy (1,767) (3,656)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE —FEI I B A B 7,537 -
Currency exchange differences BT (2,423) 2,536
Closing balance FRER 792,376 617,849
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
30. Cash and cash equivalents/bank deposits 30, RERBELEEY BITER

As at 31 December

M12A318
2024 2023
2024F 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESLEEY
Cash Re 166 654
Bank deposits with original maturity within REER A=A A TERITER
three months or less 2,987,419 4,728,579
Cash and cash equivalents Re NRIBEEEY 2,987,585 4,729,233
Bank deposits - current RITER—RB
Pledged bank deposits EIEIREEITFR 1,026,112 1,359,043
Bank deposits with original maturity over FRE|EH A =188 A E/RITER
three months 904,913 582,696
Restricted cash ZREIRE 3,540 4,157
1,934,565 1,945,896
Bank deposits — non-current RITER > RS
Bank deposits with original maturity over one year — EZI|HI B A —F LA FEVRITIEDR 980,022 1,468,712

AT E R BRI T IRIT AR EERTT A S B
ERRENRFS  AUESIEARDEE - B
EIRRITIF IR S FIREF B - 72024512 A 31
B+ FF RN F0.1000%Z 2.7500% (20234 : & 7|
$R0.0220%Z2.7500%) °

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates
which ranged from 0.1000% to 2.7500% per annum as at 31 December
2024 (2023: 0.0220% to 2.7500% per annum).

IRITEIEMISF R E - R2024F12/8318 -
£ R A F0.1000% Z 3.5500% ( 2023 4F = 4F F| =
0.0220%%2.7500%) °

The bank deposits carry interest at market rates which ranged from
0.1000% to 3.5500% per annum as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
0.0220% to 2.7500% per annum).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 ;2024412 A31 B 1L &

31. Assets classified as held for sale N. DEAFEHENEE

As at 31 December
MA128318

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Building EgF 55,163 55,163
Land use right + Hth{s FA A 32,432 32,432
Plant and machinery R M i 2% 3,477 3,477
91,072 91,072
Note: the Group listed all the related assets expected to be disposed in 2025 from fisr : ANEER2024F12 A31 B3 TEER 2025 F HE K
long term assets under “assets classified as held for sale” as at 31 December FEHBEEERRIPEETIIN S ERBIELE
2024, AEET -
32. Trade and other payables 32. ES R HMENSRE

As at 31 December
MA128318

2024 2023

20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Notes payable BN EE 3,029,775 3,521,748
Trade payable (Note a) B 5 e 308 (fifata) 8,274,732 7,047,194
11,304,507 10,568,942

Salary and bonus payables JEt S migEe 627,274 499,136
Deposits (Note b) HEACEED)) 132,918 88,963
Interest payable FETR 2, 28,546 35,450
Other taxes payable E b e R A 706,758 927,921
Restrictive shares payable (Note 38) JEAS PR I A% 22 (B 7£38) = 52,427
Factoring payable (Note c) IR IBFEA R (P aEc) 47,803 68,546
Accruals TEIR A 503,075 245,412
Other payables (Note d) H b e < 08 (i 7Ed) 581,329 429,565
2,627,703 2,347,420

Total trade and other payables B 5N E M e R IBARE 13,932,210 12,916,362
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32. Trade and other payables (Continued)

Notes:

@

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on
invoice date as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

2. ES R HMESRE

i

@ AT AR20245 [2023F 12 AN B Z B HH 25
BE 5 R IARRER DT

As at 31 December

A128318
2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Within 1 year 1R 7,946,772 6,729,748
Over 1 year HBiE1F 327,960 317,446
8,274,732 7,047,194

Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and
other services.

The Group has continued to recognised trade receivables that have been
forward to financial institution and corresponding liability due to the resource
provision in the factoring contracts.

Other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment, rental payables and payables for other services.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30-90 days (2023: 30-90
days).

b FIEECHERAKEESREMRENTS

kRAREARPNERGEFMELENEEAE -
O EiENFEIZRERNEENE  BE&RE
EVENTFOR © RS R E A ARTSH R 3RIE

€ REERZFHRIEEA30Z90H (20234 : 30290
H) -
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33. Borrowings 33.B6&
As at 31 December
M12A31H8

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Non-current: JEBNER :
— Bank borrowings — secured or guaranteed (Note a) —$R1T{& & — APk G EF (Mitra) 1,284,372 1,287,723
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIEE — &R 3,366,597 5,385,000
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings A SEENHAE E MBS o (2,019,554) (513,000)
2,631,415 6,159,723

Current: BNES

— Bank borrowings — secured or guaranteed (Note ) —$R1T{& & — AP G EF (Miira) 422,491 220,656
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIEE —EIKH 962,187 409,858
Add: current portion of non-current borrowings 0 FEENERE B A BNHER SR 2,019,554 513,000
3,404,232 1,143,514
Total borrowings EE4RzE 6,035,647 7,303,237
Secured or guaranteed(Note a) BHEB LB ER(KrEa) 1,706,863 1,508,379
Unsecured T3 4,328,784 5,794,858
6,035,647 7,303,237
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEBE 962,187 471,858
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 5,073,460 6,831,379

6,035,647 7,303,237
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33. Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

@

As at 31 December 2024, SEG Automotive Germany GmbH (“SEG”) beard a
loan amounting to RMB1,128,855,000 secured by SEG’s assets as follow:

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &

33.88®

P

@ HZ=2024F12A31H + SEG Automotive Germany GmbH
([SEGJ) A TFISEGE EEHEM - AEARE
1,128,855,000 T Y B 5K -

As at

31 December
2024
20244

12A31H
RMB’000

AR¥TT

Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 142,422
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAb W TRIE 1,421,646
Investment in subsidiaries of SEG ASEGHIH B A FIHIIRE 1,660,700
Property, plant and equipment L E 174,564

Others Hith

873,755

4,273,087

Except for the loan above, as at 31 December 2024, the balance of
bank borrowings totalling RMB164,818,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB195,792,000) were secured by the pledge of the land use rights and
property, plant and equipment.

In respect of bank loans with carrying amount of RMB5,186,838,000 as at
31 December 2024, the Group is required to comply with certain financial
covenants, relating to mainly limits for asset-liability ratio and conditions for
further financing activities. The Group has complied with these covenants so
far and expects no breach before maturity.

BIA BN » 202412 A31H - SRITEERH
A FHARK164,818,0007T (2023512 A31H « AR
195,792,0007T ) T HbfF FAMELA R % « BB K&
R -

b)  BER20245F12 531 B ERTE & %8 2 A R #55,186,838,000
THRITERME - AREAETETHBRL
TESREERBERRYE-SREBDNGTE
e AEERAAMALDETRERY  YEME
M~ EHRENER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 ;2024412 A31 B 1L &

33. Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Carrying amount repayable:

33. 88@m
BIEE : (48)

As at 31 December
M128318

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT

AR THIHIRE R RE(E

Within one year —FR 3,404,232 1,143,514

More than one year, but not exceeding two years BB —FE BB E 1,904,318 2,989,430

More than two years, but not exceeding five years BEMEETBARE 727,097 3,170,293

6,035,647 7,303,237

Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities W RBAEE NN EEE (3,404,232) (1,143,514)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FERBBEE AT 2,631,415 6,159,723
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the AEBEEEMNERAEN TIEETHE -

following currencies:

As at 31 December

M12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
RMB AR 4,493,602 5,990,650
Euro (‘EUR") BT (TETl) 1,542,045 1,312,587
6,035,647 7,303,237
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted REFBEENERFX(IMESERARFIX)EEW
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: T
As at 31 December
M12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
Effective interest rate per annum BEREFRE
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 1.05%-3.80% 1.05%-3.80%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 1.85%-5.61% 2.20%-5.23%
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e mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&
34. Provisions 34. 15
Onerous Restructuring
Warranty contracts provision Total
w1& BaaE EARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR®ETRT ARETT
At 1 January 2023 7202351 A1H 191,319 137,853 261,731 590,903
Additional provision in the year FREBIMEE 184,579 40,389 - 224,968
Reversal/utilisation of provision BE B AR (163,449) (100,753) (20,117) (284,319)
Currency exchange differences Bl 2,869 5,322 18,648 26,839
At 31 December 2023 PA2023%F12A31H 215,318 82,811 260,262 558,391
Current portion BIEREE 213,353 58,493 260,262 532,108
Non-current portion JERNHAEL > 1,965 24,318 - 26,283
215,318 82,811 260,262 558,391
At 1 January 2024 720241 A1H 215,318 82,811 260,262 558,391
Additional provision in the year FREBINEE 129,897 7,704 52,983 190,584
Reversal/utilisation of provision (o] B FR A (132,984) (64,400) (256,074) (453,458)
Currency exchange differences Eik S ERE (4,035) (1,536) (4,227) (9,798)
At 31 December 2024 PA2024%12 A31H 208,196 24,579 52,944 285,719
Current portion BIEREE 208,196 11,893 52,944 273,033
Non-current portion JEBNHAEL > - 12,686 - 12,686
208,196 24,579 52,944 285,719

The warranty provision which represents management’s best estimate
of the Group’s liability under warranty periods granted to customers
(who purchased coal mining machinery and auto parts), based on prior
experience relating to defective products claims.

Onerous contracts provision represents management’s best estimate of
the expected contract loss, based on the forecast performance relating
to the contracts. The expected contract loss relates to sale contracts
mostly of auto parts with customers, under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligation exceed the economic benefits to be received due to
anticipated increase in certain production costs.

Restructuring provision represents the costs relating to the spin-off of
SEG group and restructuring plant plan from the former group and the
restructuring plan relating to SEG group.

REBFEEEEEREBTEARBEERPFRIAH
MRS HAKERABERBEERE BTG
MEPETREBANABNRER-R -

BaraREBREEEEREAESRNEARE
HEM A RBENREMGG - BRAREAIRMA
EPMAETHEEARAR  REZSER &
RIERARLE A FERA LT - BITERBA N A %MK
AHBIB RSB -

BEEBRIERRSEGEE BN SEN TR EEME
FHEILAK B RISEGER B E A AT BIHORNA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

35. Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into agreements with certain equipment leasing
companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

iy the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated to be
used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing companies
and received the payments from leasing companies;

i) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof supports to
the end-user customers;

iii)  the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts due
by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the end
user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment leasing
companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognize
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-users of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate end-
users.

The transferred trade receivables and associated liabilities were offset to
the extent of the settlement by the ultimate end-users of the equipment.

35.

TREESE

AAFEETREHEER R MR A PR e -
el A

) AEBERZEREARHERESE (%Em
IR AP A ) RAMHE A R

i) REMEARHERBRTEWAS

i)y W& AP AR B e e R s
ERRENR - AEEREEAMNKRIRRFEN
FEARIMAGENTHESSE -

ENXHNEE - AEERRARAFORERHE
ERTHRBENEREMBRRTPERRKTIE &
ERGAPEEBERSHESRTE -

REEmAPHMEENS - CEENE S EYGK
AREREAED TR -

As at 31 December

MA128318
2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
Transferrable trade receivables a2 L 5 el ZIa 445,802 212,812
Less: allowance B HEE (13,951) (13,951)
431,851 198,861
Liabilities associated with transferrable trade HAEEE SRR B A
receivables 445,802 212,812
36. Employee benefit obligations 36. EEBREE
As at 31 December
MA128318
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Defined benefit pension plan (a) TEREM RIS E@) 122,865 116,337
Other employee benefit provisions Hib g EEM B 174,512 181,795

297,377 298,132
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36. EER/FET @
(@) TrEEARKEETE

36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan

The Group’s post-employment benefits include defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
or unfunded pension systems or systems financed by insurance
premiums.

The major pension and post-retirement medical care plans are
described below. These plans are subject to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risks, interest fluctuation risks and capital market risks.

Germany

The pension scheme SEG VORSORGE plan (former Bosch VORSORGE
Plan), which was introduced on January 1, 2006, is a defined
benefit including interest with salary-based contributions. The SEG
VORSORGE Plan is partly funded via an external pension fund. The
value of the assets of the external pension fund is offset against the
pension obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method.
During the vesting period, employer and employee contributions are
added to the assets of pension fund up to the tax-allowed ceiling.
Contributions that exceed the tax-allowed ceiling are allocated to
the unfunded obligation. The benefit amount rises in line with the
performance of the pension fund. Grandfather provisions were
transferred to the former Bosch VORSORGE Plan. For a constantly
decreasing number of members of the workforce in the vesting
period, a transitional arrangement guarantees a fixed rate of return
on the defined benefit obligation. On reaching retirement, or in the
event of occupational disability or death, the earned benefits are paid
out in the form of a lump-sum payment, pension payments, or a
lifelong annuity.

India

The Gratuity Plan in India provides a lump sum benefit to employees
upon leaving for any reason. The benefit is 15 days of the final
base salary for each year of service upon retirement or termination
provided the employee has worked for the company for at least 5
years. In the case of death or disability during active employment,
there is no minimum service requirement to receive the benefit, and
the lump sum amount is 30 days of the final base salary for each
year of service plus 21 days of the final base salary for each expected
future year of service had the death or disability not occurred. There is
a benefit ceiling of one million Indian rupees except for management
employees hired before 7 May 1998 who have no benefit ceiling.

REBRR R BN B EBHAE 8 ERE
FEHE] o ERAE M B ARSI RIR
TERIHREBEHESR

TREARE RERERBRREENBERE
T - ZEFEEERERR (GRS
B MERBRBREEATSRR) o

2]

SEG VORSORGE &t # iR & & &1 %/ ( AT Bosch
VORSORGEZT &) 7200641 A1 H#EL - A
FEHR(BEERNE) NTE®EF - SEG
VORSORGEGFTEIR/INBRINE ESRE—F »
B4 o IMNBERSESWEEREMERER
BNEDATEMNRRSETIEN - REBH
N BEEREEMEREMARKESESHNE
EEZEHBERH LR - BHEHBEAHF LR
NHFEDEEARERET - BFCEAER
REESRIBILI - TEPIEXC BEEA
Bosch VORSORGERTE! - FLHASREHINSE) S15K
BRERLCNBERNE - BEBELTHHRET
BEMNETHEERHE - NEKSHETE
BUERK B IREE - FTBREREVAB RIS A — )
o ORRESMRBRIFEH TR -

EE

EEREKR ST EAREMRARANES R
H—RMZHET - WZEBAARBNE
E5F - @RARBRRIKIEERZEES IR
BEEAZRERGTNISEEHH o WAERE
FREAR & i sk B Ak - B URERAE A B (K
RISFHESR - mM— XN RSB AT R
HEE A ZHRERFN0BEFHH - 5 sl
M ERRANES —BHRERGFEN =
BEERFH2IBEHH - BF ERA—AEBHE
Bl WERR1998F5 A7 HRIERNEE E R
B s WEER LR -
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36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B BHERME

36. EE?E*U%E(%)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EREMRARKEETE (2
The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is BHRANETAEFENERNTRMZS
presented in the following table:
Impact of
minimum
Present value Present value funding
Fair value of of funded of unfunded requirement/
plan assets obligations obligations asset celling Net value
IR
2R/
SEgEY HR FEER BELR
ATE BEfEE BRE a7 %A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT  ARETR
At 1 January 2023 1202351 A1A 315,512 (431,136) (1,364) - (116,988)
Current Period: ZREIR - 12,682 (41,695) (83) - (29,09)
Current service cost RERIH A - (23,828) (54) - (23,882)
Interest income (expense) IV ONG:SD) 12,682 (18,272) 29 - (5,619)
Past service cost and gains and BERBRAAREE R R
losses on settlements B8 - 405 - - 405
Remeasurements: BHEE: 21,938 (1,667) 67 - 20,338
Return on plan assets, excluding HEEELR(TRETAF
amounts included in interestincome UK AR £ %E) 21938 - - - 21,938
Loss from change in demographic BAODRREBELHER
assumptions - - (1) - (1)
Loss from change in financial BN BBRREDELHNEE
assumptions - (7,906) (59) - (7,969)
Experience gaing mEplas - 6,239 127 - 6,366
Currency translation differences EEhEEE 17,112 (25,464) 63) - (8,415)
Contributions: M 11,487 - - - 11,487
Employers Ex 11,487 - - - 11,487 |
Payments from plans: FERE e (45,772 54,951 63 - 9,042
Benefit payments BRI (45,772) 54,951 63 - 9,242 |
Others Hfth (3471) (68) 634 - (2,905)
At 31 December 2023 #2023 12A318 329,488 (445,079) (746) - (116,337)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
36. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36. BEEBAEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) (@ FRERAEARD s
The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is EEENETAETFENRENTRAZS
presented in the following table: (Continued) (%)
Impact of
minimum
Presentvalue  Present value funding
Fair value of of funded of unfunded requirement/
plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net value
BEMR
EX/
FTEEE i3 E e BELR
ZAYE EffRE BERE ¥ B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥ET NG AR¥ETT
At1 January 2024 R2024F1A18 329,488 (445,079) (746) - (116,337)
Current Period: RERR 11,307 (40,061) (79) - (28,833)
Current service cost RERASHA = (24,046) (55) - (24,101)
Interest income (expense) IV ONGR) 11,307 (16,015) (24) - (4,732
Remeasurements: EEtE 20,497 (15,547) (70) - 4,880
Return on plan assets, excluding STEIBERB(TEIEA
amounts included in interestincome ~ F 2 ARLE) 20,497 - - - 20,497
(Gain from change in demographic BAOfRRE
assumptions BRI - 10 - - 10
(Gain from change in financial Sl e
assumptions EERE - 3,082 29 - 3,111
Experience loss mEEE = (18,639) (99) - (18,738)
Currency translation differences EHHEEE (12,988) 20,983 37 - 8,032
Contributions: e 190 - - - 190
Employers Ex 190 B 2 3 190 |
Payments from plans: RAFTEIMAR (31,897) 41,100 - - 9,203
Beneft payments S (31,897) #1,100 - - 9,203 |
At 31 December 2024 R204E12A31R 316,507 (438,604) (858) - (122,865)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z= 2024412 A31 B IL &
36. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36. EERANET ®
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EREMRARKEETE (2
For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation REZFHEME @ EREEMNEEAIRE ] B
can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BEERNT

At 31 December 2024

12024512531 H
Present
value of the Plan Other Unrecognized

RMB’000 obligation assets assets asset Provision
ARET BERRE FHEIEE HitEE ARIEE Bk
Germany =k 381,237 (279,815) - - 101,422
India EE] 37,853 (35,825) - - 2,028

419,090 (315,640) - - 103,450

At 31 December 2023

M2023F12A31H
Present
value of the Plan Other  Unrecognized
RMB’000 obligation assets assets asset Provision
AREFT EERE HEIEE HtEE KBREE BtE
Germany = 389,555 (293,802 - - 95,753
India EfE 35,059 (34,644) - - 415

424,614 (328,446) - - 96,168




36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

BINR AR E A B IR A F] 20245 3
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The plan assets comprised the following components:

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &

36. EERANET )

(@)

ERREMEREEE )

FEIEEBRENUTIEE ¢

As at 31 December 2024
720245128318

Germany India
=E BE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
BALLEF BALEEF
Equity instruments AT E 39% -
Debt instruments EBEIA 44% -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIRESZEEY 2% -
Others EAh 15% 100%
100% 100%
As at 31 December 2023

2023128318
Germany India
= ENE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
BOLLET AN BT
Equity instruments AT A 44% -
Debt instruments BT E 46% -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 NMIRESZEY 4% -
Others Hith 6% 100%

100% 100%

2al
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36. EERFET @)
(@) TEEEMEAREEE @)

ITERERRET -

36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

As at 31 December 2024
7202451283180

Germany India

EE EE

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

BoLEEF BoLEE

Discount factor BRI = 3.40% 6.70%
Projected salaries growth rate TERIE B R 3.00% 8.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERARARSIERE 2.00% N/A
i

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

TERERRWET :

As at 31 December 2023
H2023F12A31H

Germany India

= ENE

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

Epayid &3 EpaEd &2

Discount factor BRI = 3.20% 7.10%
Projected salaries growth rate TE RIS R 3.00% 8.00%
Projected pension growth rate FEBER ARSI R X 2.00% N/A

TEH
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36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

To determine the discount factor in the Euro zone, reference was
made to bonds rated AA by at least one rating agency. This was
reviewed as of the reporting date. In all regions the discount factor
was determined in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

Projected salaries are future salary increases estimated on the basis
of the economic situation and inflation, among other things.

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &

36. EEBFEFXw®
(@) TrEEFARKRETEIE

REENBTERNOMREE 22K H—HF
BB RARNES - WENHRE B HREERN -
Pt MY BAER I R TR IR BB & 7R 1957 (8
BRRNETE -

TERIF BN TR IR (L b B 48 B S B AR b & T AV
RIEHHEMEIE -

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRAOT
Germany =
As at 31 December 2024
72024512 A31H

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
GEd -1 EEE BRRRED
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BALLEF Epalad &2
Discount factor BhIR A== 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 1.5 Increase by 1.7
0.518E 2 % T#15 EF17
Projected salaries growth rate TERIH BN S & R 0.25 percentage points  Increase by 0.1  Decrease by 0.1
0.25(E 8 2 2 E&#80.1 T#30.1
Projected pension growth rate TERRARSIGRE 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.2  Decrease by 0.2
0.25(E 8 2 2 £0.2 T#80.2
Life expectancy JEHRE S Oneyear Increase by 0.4 N/A

—f L£F30.4 i A

2o
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36. EERFET @)
(@) TEEEMEAREEE @)

India ENE

36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024
12024512431 H

Change in

assumption

Decrease in
assumption
BRERD
Percentage
Figures
Epaled &2

Increase in
assumption
R &4 Hn
Percentage
Figures
Epalad &2

BRREE

Discount factor BhIRE = 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 2.7 Increase by 2.8
05EE 52 T#82.7 L7828
Projected salaries growth rate T8 B B 18 = R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.9  Decrease by 0.9
0.25{8 &5 2 B E3Ro9 T30.9
Projected pension growth rate  FERLRK &I R = 0.25 percentage points = =
0.25{8 &5 2 B - -
Life expectancy TEEAS Oneyear Increase by 0.2 N/A
—5 0.2 TER
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FTERBEREZOT -
Germany EE
As at 31 December 2023
12023F 12 A31H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
(EEeE) R N R
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BAOLLET BOLET
Discount factor BhIR A Z= 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 1.9 Increase by 2.2
0.51E & 7 & T#1.9 #22
Projected salaries growth rate TEBIF BN R & 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.251E & 2> Bh 15301 T#50.1
Projected pension growth rate TERRAREIGRE 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.2 Decrease by 0.2
0.251E & 2> Bh #30.2 T#50.2
Life expectancy JEEAS S One year Increase by 0.5 N/A
—& 505 TEA
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36. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

36. EERAET )

(@ EREREFEKRSFTE @

India HNE
As at 31 December 2023
720235124318

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
RE& & & RE&IE AN R
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BOLEF BOLLEF
Discount factor BLhIR A 2= 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 2.9 Increase by 3.1
0.51EE 72 T#2.9 #3341
Projected salaries growth rate TBBIF BN R & 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.0 Decrease by 1.0
0.251E & 724 £#1.0 T#1.0
Projected pension growth rate TERRRSIG R 0.25 percentage points - -
0.251E & 57 2 - -
Life expectancy TEEAS One year Increase by 0.2 N/A
—% £#0.2 A

(b) Defined contribution plan

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB188,922,000 (2023:
RMB175,932,000) represents contributions paid to the retirement
benefits scheme by the Group in respect of the current year.

(b) FTEFFE S

AEETEMBARNEER RAHhTEBTEZNEH
REBHRNENEIKE - BEBARAZKETE
FXARENE T L PIFR KR MET BIHR - AE BB R
BA - ARBEERREN BIEME—RE ARG
L AT ESKAOHR -

P A A AR A A R %188,922,0007T (20234 -
AR#175,932,00070 ) IEAEBR A FE ERIKE
FET AR HR -

235



236

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 ;2024412 A31 B 1L &

37. Share capital

Authorised, issued and fully paid

EE - DEITRAR

37. BRA

Listed A Shares
LmAR
Number of

shares Amount

RG#E &8
‘000 RMB’000
TR AR®TR

Listed H Shares
LHHER

Number of

shares Amount

RG#E £

‘000 RMB’000
TR AR®TR

Total
o
Number of
shares Amount
REGBE &8
‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%ETR

At1 January 2024 202451518
— Ordinary shares of RMB1 each —-BRAR¥IT 1,538,175 1,538,175 243,234 243,234 1,781,409 1,781,409
LER
Forfeited restricted shares pelGiolFGletiES (342) (342) - - (342) (342)
Exercise of share options (Note 38) 1T EERR#E (F97E38) 4,333 4,333 - - 4,333 4,333
At 31 December 2024 20245124318
— Ordinary shares of RMB1 each —-BRAREIT 1,542,166 1,542,166 243,234 243,234 1,785,400 1,785,400
Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
LAl _ETHRR 45t
Number of Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount Shares Amount
BiEE &8 BROHEA &8 BROHEA ko
‘000 RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000
TR ARETT TR ARETT TR ARETT
Authorised,issued and fully paid EE  BEITRER
At 1 January 2023 7202351 A1H
— Ordinary shares of RMB1 each -BRAREIT 1,535,411 1,535,411 243,234 243,234 1,778,645 1,778,645
Forfeited restricted shares SR URE IR il AR = (1,728) (1,728) - - (1,728) (1,728)
Exercise of share options(Note 38) 1TIFEB RS (B EE38) 4492 4492 - - 4492 4492
At 31 December 2023 20231274318
— Ordinary shares of RMB1 each —BRAREIT 1,538,175 1,538,175 243,234 243,234 1,781,409 1,781,409
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38. Share option

Employee Option Plan

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved
by shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, The
First A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and The First H Shareholders
Class Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the
Share Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of
options to the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company.
Under the plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain
performance standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the board’s
discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the
plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has provided
Nil (2023: RMB1,326,000) in respect of these options as share-based
payment expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 4,332,960 shares were
exercised under the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme. Exercisable
shares at the year end of 2024 are Nil (2023: 4,332,960 shares).

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date
on which the options were exercised was RMB12.51 and RMB12.71
respectively. In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was RMB12.55
(2023: RMB11.50).

As of 31 December 2024, there were no outstanding options under the
Share Option Incentive Scheme.

e MRS R R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

38. iB IR RE

e & Rt 2

& PA20195F10 A 21 B 21TAI20194F 28 — K ER FF A%
BARE 20196 5 — RARRIBRIAR B K2 20194
B —IRHIEFE BB K& AR S ARG AR 22 HA 4
BEEE o RIFREHEMEE  ARFEER
AERBEE R T LB EE B E A D EARAR
T o BIBZTE - T HEEROBEEETEE
TRBIZER T ERE BEZTEN2EAE
FERBHAT - ARECAEARESREINS
HARZ AT B S R B AT (] AR F 5 o

17 57 8 H) B B HUR M A R R R EAA 2 B E MR
BRME - —KHE - BRER12(EABEATT
e -

REZE2024F 128318 IEFE  ARRIEHZEH
ERTIRZS L (B 22023 : AR¥1,326,0007C)EA
AR BEM MRS -

B E2024F12 A31H IEFE - B54,332,9608% 8817
BAR20195 Ne = HARE B BN =T EVIET T o 120245 FF
[ER R 1TERD AZ (20234 ¢ 4,332,960/%) °

KRB A B BT T 2 BRI UM (B 5 B
BARE1R251ITTRARB12717T - MERTHEN
EREmE - NMTER RN INEEERERARE
12.557T(20234F = ARME11.507T) ©

R2024F12A31 8 - IREMESEE SR T E &R
RITEHHARE -
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38. Share option (Continued)
Employee Option Plan (Continued)

The following table discloses movement of the Company’s share options
held by the Group’s directors and employees during the year:

38.

B
e & AT 2

WER - TREBASEEERESRANALH
RIRHBHR VR

Number of share options
BRE"E
2024 2023
20244 20234
Details =3
Opening balance as at 1 January M A1B E9is 4,332,960 5,800,600
Exercised during the year RERTTER (4,332,960) (891,000)
Forfeited during the year RERRIR = (576,640)
As at 31 December M12A31H - 4,332,960

Restricted share incentive scheme

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a
restricted share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a
total number of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted
to the selected 186 employees (including directors) of the Group (the
“Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the
date of the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares
to the date when all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are
unlocked or repurchased and cancelled.

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to
the Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant
and the unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled
to acquire the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted
shares after the lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to
the fulfilment of the relevant conditions under the Scheme.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price
of RMB5.88 per A share under the Scheme, and the amount of
RMB248,724,000 cash received from the Participants was recorded as
trade and other payables. In 2023 and 2024, upon the first unlocking
period and second unlocking period due, except for some forfeited
shares which were repurchased, the related repurchase liabilities for
these unlocked shares were derecognized. As at 31 December 2024, the
remaining balance of repurchase liability was Nil (2023: RMB52,427,000)
recorded in trade and other payables (Note 32).

B ) 1 A SR R Bt 2

M2021F6 A48 - AEBRREFREM—IER
IR R BN ET 81 ([ 525181 )) © RIBZATE - MR
EE1RCETEE (BIEES) ([HEHR])®
17 R #% T4 $£42,300,0000% 7 £2 EARK °

ZETEE R R ERAIMERRERE FER TR B
EHBHRERORGIERREAERREREE
FHEH2 Bk - TEBB48(E A -

ZETEER THRGIEREREE 8 MBS REER
SRRz ARE - AR TEMBEERRER 2R
EifsA12MEA o

EERBIERRAABE REENRT BEARS
PEREE R AR RARR B I AR RO 2R MR B IR 1%
PSR - MR R RLAT IR T HOARRR LT -

202166478 + AREIREZTEIZSRARA
R 5 88 7T KB 18 3£ 1742,300,0000%AR% - B 86 &
LU ELHIIR & A R#248,724,0007CEF AE 5 R EAM
JERFRIA © FA20234F N 20244F - A & {ERERER & 57
MEZEERREHREEE - BETEMHIER
WA - ZEFERRRERNMOEIBE FEREK L

R o 2024512 A31H - NE S R EM B FIA
SRS R E I A & AT (202349 © AREES2,427,000
7 ) (FfF5E32) ©
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38. Share option (continued)
Restricted share incentive scheme (Continued)

In 2024, the Company has provided RMB6,923,000 (2023:
RMB24,464,000) as share-based payment expenses in respect of these
restricted shares.

Upon expiry of the Lock-up Period, the Company shall proceed with
unlocking for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and
the restricted shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the
Unlocking Conditions shall be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.

The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares
and unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme
are set out in the table below:

FmE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

38. BB ()

BR M ISR A B T & ()

R2024% - ARFE A FRFMERZARARE
6,923,0007T (20234 : A K% 24,464,0007T ) B/ LA
Bt RERRM R -

FRIRIR EHAE MR - AR AR R BRRIR & T
HSBI S S BRRRIR & - TR B MR PR IR & IR AT RO
B ARREIERR A A AR REEH -

ZaTEIR TRHIMEBRRNRRREH R & REHHE
FRIRRERE LM T RR

Unlocking
Arrangement of Unlocking Period  Unlocking duration percentage
RIRIRESRRHE IR ER A % B PR 5 EL 451
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date 40%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of
Grant
£ — IR R ERPR & BA BETAHBIEAENEER S BRER T BiR24E A AMRE —ER
SHERLE
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of
Grant
£ IR R ERBR & BR BETHBUEAENEER S ARER T HIR361EA ANRE —ER
SHERLE
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of
Grant
FEZIRERRIRE BETAEGEAENEER S BRER T HiR481E A ANRE —ER
SHERLE

The evaluation period for unlocking the restricted shares under the
Scheme shall be from 2022-2024 and the evaluation shall be conducted
annually. The performance evaluation for each Unlocking Period includes
performance evaluation requirements for the Company and individual
performance evaluation requirement for the Participants.

AT EITR T IR I 1 B AR R IR & #O 1 B /3 20224F
F20245 - FHEREFHETT - BRBRREMNOESR
ERBRAREEEREL PR EREAERE
ZBH R IR E R T o

2a8
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38. Share option (Continued) 38. BRI (w)
Restricted share incentive scheme (continued) PR 1) 14 1% 22 B A 13 ()
The movement of restricted shares during the year is listed below: PR HIMERENFERRZE T

Opening balance as at 1 January
Unlocked during the year
Forfeited during the year

Number of restricted shares

FRREIMERZHA
2024 2023
20245 20234
A1 FE9EeS 11,214,000 24,648,000
REFEREERR (10,872,000) (11,706,000
RERRIL (342,000) (1,728,000)

As at 31 December

M12H31H = 11,214,000
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IIV_\éﬂji%iﬁéé Bﬂ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
39. Non-controlling interests 39. FFIERRER
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the TRIRAEEEREENAEEIE2ER B A
Group that have significant non-controlling interests: AIEEEIE -
Profit/(loss) and other
Place of Proportion of comprehensive income
establishment equity interest held by allocated to non-controlling Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest interests for the year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiaries place of business as at 31 December 31 December as at 31 December
BZ12ANBLEEDEZ
RIBHR R2A3N AERREE  FRREZNERN/(BR) ®12A318
HEARERE TEEENE  RENRSEZESN REM2E RS R EERER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 2023 20245 2023 20245 2023
ASIMCO Shuanghuan (Note (a)) PRC 36.46% 47.01% 52,729 N/A 453,235 N/A
THRIEIR (7)) HEl M NEA
Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology
Co., Ltd. (‘Hengda Intelligent”) (Note (b)) PRC 1.80% 14.98% 15,679 132,414 36,325 364,791
NEESERERNHABRAF
(Mg ]) (kb)) FE
ASIMCO (Nanjing) Limited (“ASIMCO Nanjing”)
(Note (@) (c)) PRC - 16.61% - 57,028 - 1,068,930
THRIERM(AR)ERAF
(TERiE R ) (M a)e) F
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests (Note (d)) PRC N/A N/A 223,031 28,737 344,671 112,608
BIERERNERNTEANHEAR
(F5E@) HE TEA M
Elimination with the Group (3,891) (18,778) (39,321) (43,212
EAKEL

287,548 199,401 794,910 1,603,117
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39. Non-controlling interests (Continued)

Notes:

@

ASIMCO Shuanghuan is a subsidiary of ASIMCO Nanjing, thus the financial
figures of non-controlling interests of ASIMCO Nanjing included the related
non-controlling interests of ASIMCO Shuanghuan.

On October 14, 2024, the Company acquired 13.1839% of the shares
from the minority shareholders of Hengda Intelligent at a consideration of
RMB955,548,000. After this transaction, the Company held 98.2036% equity
interest in Hengda Intelligent.

On 4 July 2023, ASIMCO Nanjing entered into the capital increase agreement
with the Company, the business partners and investors of the Group, the core
shareholder of ASIMCO Nanjing and the strategic investors. The business
partners and investors of the Group, the core shareholder of ASIMCO Nanjing
and the strategic investors contributed RMB544,920,000 and held 16.61%
equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing in total, which resulted in the increase of
non-controlling interests by RMB516,279,000. After the capital increase
transaction, the Company held 83.39% equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing.

On December 13, 2024, the Company acquired 16.6081% of the shares
from the minority shareholders of ASIMCO Nanjing at a consideration of
RMB698,986,000. After this transaction, the Company held 100% equity
interest in ASIMCO Nanjing.

On November 6, 2024, the company acquired 30% of the shares from the
minority shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery
Co., Ltd. at a consideration of RMB64,110,000. After this transaction, the
Company held 83.21% equity interest in Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall
Face Machinery Co., Ltd.

39. FEIEARAERS ()
5T -

TSHHBRADHMERNMEAR - MR
REFERERM B EBR RN EROERIE
R -

HR2024F 107148 - RAFIAARK955,548,0007T 2
REMEESE L HARFUEE13.1839% 1% © Z X
ZTERE - KA RIS A BIEE1£98.2036% X &

20237 A48 - BB REART C AEEH
EELABZARKEE  DHRBERNZOBRELE
BIREBFILEHZ - AEEMNSEABAR
REE  DHHNEROZLORRREERES
& AR #544,920,0007T + WEEBFAEFHEERL
16.61% 42 - BEFEIEARER L N AR ¥5516,279,000
TL e RIBERSEKE  AARFERFEERN
83.39%A% #E ©

2024F12 4138 - AAFAA R #698,986,0007T 2
REM TR D SRR EE16.6081% 817 © %
RBTTRAE - RARIEE LR R100%ARFE

202411 A68 - A AEIAARKEG4,110,0007T 2K
BRI EPN B R B AR B IR A 7] SR SR U B8 30%A%
9 o R GTTKIE + KR EFEH BN R B
BR A A183.21%A%HE -
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39. Non-controlling interests (Continued)

The financial information for the main non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group is listed below. As of 31 December 2023, the listed information
is aggregated including ASIMCO Nanjing and Hengda Intelligent. As of
31 December 2024, ASIMCO Nanjing and Hengda Intelligent no longer
contains significant non-controlling interests, only the information of

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

39. FEIERRER ()

REBMFEIE2EMBRARMBEERIIROT « &
F2023F12A318 + EMARAHREEMEER

Mg o EE2024F 128318 » SRR K
BESED TR EEAERER - 25| LEHE
SIRMER -

ASIMCO Shuanghuan is listed.

As at 31 December

A128318

2024 2023

20244F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Current assets BN E 1,549,602 7,263,483
Non-current assets IERBNEE 843,483 2,818,453
Current liabilities mEIBRE 1,109,766 3,495,930
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 40,216 621,846
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN R IR FE(ERERS 789,868 4,530,439
Non-controlling interests IEFE I i = 453,235 1,433,721
Revenue WA 1,002,717 6,731,273
Expenses M 858,096 5,598,788
Profit and total comprehensive income WA B E NS A RE 144,621 1,132,485

Profit and total comprehensive income AR TR R T R 2 a2 5
attributable to owners of the Company 91,892 943,043
Profit and total comprehensive income FEERER R ST R R =B

attributable to the non-controlling interests 52,729 189,442
Profit and total comprehensive income pralp eIl Ea k] 144,621 1,132,485
Net cash inflow from operating activities SR BEIR £ AR5 65,359 1,517,670
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 2 ZEBRIIR S mA Ort ) F5E 155,222 (425,990)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activites ~ Bt &EBIRIIR S ORE) R AEEE (55,511) 157,991
Net cash inflow IRETAFERE 165,070 1,249,671
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

40. Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not

provided in the consolidated financial statements BHEARL N

ERTHMERTELR A M SRR &
BHARBEYE - BB MR

40. ERAIE
As at 31 December
MA128318

2024 2023
2024F 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
350,498 543,858

41, Related party transactions

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the investors held more
than 5% of total shares and their related parties treated as the related
parties of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into
transactions with its related parties which are set out below. The related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course of business and
at terms negotiated between the Group and the respective related parties.

(@ The Group and its investors and their related parties

The Group had the following significant transactions with the Group’s
investors and their related parties.

Sales of goods and services to the Group’s
investors and their related parties

N BHEIRS

ARREERR  FHADARME%A L EEAIR
BENEBB I RERANDRNRERS o

BE20246E12A31 B LEFE - AEESE B 2]
SRS BERSWATX « BB AR B RES
£ 73072 o 2 A 4 B LA PR BRI 5 R R RO
e

(a) ANEEMEREE RFEHEH
REE SRR A E RSN T TS EE

%5

For the year ended 31 December

AAREREE R EFREH
HEEMERY

BENRANALEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
90,775 2,329

Purchase of goods and services from the Group’s

investors and their related parties ANE & AR

For the year ended 31 December

KEAREEREE RSB S E

HZENANALEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
2,053,881 2,647,233
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &
41. Related party transactions (continued) N BERIRS @)
(@ The Group and its investors and their related parties @ AEBREREENFEESHEES
(Continued) (&)
The details of outstanding balances with investors and their related BRIHEEREBE TR REELEHFBERIDM
parties are set as follows: N

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARKETTT

Trade and other receivables from the Group’s FEW R EE R E E RIS TR
investors and their related parties B 5 N E M EWGRIE 544 744

As at 31 December
128318
2024 2023

20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARMET T

Trade and other payables to the Group’s RSB EE RIEEEE 58
investors and their related parties B 5 R EAMEWIA 1,788 30,688

As at 31 December
A12831H
2024 2023

20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AREET T

Amount prepaid to the Group’s investors and TERAREEREE RESEE T
their related parties WIE 131,837 156,369
The Group’s investors include the investors and their subsidiaries. REEMNREERFEIREEREWBAF -
The amount due to investors related entities was unsecured, interest- FERISEERBTENFZIEAEERR 258 REK

free and repayable on demand. EREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&
41. Related party transactions (Continued)
(b) The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures.

N BEHEIRS @

() NEEEABENR

$‘$l=£ﬁi N NN

PANV-V AN

ENIaES

BT IE

For year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
2024 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Sales of goods and services: HE S m KRS
Associates iGN 66,275 116,933
Joint ventures BREDE 3,276 5,591
69,551 122,524
For year ended 31 December
BZ12ANALEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Purchase of goods and services: RES S LR
Associates /N 303,771 400,328
Joint ventures SEDE 74,117 107,701
377,888 508,029
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z=20244F12 A31 B 1L &

N BBAERS @)

(o) The Group and its associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates

and joint ventures as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

) AEEEEBEARRAEDLE

(5&)

#2024&&2023&12)% 31H  AEEEEREE
PDRAIREAECERUTRERER

As at 31 December

M2H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Trade and other receivables from: B R EMEW A
Associates iR/ 24,280 30,832
Joint ventures & - 63,534
24,280 94,366
As at 31 December
A128318
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Trade and other payables to: B 5 R EAFE A
Associates i l/NE]| 200,915 212,703
Joint ventures B 23,721 26,642
224,636 239,345

As at 31 December

M12A318
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Amounts prepaid to: FER T H& TR
Associates i l/NE]| 1,786 4,609
Joint ventures S - 11,672
1,786 16,281

All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures are from
trade in nature. The amount due to associates and joint ventures are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

EMNE L - PrEREEENBE DR REED
%mlﬁi’ﬂiﬁﬁ% N WNCIDS =R St S
FAREER - RERARERERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

41. Related party transactions (Continued) NBBRIRS @
(c) Remuneration of key management personnel © FTEEBRAEMS
The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key HITEERHMFTEZEBEASNMESOT -

management were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A3101LFE
2024 2023

20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Short-term benefits 52 HAtE A 24,128 19,141
Restricted share incentive scheme PR 1 A B 5T 2l 2,449 11,693
Share options B R A - 105
Post-employment bengfits RIRAER 463 430
27,040 31,369
Key management represents the executive directors and other FEEBAEREFRPRENRTESLRAMS
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The BEBAS - TEEBBEABHPSIBBREARER
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with HEMSHEAET - METEEEABRBHERETD
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends. The AR AEE o
share options provided to key management personnel is equity-
settled.
42. Contingent liabilities 42. AREE
(@) Notes receivable (a) EWEE
During the year, the Group has endorsed or discounted, and then RAFEE - ARBEDEE TRNEBETS S,
derecognized certain notes receivable with full recourse. In the I EMRIEERZENETR2ERENERE
opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in B ARAIEEFRE - BRESE KRB
payment of the endorsed or discounted notes receivable is low SRHBER AT BEIRITE L RREER - R
because all endorsed or discounted notes receivable are issued NAEERBENERERRNERBE - RERE R
and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure N AREEAIEEARNZE S SR RELLER
to the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed or BB M AR EN S RARAT

discounted and derecognized notes receivable at the end of each
reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 December
MA128318
2024 2023

20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREET T

Outstanding endorsed or discounted BERENHREEDEENK
notes receivable with recourse B ARIR SRR 2,820,447 1,765,771
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Contingent liabilities (continued)
(@) Notes receivable (Continued)

These endorsed or discounted and then derecognized notes
receivable have a maximum maturity of 1 year, and the total
undiscounted cash flows of these endorsed or discounted and
derecognized notes receivable, representing the Group’s maximum
loss if the issuing banks fail to honor their notes and guarantees,
amounted to RMB2,820,447,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB1,765,771,000).

(b) Trade receivable transferred

As of 31 December 2024, the Group has derecognized certain trade
receivables without recourse which were transferred to banks with
amounting to RMB42,337,000 (2023: RMB316,735,000).

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 30 September 2024, the Company entered into contact with other
shareholders of a joint venture Intelligent Working Face to increase in
capital the amount of RMB100 million into Intelligent Working Face, to gain
28.82% interest in Intelligent Working Face. After the capital increasement,
together with the original 28% share of interest, the Company owns
56.82% of total shares of Intelligent Working Face and also the 56.82% of
the voting right, taking the control of Intelligent Working Face. The capital
injection has been accounted for as acquisition of business using the
acquisition method.

Intelligent Working Face is principally engaged in manufacture and sales
of high-tech coal mining machines and was acquired with the objective of
expanding the Group’s relevant business.

The consideration has been paid within the year. No Goodwill arised on the
acquisition.

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; = 2024512 A31 B It F[E

2. FAREE (%)

43.

(@)

JEUW IR (&)

ZECEHERUARKLERNEREROE
REIRB1E - 5 E2024F12A318 @ %502
BENMR AR IR ERERN ARG
S REMFE A AN RH2,820,447,0007T (20234 -
AR #1,765,771,0007T ) + B 1TIRITARAE AL
REFBERER  AIRKAEBHESER
)

EEENE S RKFR

R2024F12A31H - AEBBKRILFERD £
ZRTNETEEREZ HERFIEARE
42,337,0007T (20234 : AR#316,735,0007T) °

WiE—EHE AR

R2024F9A30H - ARFIEALMERETEE
MEMIREZETAR - AEETIEMEEARE
100B & 7T * IS A TIEM28.82% M s © IZ &

%

BRI RFT A M28% M - ARRHEEERETLE

TH156.82% B 4215 17) [2.56.82% H) 2= R HE - 1 M B IR &
BEETEMAEH] o /T E A AEAIEE 2
AR -

DR TFE X B U FRERHERPHUREHE -
WiE 2 B AERASE 2 HREER -

REERFAXZ - WEILBELRHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&
43. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) 43. Wig— M B AR )
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of REE B ESEHNEELKERNER
acquisition
RMB’000
ARET
Trade and other receivables B 5 MEMEWGRIE 296,113
Inventories TE 237,139
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRB 32,180
Cash and cash equivalents e MESEEY 31,185
Intangible assets mEE 2,950
Other assets Hib&EE 4,269
Trade and other payables 2 5 R EH M EAFIE (266,439)
Contract liabilities aRBE (39,158)
Deferred tax liability RIEFRIBRE (1,201)
Borrowings e (47,053)
Other liabilities HihBfE (1,819)
248,136
Non-controlling interests PR R
The non-controlling interests (43.18%) in Intelligent Working Face RS B EATE SR %5 B T VETE JE 12 AR A 55.(43.18%)
recognised at the acquisition date was measured by reference to the T2 RILE B St TIEE AL ENDERSE
proportionate share of recognised amounts of fair value of Intelligent T2 28 A ARK107,135,0007T °
Working Face and amounted to RMB107,135,000.
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEREE
RMB’000
AR%TR
Cash consideration paid BfREeRE 100,000
Fair value of the deemed disposed associate RIEE HEBE AR AFE 41,001
Plus: non-controlling interests N SERE IR R 107,135
Less: recognised amounts of net assets acquired B TS EENDERESE (248,136)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

WHBE AR -
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43. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

43. Wi —EME AR (@)

Net cash outflow on acquisition U BEEE A P 2
RMB’000
AR®TT
Cash consideration paid 2R ERE 100,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances acquired B WIER IR RIS EE M (31,155)
68,845

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year is RMB5,953,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Intelligent Working Face.

Had the acquisition of Intelligent Working Face been completed
on 1 January 2024, revenue for the year of the Group would have
been RMB37,255,980,000 and profit for the year would have been
RMB4,238,884,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2024, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had
Intelligent Working Face been acquired at the beginning of the current
year, the directors of the Company calculated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment based on the recognised amounts of property, plant
and equipment at the date of the acquisition.

W R B R

SFARFEZE R T A A REE5,953,00070 5K B & 4E T 1E
A SRAVEBINETS -

iU B8 29 8 TVEM 7A2024F1 B1H 58k » AL B A
FEWAN B AR HE37,255,980,0007T © ANF JE 5 F)
155 AR #4,238,884,0007T © 5 ERHMEHREAZ
- TR R 202451 A1 B ek AR S
E B EISHRas R R ELE - T BHEAREK
EERTEA -

REEASERFNAFWEE TEDNH
Z WA TSN - ARBEFRENEE R

RZWE - BELRBSEAEYE - BELER
BZIE -
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44. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

(@) Net debt reconciliation

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

4. BEZBFMELENREYHR

(a) EFFEERFER

TRAMAEERRECTHIELNBES
c MERBMEL
E’Jﬁf %a%lﬁfﬁé/ﬁi‘iikjifﬁ/fﬁ%

B eEES RIEESH

L4

RS

He //|L§§E ':F' 27 iﬁjﬁﬁy /\/iﬁﬁ"ylfr‘]ﬂéf/ﬁ

iﬁﬁﬁ?iﬁ’]ﬁ@m%ﬂ’ﬁ%i%ﬁ °

activities.

Liabilities

associated

with

transferred

trade
Borrowings Leases liabilities receivables Interests payable Total

HEHBMN

g2 WA
&E HERE  HHHAE ERFIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETFT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2023 20231 18 7,549,970 1,397,002 269,411 27,366 9,243,749
Financing cash flows — net HEBRSRE— 28 (384,731) (242,135) - (343,007) (969,873)
Finance costs (Note 9) AR AR (BT3E9) - - - 330,225 330,225
New leases Mg - 134,776 - - 134,776
Currency exchange differences SR MERE 137,998 58,185 - 20,866 217,049
Others (Note) Hi () - - (56,599) - (56,599)
At 31 December 2023 2023124318 7,303,237 1,347,828 212,812 35,450 8,899,327
At 1 January 2024 202451 18 7,303,237 1,347,828 212,812 35,450 8,899,327
Financing cash flows — net BHERSRE— 28 (1,256,368) (196,892) - (266,739) (1,719,999)
Finance costs (Note 9) BERA () - 38,112 - 259,835 297,947
New leases Mg - 80,955 - - 80,955

Addition from acquisition of RUEE T2 Rl miE ey

a subsidiary (Note 43) S88(M17E43) 47,053 - - - 47,053
Currency exchange differences SHHBEE (58,275) (75,288) - - (133,569)
Others (Note) Hib (FE) - - 232,990 - 232,990
At 31 December 2024 R2024F12A31H 6,035,647 1,194,715 445,802 28,546 7,704,710

Note: The amount of liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables
represented the offset of trade receivables against liabilities associated
with transferred trade receivables to the extent of the settlement by the

ultimate end-users of the equipment.

Mt E3EMEZEUGARBNE ESEEN
B RKFIREEE S8 E 5 A

FARRIE - AR

BRIBAPENERR -
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44. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

4. BEITBRELENREH KW@

b) FEREIRENREEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Debt restructurings EfSEHA - 13,223
Contribution from associates il NG ek =y 31,970 -
Change of an investment B - 445,911
31,970 459,134

45, Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

Management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio (total liabilities netting off cash and cash equivalents/total
equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Gearing ratio

45. EXE B EE

REBEREEN - RERANEE AR T B 7] 4
BrERE ﬂﬁﬁx%ﬁﬂﬁiﬂ@ftfii‘%&f"*
BISRALR - AL 2 RN EFIE -

AEBENEARBREERARRNRRRREGHE
@ BERRRERA - RO ERE bR

ARREEESFEMNERRRE - (FRZAEHN
Hf—R - BEESZREANARATHEENE
BOER - REBEEEENER AREREBXN
BB~ BITHR - BEFEBIEERBEETE
HEBRRE -

ANEE B 20244 [ 20234F 12 A3 B B &S
ZR(BBEAERIRENRSEEY fERSemE)m

A #

As at 31 December

A128318
2024 2023
20245 20234
103% 104%
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46. Financial instruments 46. €T A
(@) Categories of financial instruments @) Rt LEDEE

As at 31 December

128318
2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREET T

Financial assets: TREE
Financial assets at fair value: BATESROSREE -
AR ERE B EZSET A
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRSNS E 5,828,612 5,951,034
AR ERE B EZSEA
Equity instruments at FVTOCI Hih2EmAIRA TR 419,334 408,159
AR ERE B EZSEA
Financial assets at FVTOCI EmermElianerEE 2,502,853 3,848,095
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERT A 36,386 33,867
Financial assets at amortised cost IR A EZ S REE 16,815,715 17,306,570
Total =t 25,602,900 27,547,725
Financial liabilities: TREE
Financial liabilities at fair value: BATESROCRAE
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRT A 84,558 11,453
Liabilities at amortised cost RHEN AT ENaE 18,954,500 19,026,570

Total #Et 19,039,058 19,038,023
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at FVTOCI, Equity
instruments at FVTOCI, other non-current liabilities, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, trade and other receivables,
derivative financial instruments, bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings, transferred
trade receivables and liabilities associated with transferred trade
receivables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest
rate risk, and other price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is
primarily with respect to non-functional currency bank balances,
receivables, borrowings and payables (collectively “Non-
Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using
foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between United States dollars (“USD”)/RMB, EUR/RMB.

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

46. TR T A%
) EEaEREIREB IR &R

REFNTESRT ABEUATETAERSR
ZEREE - WAHEFEREZE T AL M
PENEEZ EREE UAFEFEARE
it A\ rmPam 2 S T A - B3R
PaE  REHEREE  REEKFOE
B 5 REAMERFIE - STETA - RITER
RekReFEY EHNEMENKER B
& BRENEZIREGUANECEENES
EUFRBNAE - ZFERTAFBENS
MIFEHEEE - A% SR T AR ER RanF R
EZERROBERETIINT - BEEEIEILE
EZERR - NWEREBBEUERELSHEE -

™% E

AEEEBEEIEARERRR - FIERR
REMERRR - AEEAZNZSERLE
BERErERRNTAEZS -

() EEER

AREENEER RS - WARZEI Y
LB AIREVSNERSR o SMNERR B RiZ
BERS  CHEIBEENBEEL -

it - AEEEE N ERINER B E R H
FEREE W AVIRTTHERR - BUFUR ~ B3
REMNFA (GRS EBEE A
e

EIEEEEINERE - WNTEBREEE
FSNER A REhE TINEE R -

REFETEAEETAAREREBUTEA
RERINERLR
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Non-Functional Currency
[tems at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

46. €@ T B (@)
) SREMREE B IEZENMBER@®E

mHER(E)
)  E¥ERE)
BEWRERR - AREFDEEREE W
%EEWT-

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
20245128318 2023F12A31H
UsD EUR Usp EUR
EYy B e BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AR¥TR ARBEFTL AREFIL
Assets BE 712,062 142,010 885,217 111,855
Liabilities B (232,388) (82,775) (236,268) (103,095)
Sensitivity analysis BURE DT

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. The rate of 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates but does not consider the effect of derivative
financial instruments. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit for the year and a negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit for the year where the
relevant foreign currencies change 5% against RMB.

If the currency strengthens against RMB
If the currency weakens against RMB

fWEBEARETHE
WEEEARKRE

TERBIAEBMEBRAINE B AREAHE
R EZE5% M BURRE FE1E © 5% BILL R B M)
FBEE A BRI 2 IRINER B HEE
b WRKERELERSIP AR
BIRTME - RE DITEBIFAINETIER
ﬁ*iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ WS RS HIRUAE
KSR IERE AL R RITES
BMTEMFE - THIRBREBAINELAR
BB 5%EF MY - EBFRIRF AR
BIRFIEN - MBEERRFERBEFRD

Year ended 31 December 2024

Year ended 31 December 2023

HENUF12A3NALEE HENBF12A3BILERE
UsD EUR UsD EUR
ESH BT e BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT
18,980 3492 28,104 712
(18,980) (3492) (28,104 12
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate borrowings
(see Note 33 for details). Currently, the Group does not have a
specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management
will closely monitor interest rate exposures and consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank balances
and variable-rate borrowings at the end of each reporting
period and the excepted changes in interest rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and being held constant
throughout the reporting period.

If the interest rates on variable-rate bank balances had been 5

basis higher and all other variables were held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have increased by:

Increase in post-tax profit for the year

FARRTRE AL 0

i E B SRR Y EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

46. €W T B (%)
b) & ELEEEIE B Z RBUER ()

mismkE(E)
(i) FIFER

AEBEGZE fETT ERREBEE (G |$
2 A K33 AR REFN KA -

Al $%@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂl%ﬁf§ﬁ\ﬂ$@
% B IERE YR mﬁﬂ?ﬂ WA
BREENEEHREANFERR

AT BURE DT TIIREF BARTT R T
BAEERE RS HARAOF R a2 A BB B

Er%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ’]ﬂTi‘ﬁﬁﬂ“ﬁb(ﬁéﬁéﬂx&%
HIMER N EEE o

fid) 7 BIRTTAE RN RIS EEE -
PrEEMERAE - RIFARBIRENR
N

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A3NBLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
(1,200) (1,837)

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings had been 50
basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year

FABRBRBMIRD

fidi % =2 fﬁﬁéﬁﬂfriﬂmﬂ%% A
H A BB & - RIS A BR B A& 0 N AR
b

/ :

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
20,483 28,115

The post-tax profit for the year would have increased by the same
amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on variable-rate
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points lower and all other variables were held constant.

fid)7 BARTT AR KT BAE BRI R T 250
EEE - MArEEMEBAE - AFALR
B m M i FaER S Fgm -

4
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) - Other price risk

The Group’s exposure to listed equity security price risk arises
from investments held by the Group and classified as financial
assets as at FVTPL.

With the 10% change of the price of listed equity security,
the Group’s profit before tax would increase or decrease by
approximately RMBO.4 million (2023: RMB0.4 million).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, transferred trade receivables, long-term receivables,
derivative financial instruments, bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, contract assets, financial assets at FVTPL.

To manage the risk with respect to bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, derivative assets, and financial assets at FVTPL, the
Group placed them in or entered into the contract with the banks and
other financial institutions with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit
limits to individual customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business
of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the Group generally
receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash from
customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product. In respect of auto parts, normally a credit
period of 30 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed or discounted and then
derecognised certain notes receivable for the settlement of trade
and other payables with full recourse. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of the endorsed
or discounted notes receivable is low because all endorsed or
discounted notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks.

46. TR T A (%)
) ©RUESEEBZRERE)

mHER(E)
(i) EMEEREER

AEE RN ETRERESERRRRR
REEFABDRR/R AT EFABED
TREENKRE -

it FIREEHREE10% - NEBBRF
Al A 6 38 b0 3k sk 2> 49 A R 400,000 7T
(20234 : AFR#¥400,0007T) °

FERBRBERG

FERBRKEES REMEBYKHIE  BERE
JEMFIR - CHERE SRR - REIEUGK
B TAESRTA  R/OTER RERBEE
B AREE BRAVEFABRZERE
= o

REBRTER  HeLREFEY 744
ERMEBEREAFEFABRZSREE R
% AREFZEEEFENBER IR
N E S BERE S T IRT R A S R

FIAR °

ARECHEBRERABEREERY A
BEEVBRE N REECELREAELHIRT
EHNEPEITHE - NEBERHIEH IR
Fr o HERSRENERE R b R DB A TS -

BN - AREETFEHEHETREIEFNEER
EREERNE S EUGIBRNATIE S8 - AR
REE AR ERIBAHE R ARESE - SRS
BIERWERM S - ANEE—RNEERA
MEFWREKRZESES AN (HEE
RNEREREAI0%) - LAETHHEME - &
F—RER30EIRMEER -

RAEE - AEBASELMRET L R
ETRUEREN ST AEEAEEERENE S
NEMBENRIE ARBEZRR - BRAAE
BEMSBOREERHBERFHTERT
FHHRREHER RN BERUERNEKRE
ERERRE
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
The ECL rates are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparties’ ability to meet its
obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of counterparties

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of counterparties

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of counterparties, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparties.

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&
46. €M T s
b) & ELEEEIEBZMBER @)

FERRKBERE(E)

AEEE BRI EREERHZLT R
REHSHHENEERBR ST REREELM -
RIMEEERRETRZLN  AEBKEE
RS B HIRE QR BN SR Bz
HWREBEITIE - BHEEEBEXENBE
ESFHBEEREERIENET - WIELAE
R ER P 5 RUIRRE S R BB
ARFSEARARILEER - AEEE BRI #
BHEEABAELEN - UTERLEFE
MAEBERE

. B BBLEERRESRERLRE
ATFIZD - SR T H B
HRE A

o HFHREEEERIERRHRERE
)]

o HFFHHMSBMTANEERBREZE
il

o WFAHEHRIREITALIREANEE &
EARERNEFINRERNES L EF
FTREEBENEE)
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group has the receivables from different customers and debtors
operate in different industries. In the meantime, customer portfolio
basis are also different between China and other countries. Thus, the
Group classified the above assets into below categories:

e Category 1: trade receivables and contract assets — coal mining
machinery group

e  Category 2 trade receivables — ASIMCO group

e  Category 3: trade receivables — SEG and its subsidiaries (“SEG
group”)

e Category 4: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

e  (ategory 5: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

e  (ategory 6: other receivables
e  (ategory 7: transferred trade receivables

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets, except
for those with higher credit risk, which are assessed for
impairment individually. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due.

46. TR T B ()

b £RAEBEEBZENBE @)

EERERRBER(E)

AR FORR AT RTENES R R
A« BB RESEMERZ MOESEAR
RR - i - AEENS HREESS AN
R -

o BRI BEBEUGERA REE AR
I

o BRI : BBEUGIA - R

o JBRI3: BHEUGKIE -SEGREWE AT
([SEGEEE 1)

o HERI RIS RITELEE

o FARI5 : BLETHE FEURIA K R H R MR
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o JER6 : EAmENGRIA
o JARI7 : BEIENE FREIKIE

() EZEWHEREFEE
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

U

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables of the manufacture of
coal mining machinery are calculated taking into account:

a)

The customers’ repayment history, aging profile of their
overdue balances, their current financial positions and
other relevant circumstances.The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 12
to 36 month before 31 December 2024 or 31 December
2023 respectively and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period.

Forecasts of future economic conditions.The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the and Broad money Supply and
Gross Domestic Product to be the most relevant factors for
the Group and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

46. TR T B (&)

b) TEE

o0 e 1E B 12 N IBUR ()

FERRKBERE(E)
() EBEZERHEREFEEE)

REt BRI SUE R B AR TR B 1R
- EEE IR

a)

BERERREE - SRR R
S BRI B AR R B A AR B IS
S o TEHABE R Z 5 5782024512 A
31H 342023512 531 H #1122 361E A
HARISHE T B R A HAE A 3R
HAEE R T EEEERTE -

RRLBBERZTER - BEBEERD
TERAE AR & T P EE KRR
EENH ZBUSERE R IR I RATHE £
B AEBEDBSIEEERHER
BREEREANSENRMERA
= HERZEFRENETEHRAE
BEEIEEK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&
46. Financial instruments (Continued) 46. ©RET B (o)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) € @bEpRE IR B AZE MR @)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERBKEETME(E)
() Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) 0 BZENTEREFEEE)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables and contract 1202412 A31 B RIZERE 5 UG8
assets of different categories as at 31 December 2024 are MEREBEENFREBREENT

listed as follows:

Category 1: Coal mining machinery group FRN : EHIERRER

Over Over Over Over
90days 180 days 1year 2years
Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  butwithin  but within Over
90days 180 days 1year 2 years 3 years 3years Total

BENX HBBINX BBIE  BRME
0KA BI80KR  BIFR  BaFR BIFR BBIF oy
RMB'0C0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR AR¥TT ARETR

Trade receivables and confract assets S ZEKEERSREE

At 31 December 2024 02412831 R
Expected loss rate BHEER 1% 3 5% 15% 58% 100%
Gross carrying amount excluding FEAR(TREERRFER

receivables assessed individually) EWFE) 2922382 1,203,757 1405868 765,300 120,027 49,255 6,466,598
Loss allowance provision BERE 23,896 32810 69,693 111,320 69,725 49,255 356,699
Individually impaired receivables (ARl EEKEE 4,676 12,628 51,593 22,250 200,077 67,166 358,390
Loss allowance provision BEdE 2,316 12,457 50,865 10,938 109,682 67,166 253,424
Total loss allowance provision BREELR 26,212 45,267 120,558 122,258 179,407 116,421 610,123

Over Over Over Over
90days 180 days 1year 2 years
Within-~ butwithin -~ butwithin ~ butwitin -~ butwithin Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2 years 3years 3years Total
BBOKX HERI0R BB BT
WEAm EIBOAA  BIER EEM EER RS 5
RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETR

Trade receivables and contract assets € 5 ENERER AREE

At 31 December 2023 H023%F12A31A
Expected loss rate BEEER 0% % 5% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carmying amount (excluding FEAR(TBEERRTER

receivables assessed individually) lE) 2031044 1131547 1014462 670,842 96,027 49260 4,993,182
Loss allowance provision FERE - 22,631 50723 134,168 48014 49260 304,79
Indvidually impaired receivables {ERlAER R - 4,99 26420 102839 22,481 59906 216,641
Loss allowance provision ARG - 4,690 20,089 45,604 13,797 55,559 139,739

Totalloss allowance provision ERAESE - 2,31 70812 179772 61811 104819 44453
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REMERRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z= 2024412 A31 B IL &
46. Financial instruments (Continued) 46. €W T B (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) SRURREE B IZENMBER (4

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FEERBREETG(E)

() Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) ) BZERTARSFAEE (&)

Category 2: ASIMCO group FRl2 : THERER

Over Over Over

90 days 180 days 1year
Within but within but within but within Over
90 days 180 days 1year 2 years 2 years

BENX BB BBIF
WRA  {B180RA B1FR {B2% i g
RMB'000 RMB?000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARMTRT ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR

&)

Trade receivables ERENFE
At 31 December 2024 20245125318
Expected loss rate it 0% 0% 18% 54% 100%
Gross carrying amount (Bxcluding ERAE(TREEERFEY
receivables assessed individualy) felisR) 1,362,262 306,070 23216 7,833 6730 1,726,111
Loss allowance provision EERE 718 837 4,268 4211 6,730 16,764
Individually impaired receivables (AR B - 1918 - - - 1918
Loss allowance provision FERE - 7918 - - - 7918
Total loss allowance provision EiRkGeER 718 8,755 4,268 4211 6,730 24,682
Qver Over
90 days 180 days
Within but within butwithin -~ Over 1 year but Over
90 days 180 days Tyear  within 2 years 2 years Total
RBIK JBR180K B
WAA  {E180RA B1%R {B2% R AmE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETR
Trade receivables EaRuE
At 31 December 2023 RNBE12A31A
Expected loss rate BHEER 0% 0% 2% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding FEEE(TEERRER
receivables assessed indvicually) iee)) 791,415 304,065 30,908 2598 953  1,138522
Loss allowance provision BEEE - - 772 1299 9536 18562
Individually impaired receivables ERIE AN A - - - 5,858 4917 10,775
Loss allowance provision ERRE - - - 914 4917 5,831
Total loss allowance provision EERELES - - 7121 2213 14453 24393
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R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B ILF /&

46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

()

(i)

(i)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Category 3: SEG group trade receivables

The trade receivables balance of SEG group are mainly related
with SEG group’s customers, who are the global OEMs in
auto industry. The Group assessed the credit losses of trade
receivable balance of SEG group individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2024, RMB55 million (2023:
RMB49 million) has been provided as life time loss allowance
for trade receivables.

Notes receivables

Category 4: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
bank accepted notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2024, no allowance were provided as 12
months loss allowance for notes receivables-bank accepted
notes (2023: RMBO.1 million).

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Category 5: finance lease receivables and long-term
receivables

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables are mainly
due from the customers of coal mining machinery group. The
Group has provided financial leasing or long-term payment plan
to certain customers because these customers are mainly state
owned companies or guaranteed by third parties with special
credit profile. The Group has granted a relatively long repayment
plan to the customers based on the credit assessment. The
Group assesses the credit losses of finance lease receivables
and long-term receivables generated from contracts with
customers individually using simplified approach. As at 31
December 2024, RMB61 million (2023: RMB69 million) were
provided as life time loss allowance for finance lease receivables
and long-term receivables.

46. €EL T A ()
) ©RUESEEBZRERE)

EERERRBER(E)

()

()

(i)

ESREUHEREREE#E)
53 : SEGEEE 5 BRI

SEGE B E 5 FE W IR AT = Z BESEGE
ENREFPER  EARNRBEITEMNRIA
R - AEERAE{CESISEGE
EE SRR FIERENEEERETES
FEE o A20245F12 A31H » BB B EIGK
HETREFERNEBEEAARESS
BET(2023F « ARBIWOFET) -

JEW IR
|hla: BRRE - RITRALRRE

REBRA=BEEY R — IR1T&
HEEOEEEBBETERIFE - K2024
F12A318 - NEEWEGEWNRE -
RATAH B EETIR1218 A B8 (2023
F: AREIIAET) °

B ETHE YRR MR R IGRIA

55 MEEERRRERRTERK
b

BERERKFBEMRBEKTIEEES
EUREEERERRP - ARETRPE
ZREATERHABRIMEERINE
=FHER MAEEBRRZERFRER
ERENREMNFEE - AEEDRERE
HiMhmEPREAYRENERETE
AEBEFHABLEEREEERKFIAER
MEPIIVARMESZ REBERFE
EITERME E BB o 72024F12 A 31
A - Eptgh AR E EUGUE R R B EIGR
HAHRERETEBEEREARYLEE
JC(2023%F : AR¥69EETT) ©
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

(iv) ~ Other receivables

v)

Category 6: Other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage approach to measure
ECL individually. Other receivables comprise: advances to
staff, deposits, financial asset receivables, tax expense to be
collected from customers receivable from disposal of investment
and others. As at 31 December 2024, RMB103 million (2023:
RMB100 million) were provided as loss allowance for other
receivables.

Transferred trade receivables

Category 7: Transferred trade receivables

Please refer to Note 35 for the detailed description of
transferred trade receivables. The Group assesses the credit
loss of transferred trade receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2024, the related loss allowance
was RMB14 million (2023: RMB14 million).

The maximum exposure of above trade and other receivables,
contact assets, finance lease receivables, transferred trade
receivables, long-term receivables, and notes receivables at
the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of these
financial assets of RMB13,499 million (2023: RMB13,112
million.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on trade receivables.
At 31 December 2024, the Group’s ten largest customers
accounted for 16% (2023: 21%) of the total trade receivables.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 81% (2023:
76%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2024.

e MRS R R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B IL F /&

46. €ELT A (4)
() LRUESEEBAZ MR (#)

FERRKBERE(E)
(v EfERTE
56 - HiREURIE

755 [ fE B B B B T R A S RN B 05R R E
H=PEELELAERIFT 2 TE I EEAE - &
fMhEWHIBEE  MEIEK - EHd B
KemirE PEREERKEFPHES
PR EAM - 2024512 A31H » Bt HAM
EWIBEHREEREARKIGEE T
(2023%F « AR¥1008ETT) ©

() EZEaEZENATE
A7 - EREHNE S EWRIEA

BHEBEENE ZEUGIE - B2HENE
35 AEBERABLERDEENE SR
Wk IE#EITE R E BB BT © 720244
128318 - HABEREARARK14EE
TL(20235F « ARM14EET) o

PR ERREMEYGR - EREE
JENmERER  CEZEEKER &S
FEU & R M =R A R AR M AR KRB
BZECHEENKREAEARE1349958
Er(2023F « ARME13112B8T) °

AEENEERREPNE ZRIGIE -
R2024F12A31H » AEBE+ARFLHE
S EUBR ZR 48 5B H)16% (20234F : 21%) ©

REEEBESSNEERBREEEFR
R - (520245F12 A31 BEW E SR 48
ZEH)81%(20234F : 76%) ©
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equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash

flows.

Weighted  On demand

e MBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z= 2024412 A31 B IL &
46. Financial instruments (Continued) 46. ©RET B (o)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) SReEREIREBIFERBEEE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk RBEERK
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEEEEREFREEERREABNALE

BEMB—EKFHREIIREEEY - R
HReRENPOTE - BEREEERITER
RERIEN - ARERE TR R

TERFIAEEREHEERGIOERAE
HTARIHA - RBHIRBERAEERE
EXNEFEHNSRBERMRRSTER
o TREEMNERAZHRERE -

Total

Average  orlessthan 3 months 1year 2years Over undiscounted  Carrying
The Group by 1| iterestrate ~ 3months  folyear to2years  to5years Syears  cashflows amount
g BERS FiERE
TERE  HWER MEREE  1ERE  2FE5E @BSE  REBAE HREfE
(% per
annum)  AMB'OOD  RMB'0O0  RMB'O0  RMB'OOD  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(B5%) ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARMTn ARETR ARET:
As at 31 December 2024 R0UE1ENE
Non-derivative financil liabilties it enat
Trade and ofher payables BHREMEMGE
(excluding non-fnancial e (TefEEERER) 12,355,178 - - - - 1235178 12,355,178
Other non-current iabiltes EfsEnBak
(excluding non-fnancial e (Fefdresak) - - 34861 83,012 - 1
Liabltes associated with SR EENE ARNE
tranferred trade receivables BENEE 138,080 307,722 - - - 445,802 445,802
Borrowings e 265 1731616 1792251 1,935,241 131817 - 619925 6,035,647
Lease liabties fEsk 287 63449 184040 21876 533163 1377516 2380044 1,194715
Derivativ financial iablies e
Not designated as hedging instuments M AT A = 5017 3 = = 5017 5017
Desiqnated as hedging instruments ETEBHTE 2,14 51,400 - - - 1954 1954
14316464 2340430 2191078 1353992 1377516 21580380 20283773




BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Weighted ~ On demand
Average  orless than
The Group T£E interestrate 3 months
g EE
MR DROEA
(% per
amum) - RVB'000
(BE%) ARETR

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

46. TR T B (&)
b) & ELEEEIEBZ RBER @)

REESRERE)
Tota
3 months 1 year 2years Over  undiscounted Camying
folyear  to2yeas  fobyeas Syears  cashflows amount
AR
MERZEE  1ERE FRE BEE RENE BaE

RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMWBOO0  RWBO00
ARBTT ARMTT ARETR ARETRL ARETR AR%TR

Asat 31 December 2023 RA0BE12A31A
Non-derivative inancilliablies HTEERER
Trade and other payables BSRENEMNTE

(excluding non-financial iabilies) (TafEkspas) 9362913 2,106,391 - - - 11489304 11,489,304
Other non-current liabilties HFERaaRE

(exclucing non-fnancil fabiltes) (FaEenaE) - - 481 16730 - oaaraan
Liahiites associated with ranslemred rade R A& B FENEE

reeiables BBMER 22812 - - - - g 218
Borowings BE 28 817,559 509122 3111243 3220339 - 7658203 7303237
Lease liabities HERE 286 97,666 229,862 29,779 731311 1804303 3,165,001 1347828
Derivativ financial iablites fremas
Designated as hedging instruments KEEBHnTA 8,197 3256 - - - 11453 11,453

10519147

2848601 3411909 3074440 1804303 22508000 20,380,851

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next one year from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed or discounted notes receivable with full recourse should the
issuing banks of these notes fail to honour their obligations, please
refer to Note 42 for details.

HEB R B ERREENEAFEBRER
A ERMITEERAEIBNETASEA TE
) o

B EXXPriiE Sl - AEE B & mE R ARR—F
TEASZRBEZRR  FRAEBAEEEMERE
MBS ERCHRRREBRERNZEREZRT
REBTHEENBER TR EEENSABENE
T FHIEFELHMELR
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n‘l_\/El\Exzt;f%iﬁ% Bﬁ.H
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;Z2024%12 A31 B It F[E

46. €W T Em)
O SMIAZATEIE

46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity security.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes on a recurring basis. The
management of the Company determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements with the advises
from third party qualified valuers when necessary.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. For instruments with significant
unobservable inputs under Level 3, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The management of the
Company works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management of the Company reports to the directors of the Company
every half year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

TRAGEITES MR A FEIIREN SR T
Ho FNRBHREZRWT

F1 - NERMSEESR TANAHEW
MAREENITETARKAES)E
BmEMARABETEME - KB
REREEMANMBETERERKH
BAE - ZELTAFIASEIR -

FEof - WIFNERMHEREN ST A(PIM
HBIMTET B) R HETR BHETE
BE  ZMETEEZENATTEED
BHEEI BRSO EERSEG
BfEHE - W TAN A FERBMAE
REABEORTEREE - AZT
HEtAZE2R -

B W —IHHZAE KRB ABBRLIFRE
AERMmSEEME - MZRTAIA
EIR(PIIE ERIRAES)

RMBHREBNME - ARENEOEHTA
MR EEZ AN A EFE - ARREEER
BEREHRAE=TAERMEEMNER - A
EEEENGHEERMTEAFEFENBARK
R

REETAHER  AREERAIBZ TS E
RYIE - HRABFIREATABREAK
BOTR AEEZRAERFE=TIAEME
1IEE - ARAERERABRINSEEMER
TmAlE - AEASEEEN[ETTEREAR
B ARRIEEESYFAARAESHRE —
R RENHERBHNREA -
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IIV_\/EI\/H\ZI-ﬁ%iﬁ'IH—% B{qﬂ
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &% 202412 A31H It F &
46. Financial instruments (Continued) 46. €W T B (%)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments 0 =@mITAEZAFET=w®@)
(Continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair values of TERAFENFAZSeREERESRBER
these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in TEZEEAFN(LERMBZHEREZLE
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). AEE) o
Fair value as at Fair value
Financial instruments 31 December 2024 hierarchy Valuation technique and key input
$RIA N20245E12A31 B 2 A1 AFESER HEFERERBAHE
Financial assets at fair value Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
through profit or loss A-share EF WERMISMc EAE
AT EREBEZST A —RMB4,183,000
B EEE (2023: RMB4,430,000)
FAARRHY E T IR ANFE 5
— AR#4,183,0007T

(20234 : AR#4,430,0007T)

Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract not Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated
instruments designated as hedging instruments 28 future cash flow is based on forward
PTEEmIA Assets exchange rate (from observable
—RMB34,770,000 forward exchange rates at the end
(2023: RMB23,533,000) of the reporting date) and contracted
Liabilities forward rate, discounted at a rate
—RMB79,541,000 that reflects the credit risk of the
(2023: Nil) counterparty.
THEE AP TAAREINES [ PRI ERE - KRR ESRED
BE HEDRBEER(REHREHE
— AR #534,770,0007T NPT R BARE R ) |2 & [RE AR A
(20234 + AR#23,533,0007T) £ BRr RS FIEERR
B8E& BIEEZR AR o
— AR ¥79,541,0007T
(2023F : &)
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated
instruments designated as hedging instruments E24 future cash flow is based on forward
PTEEmIA Assets exchange rate (from observable
—RMB1,616,000 forward exchange rates at the end
(2023: RMB10,334,000) of the reporting date) and contracted
Liabilities forward rate, discounted at a rate
—RMB5,017,000 that reflects the credit risk of the
(2023: RMB11,453,000) counterparty.
BEAUAIANRIIINESREE ERRIRERE - ARRESRED
— AR#1,616,00070 HMEDREREPER(CRERER
(20234 + AR#10,334,0007T) HRK AT B R AR ) RERE
=L AR - BiRAIRMEFANE
— AR®5,017,0007C B[R R AL o

(20234 : AFR¥11,453,0007T)
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R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &, Z=2024F12 A31 B ILF /&

46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial instruments

$WMITA

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

AT ERTE BEHEBE A
BEafepEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

ARPEREAHEHIHA
BEaferEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

AT ERTE BEHEB A
BEaferEE

Fair value as at
31 December 2024

A2024F12B31 B 2 AFE

QOther financial assets — assets
management products
—RMB5,204,015,000
(2023: RMB4,660,138,000)

HihemEE—AEEREEM

— AR #85,204,015,0007C

(20234 : AR#4,660,138,0007T)

Certificate of deposits
—RMB361,344,000
(2023: RMB673,023,000)
FE
— AR #5361,344,0007T
(20234 : AR¥673,023,0007T)

QOther financial assets — principal
non-guaranteed financial
products
—RMB250,724,000
(2023: RMB605,275,000)
Ht & MEE —RASMEMRMN
FERASRER
— AR #250,724,0007T
(2023%F = AR #605,275,0007T.)

46. TR T B ()

c £mITAZAFEFTE®

Fair value
hierarchy

DNFESH

Level 2
Fo8

Level 2
Fo8

Level 2
Fo8

Valuation technique and key input
EFERERGABE

Fair values of investment schemes of
which underlying assets including debt
securities, shares, base and options
contracts have been determined based
on quotes from market makers, funds
administrators or alternative pricing
sources supported by observable
inputs.

HASEREERES  KRH - E
RS RN A EIN QT
ENREMSHER « EEEERQ
RSB RSB A BB A
M ERAREREEE -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated
future cash flow is based on the
contractual amount, discounted at a
rate that reflects the expected return
rates.

ERERREME - RARRESRER
HMEDRBEERSEH - BiEA R
B 78 HA 0] SR R ) b R AL ER o

Discounted cash flow. The estimated
future cash flow is based on the
contractual amount, discounted at a
rate that reflects the expected return
rates.

ERERREME - RRRESRER
HMENRBEERSE - BRI R
B 78 HA 0] SR R ) b R AL ER o
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value as at Fair value
Financial instruments 31 December 2024 hierarchy
R04E12A31H
¢RI ZAYE AHEZSHR
Financial assets at FVTOCI, current Notes receivable Level 3
- RMB2,502,853,000
(2023: RMB3,848,095,000)
IATFESBELBHH A2 BUEE £30
E%m%éﬂﬁ% A — AR H2,502,853,0007C
(20235 + ARH3,848,095,0007T)
Equity instruments at FVTOCI Equity interest in unlisted company withno ~ Level 3
open market price quote
- RMB419,334,000
(2023: RMB408, 159,000)
AATEEAEEH AL E YEARTSRENELTATARE  Eh
ERENRATIE 1
— ARH419,334,0007C
(20235 + NR#408,159,0007)
Financial assets at fair Equity interest in unlisted company withno ~ Level 3
value through profit or loss open market price quote
- RMB1,296,000
(2023; RMB1,296,000)
AATEHEARSHH AR TEARTARENFELTAF ERE
%ﬂﬁ? g
— ARH1,296,0007C
(20235 = NR¥1,296,0007)
Financial assets at fair Equity interest in unlisted company withno~ Level 3
value through profit or open market price quote
loss, non-current —RMBY7,050,000
(2023 RMBS,872,000)
ATEEEEESABRN TALANSEEMNELTAR ERE

%ﬂﬁ? JEED BAigs

— ARH7,050,0007C
(2003% : AR ¥6,872,0007)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year.

For the sensitivity analysis of unobservable inputs of financial
instruments, the management of the Group considers that the
impacts are immaterial, and such information is not disclosed.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

© EMIEZR

Valuation technique and
key input

ERER
EXBALE

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future
cash flow is based on the contractual
amount,

ERRALRE - KERERENMG
ETREAREE -

Vialuation multiples. The fair value is based
on Enterprise Value (‘EV")/Book Value
(“BV") multiple and Discounts for Lack
Of Marketability (‘DLOM’).

ﬁﬁf% ?ﬁﬂ%ﬂ £
(lev])/BEE(B)EERRZ
mEnBEER ([ mERdE
%ﬁﬁ

Vialuation multiples. The fair value is based
on EV/BV and DLOM.

fREREE - ATEDERVBIRRZ
mZRBEER -

Valuation multiples. The fair value is based
on EV/BV and DLOM.

fEfERE - DFEDERVBIRRZ
mmﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

i E B SRR Y EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #; = 2024512 A31 B It F[E

46. TR T B (&)
HEETE )

Significant unobservable input

EXTUBRAAME
Expected discounted rate

The higher the discount rate, the lower

he fair value.
EHERE
BREHS  ATESE -
EV/BV multiple and DLOM.

The higher the EV/BV multiple, the higher
the fair value. The higher the DLOM,
the lower the fair value.

VBVEEE Rk e G TR B -

BBVESHE - ATERS < B2
E%muL‘@Eiﬁtn AFES

EV/BV muttiple and DLOM.

The higher the EV/BV multiple, the higher
the fair value. The higher the DLOM,
the lower the fair value.

BBVEE e mim T B AR -

nBVEEER - ATERS - B2
&%mLE%ﬁt“ AFEHS

EV/EBIT multiple and DLOM.

The higher the EV/EBIT multiple, the
higher the fair value. The higher the
DLOM, the lower the fair value.

FUBVER R B TR AMEE -

LTSS - ATESS © i
CTETANERYNS  ATE
I, -

FREVRIE L2 2 a0 e -

HREMT AN TAERGARBOSZMEDT -

REBERERE
FAEHL o

AAREERR

s B TEKX - B ARKER

IR A BT RER A SR A AT B

MEREELERBENREEREAHERS

211



212

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE
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46. Financial instruments (Continued)

46. TR T B ()

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

c £mITAZAFEFTE®

On 12 March 2025, the Board agreed for the Company to use its own
funds and self raised funds to repurchase some of its issued ordinary
shares in A-shares market through centralized bidding trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange trading system, and will use the repurchased
shares for future share-based payment scheme. The total funds for
the Company’s share repurchase shall be between RMB500 million
and RMB600 million. The repurchase price of the shares shall not
exceed RMB17.00 per share, and the specific repurchase price shall be
determined during the implementation period based on the Company’s
stock price, financial condition, and operating conditions. The deadline for
this share repurchase plan is within 6 months from the date of approval by
the board of directors.

(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements HEIRAFEFTEZHIER
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
Financial Equity fair value through profit
assets at instruments at through profit or loss,
FVTOCI, current FVTOCI or loss non-current
IATEE IATENE DATEHE DATEHE
BHEZHHA HHEHHA BHEHHA BHEHHA
2 ERER 22 E RN B B
SREE 0N RAIA SRMEE  SREE FO0H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Balance as at 31 December 2022 W202E12A31BE 4,494,325 403,889 1,296 -
Addition NE 15,247,789 - - 6,872
Fair value changes INEEbL )] - 4270 - -
Settlements EE (15,894,019) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 2023F12A31 AR 3,848,095 408,159 1,296 6,872
Addition RE 15,272,682 - - -
Fair valug changes NTEES - 11,175 - 178
Setlements #E (16,617,924) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2024 R024F12A31 B EEER 2,502,853 419,334 1,296 7,050
Of the total gains for the period included in profit or loss, T ABEN AR =BRES - ARM178,0007T
RMB178,000 gain (2023: Nil) relates to financial assets at FVTPL Y (20234 - &) AR EHRFE R A FE
held at the end of the current reporting period. Included in other FABRHNSREERR - sTAEMEEKED
comprehensive income is an amount of RMB11,175,000 gain (2023: S E A AR11,1750007T W 5 (20236« AR
RMB4,270,000 gain) relating to unlisted equity securities classified as 4,270,0007T U855 ) - Z e REER AN B ORHF A YA
equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of the current reporting AN EFEREEFH:FALMEEKFNERTA
period and is reported as changes of revaluation reserve. RISEETRAZ ARG - WH AEGREHEES -
47. Events after the reporting period 47. {EHAREIR

R2025F3A12H - EECREARFUEEES
FEEESEBEBESR MR D ARG EHRFE
RSHFR  RABRTIZEEI DN AR EHITE
BARNED - WG EIEENR D AR R R M LARR (5 A ALl
B 58l - RRIAREIBRGHESRENAA
RSB ETEARKC0E BT ° AKX [EHD
BRTBEERARE1700T  ERBEBERK
REEIBAMAERARRERE - BHIRR - 8RR
ERTE - NREBRHEINSRAESSIEY
AiE6EA R -
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48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48. KARIEEMB AT ZFHE

Company

A20244F 2023512 A31H - AR T EZEMB AT
ZEHBIT -

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024
and 2023 are as follows.

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities operation registered capital held by the Group
MR,
R,/ ERTRAZRE rEEREERR
MELEEE TEEK EEE HMEAEE RRAERDL
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
Directly held:
BERE -
Hengda Intelligent Manufacture of hydraulic ~ The PRC RMB360,000,000 98.20 85.02
BESE products R A £360,000,0007T
EEREED
Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #100,000,0007T
DMK EER AT EERTEER
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 100.00 100.00
Material Trading Co., Ltd. and products Sl AR #50,000,0007T
SNEEEREEMEREERAT RERERES
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 83.21 53.21
Machinery Co., Ltd. machinery e AR #50,000,0007T
DM REERER AT TR
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00 54.00
Group Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #50,000,0007T
DR EE BT B AR AT A E SR
Zhengzhou Zhima Street Industrial Co., Ltd. ~ Hotel Managementand ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
SNEMEBEEBRAR construction service AR #100,000,0007T
BIEE B RIRERS
Zhengzhou Coal Mine Machinery Co., Ltd. Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
SEMEBRNEREELF machinery R AR H1,000,000,0007T

A ERRE
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Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

HEARERE

Directly held: (Continued)
EERE (B)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Siberia Co., Ltd.
BREARNEBREEAT

ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd.
HEBERE S (B BRAR

ZMJ Germany GmbH
BREERERAR

ZMJ America, Inc.
(M) BRATE

ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd
HEHORAFT) AR AT

ZMJ Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.
BREBEREERAAF

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Shuyun

Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.
BN RS R ER AR

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activities

FTEXK

Aftermarket service of
mining machinery

R ER IR

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

HERRRRE
R &

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

HERRRRE
R E

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

HERRRRE
R E

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

HERRRRE
R E

Commercial factoring
[EELSE

Providing technology
service

BRI AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE

48. KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
i)
R,/
EEE

Russia
fEAEHe

Hong Kong
B

Germany
1=

Canada
meEx

Australia
BARME

The PRC
F

The PRC
F

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAAZRE/
AMEAEE

USD100,000
100,00037C

USD7,500,000
7,500,000 7T

EUR1,000,000
1,000,008 7T

Canadian dollar 100
10007T

USD200,000
200,003 7T

RMB100,000,000
AR#100,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEERAERR
TRAEBRD L
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
60.00 60.00
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48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WEARERE

Directly held: (Continued)
EERE - (B)

ZMJ Emerging Industry Investment (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership)

R REXRE(TR)ARER(E

Ra¥)

Intelligent Working Face
RecTEm

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Crane
(Zhengzhou) Co., Ltd
T LR S (M) BREERA)

ASIMCO Nanjing Limited
DRI ER(FR)BRAH

CACGLTD.I

Zhengzhou Shengji Mechanical and Electrical
Equipment Company Limited
BNEERBRBERAT

ZMJ Zhiding Hydraulic Company Limited
HEMELREERAT

Hong Kong SMG International Co., Limited
BERESEARARAR

SEG Automotive E-Drive System Co., Ltd.
RERAEEHEFERAA

Principal activities

TEXH

Investing
rE

Manufacture of mining
machinery

AR

Manufacture of mining
machinery
BB

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

48. KPATEEMB LR ZHERE @)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
&L
B,/
EE

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

Sale and purchase of auto  The PRC

parts and components

HERRETETM

Sale of auto parts
HERET I

Sale of auto parts
HERET I

Manufacture of mining
machinery
B

Sale of auto parts
HERET I

Sale of auto parts
HERET I

HE

Cayman Islands
HEMS
The PRC

I

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

BERITRBERE
HEMEAHEE

RMB389,516,702
AR £389,516,7027T

RMB166,760,400.00
AR #166,760,400.007T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB1,200,000,000
AR #:1,200,000,0007T

RMB418,970
ARHEMN89707T
RMB2,450,000,000

AR #:2,450,000,0007C

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

EUR310,000,000
310,000,000 7T

RMB100,000,000
AR #100,000,0007T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEEREERR
RAERDH
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
100.00 100.00
56.82 28.00
60.00 -
100.00 83.39
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31H (L&

48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities operation
i)
R,/
] PNGIEE TEEH EELH

Indirectly held:
EERE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Intelligent ~ Software and IT services  The PRC
Control Technology Innovation Center Co, — ¥ & & EHRRE
Ltd. (former name: “Intelligent Control
Software and Network Services Technology
(Zhengzhou) Co.,Ltd.”)

RS E R AR OB RAF
(RURE : [ SRR (B0
BRAAF])

Intelligent Control Software and Network Software and IT services ~ The PRC
Services Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. B REARERE &
BE@uR (RN ERAF

Zhengzhou Hengda Kunpeng Technology Co.,  Software and IT services ~ The PRC
Ltd. (former name: “Zhengzhou Yingzhike — BN R EARERE &
Technology Co., Ltd.")

HNEERERRAR AR
(RITE : [BMEBRRHRERAA])

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.  Sale of molding and metal  The PRC

MINEEEBER AR material 2
BARSBMEHE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Gelin Sale of molding and metal  The PRC
Material Technology Co., Ltd. material F
MBI AR AR BAREBMEHE

ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd Sale of auto parts The PRC
DEFRN R (B AR AR HERETHH FE

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAAZRE/
AMEAEE

RMB8,000,000
AR 8,000,0007T

RMB8,000,000
AR 8,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB118,043,007
AR #118,043,0077C

48. KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @)

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEERAERR
TRAEBRD L
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
98.20 85.02
98.20 85.02
98.20 85.02
55.26 55.26
55.26 55.26
63.00 52.24



Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WEARERE

Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE - (E)

ASIMCO Shuanghuan
DARIER

ASIMCO Shanxi
SHRILA

ASIMCO International, Inc.
DERIERER AT

ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui)
TR B ERE R (LR ARAF

ASIMCO Alloy Materials (Yizheng) Co., Ltd
(former name: “ASM ALLOY MATERIALS
(YIZHENG) CO.,LTD")

DHRE MR (R AR AR (AT -
[BEHEaeMH(EBEAERAR])

Yangzhou Yingwei AutoMotive Parts Co., Ltd.
BMRERETHHERAF

Anhui ASIMCO Sealing Technology Co., Ltd.
ZRGHRZHBRMTER DA

Ningguo ASIMCO Wujinzhipin Co., Ltd.
BEMEHNASERERAT

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activities

TEXH

Sale of auto parts

HERETHRIT

Sale of auto parts

HERETHMT

Sale of auto parts

HERETHMT

Sale of auto parts

HERETHMT

Sale of auto parts

HERETHMT

Sale of auto parts

HERETHRIT

Sale of auto parts
HERET I

Sale of auto parts

HERETHRIT

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

48. KPATEEMB LR ZHERE @)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
&L
B,/
EE

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

The United States of

America (“USA")

ENBERE
(B30

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

The PRC
P

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

BERITRBERE

HEMEAHEE

RMB229,703,231
AR #229,703,2317C

RMB420,362,000
AR #:420,362,0007T

UsD1
(E

RMB299,200,000
AR #:299,200,0007T

RMB41,308,285
AR#41,308,2857T

RMB2,000,000
AR #2,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEEREERR
RAERDH
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
63.54 52.99
100.00 83.39
100.00 83.39
100.00 83.39
63.54 63.54
63.54 63.54
100.00 83.39
100.00 83.39

207
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48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities
MEBAR AR TEEH
Indirectly held: (Continueq)
EERE  (E)
ASIMCO Sealing Technologies Sale of auto parts
(Thaland) Co., Ltd. HERETHM
THRES R (RE) AR AR
ASIMCO International Casting (Yuncheng) Sale of auto parts
Co., Ltd. (former name: “ASIMCO HEABTHMS
Technologies (Yuncheng) Co., Ltd.”)
THRIBEREECGER) AR AR
(FI7E : [ AT TERATGER)
=1 :yNSI)
SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P. Sale of auto parts
HEABTHH
SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings S.ar.l.  Sale of auto parts
HEABTHMS
New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH Sale of auto parts
HEABTHMH
New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and Sale of auto parts
Operations GmbH & Co. KG SHERBET N
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH Sale of auto parts
RRRAEEEERAA HEABTHMH
SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda. Sale of auto parts

RRBAERHERBRAR HERETHRMY

48. KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
i)
R,/
EEE

Thailand
E3E

The PRC
FE

Cayman Islands
HAEHS

Luxembourg
ERE

Germany
2

Germany
2
Germany

(G2

Brazil
yiii]

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAAZRE/
AMEAEE

Thai Baht 22,500,000
22,500,000 &

RMB200,000,000
AR #200,000,0007T

EUR499,999,905
499,999,9058X 7T

EUR12,000
12,0008 7T

EUR25,000
25,00081 7T

EUR625,000,500
625,000,5008X 7C
EUR25,000

25,00081 7T

EUR50,300,715.57
50,300,715.57BX 7T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEERAERR
TRAEBRD L
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
100.00 83.39
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
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48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48. XARETEMBARIZFE @)
Company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities operation registered capital held by the Group
KL
R,/ BRTRMZRE rEEREERR
MEL B TEER EE AMEAEE RAERDH
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE - (&)
Starters E-Components Generators Sale of auto parts Hungary EUR15,050,000 100.00 100.00
Automotive Hungary Kft. HERET I %) 5 7 15,050,0008 7T
REBAEQTHERAE
SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd. Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB290,400,000.00 100.00 100.00
RRRAEIE(RE)BRAF HERET I Il AR #290,400,000.007T
SEG Automotive India Private Limited Sale of auto parts India EUR134,395.95 99.99 99.99
RRRABEHEBRAA HERET I € 134,395,958 7
SEG Automotive North America LLC Sale of auto parts USA - 100.00 100.00
RERAEILEERAFA HERETEM x5
SEG Automotive France S.A.S. Sale of auto parts France EUR50,000 100.00 100.00
RERAELHBR AT HERETEM = 50,0008 7T
SEG Automotive Japan Corporation Sale of auto parts Japan EUR736,982.46 100.00 100.00
REKTEHAGKA 2L HERETEM BA 736,982,468 7T
SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR486,633.91 99.99 99.99
SA deCl. HERET I BFF 486,633.91B17T
REBAERATREBRAT
SEG Automotive Mexico Service, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR89,994.28 99.99 99.99
S.deR.L deCV. HERET I 209 89,994.28B1 T

RERAEEATHEERAF
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48. Particular of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

HEARERE FTEXK

Indirectly held: (Continueq)
EERE  (E)

SEG Automotive Mexico Sales, S. de R.L. de C.V. Sale of auto parts

RERAERATHEARAR HEABTHH
SEG Automotive Portugal, Unipessoal Lda. Sale of auto parts
RREAEREETARAR HEABTHH
SEG Automotive South Africa Proprietary Limited ~ Sale of auto parts
RRRAERFERAA HEABTHH
SEG Automotive Korea Co. Ltd. Sale of auto parts
RRRAEREERAA HERET I
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U. Sale of auto parts
REBAEREMTBRAE HEABTHMS
SEG Automotive Italy S.r.l. Sale of auto parts
RRRABEEANARAH HEABTHMS

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
i)
R,/
EEE

Mexico
=79

Portugal
BET
South Africa
e

Korea
E e

Spain
it

Italy
BAN

48. KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @)

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAAZRE/
AMEAEE

EUR95,008.49
95,008.49BX 7T

EUR25,000
25,00081 7T

EUR59,711.70
59,711.70B% 7T

EUR36,834.26
36,834.26 47T

EUR9,616,000
9,616,0008% 7T

EUR500,000
5000008 7T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEERAERR
TRAEBRD L
2024 2023
20244 20234
% %
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00




49, Information about the statement of financial

BIMEERMEBRMD AR AT 202455

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&

position and reserves of the Company

49. EEA LT MBMRRRE REE2ER

As at 31 December

M12A318
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRE 1,588,400 1,578,857
Right-of-use assets FREEE 531,253 204,392
Investment properties AW 194,965 204,526
Intangible assets B A E 60,356 37,540
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZINE 14,399,675 12,249,335
Investments in associates REE N BRI E 604,495 632,247
Investments in joint ventures REETENRE - 38,130
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss A A (EEHE A &8s A8
WEmEE 7,050 6,872
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTSHEE 96,836 122,390
Finance lease receivables AR EEWIIA 27,378 38,554
Long-term receivables RHAFEUGRIE 245,392 150,172
Bank deposits SRITER 980,022 1,468,712
Total non-current assets FRBEERLE 18,735,822 16,731,727
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =g 5,492,425 5,538,999
Loans receivable from subsidiaries FEWM B AR ER 100,000 110,000
Trade and other receivables 5 R HA WA 6,433,981 5,327,037
Transferred trade receivables BEENE 5 R IE 431,851 198,861
Finance lease receivables, current portion REHEREWFIE  REED 15,393 16,470
Long-term receivables, current portion REFFEWHIE - RENEH D 248,237 216,230
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss LA A F(EEHE A &8s AlBEH
TRMEE 5,208,453 4,664,823
Financial assets at FVTOCI LAAFERT 2 EHE 8 A A
THWRNERERE 1,389,451 2,457,398
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 10,273 725
Bank deposits RITIFK 1,724,647 1,708,755
Cash and cash equivalents RWERIREEEY 1,483,302 3,136,532
Total current assets BREBEE 22,538,013 23,375,830
Total assets BmEE 41,273,835 40,107,557
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49, Information about the statement of financial 49. EREA LRI BERARRFEHRE2ER

position and reserves of the Company (Continued) (&)
As at 31 December
MA128318
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Other non-current liabilities HiIEREBE 211,754 159,203
Employee benefit obligations BERBMNEFE 60,156 64,539
Borrowings TE 2,462,000 4,703,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,953 19,358
Total non-current liabilities kREBEELE 2,735,863 4,946,100
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMFER A 11,172,276 10,666,394
Contract liabilities ARAE 2,440,789 3,380,082
Borrowings ==} 925,741 422,000
Provision B 29,297 33,453
Liabilities associated with HEEEMNE SRR
transferred trade receivables EEMNAaE 445,802 212,812
Income tax liabilities FriSHiB & 187,778 92,576
Lease liabilities HEaE 591 4,286
Total current liabilities REAEHERE 15,202,274 14,811,603
Total liabilities HmEeFE 17,938,137 19,757,703
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B &HE
Share capital A& 7 1,785,400 1,781,409
Share premium B& 75 (B 4,548,778 4,533,431
Reserves B 17,001,520 14,035,014
Total equity A 23,335,698 20,349,854
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAEE 41,273,835 40,107,557
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ll‘l_\éﬂjﬁiﬁi Bﬁ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & 2024412 A31 2 (L /&
49. Information about the statement of financial 49. ERAAQARIMBERRERFEZER
position and reserves of the Company (continued) (%)
Movement in the Company’s reserves RRrFEEEE
Statutory
Treasury Surplus Other Retained
share Reserve reserves earnings Total
ERRG LERMHE HitE REEF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2023 #2023F1 B1B £ (118,198) 1,198,347 335,745 10,358,600 11,774,494
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREENEEE

income for the year - - - 2,948,619 2,948,619
Share options fERE - - 1,326 - 1,326
Restricted share incentive BRI R B2l (P 7E38)

scheme (Note 38) 65,771 - 24,464 2,082 92,317
Dividends (Note 14) & (Mizt14) - - - (998,058) (998,058)
Contribution from associates BENEHE - - 1,072 - 1,072
Change of investment and RAZDREERESR

inter-group restructuring - - (118,667) 333911 215,244
Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31 B £ 4% (52,427 1,198,347 243,940 12,645,154 14,035,014
Balance at 1 January 2024 20241 A1B &8k (52,427) 1,198,347 243,940 12,645,154 14,035,014
Profit and total comprehensive FRENEEEKESE

income for the year - - - 4,374,149 4,374,149
Unlock of restricted share (Note 38) PR 1 ME AR R AR R R 5 (9 3E38) 50,828 - - - 50,828
Expenses recognized related to restricted  F37 BRR s 14 AR S B £t 2148

share incentive scheme (Note 38) A E A (FiE38) - - 6,874 - 6,874
Forfeit of restricted share (Note 38) SRUBR B AR (P 3E38) 1,599 - - - 1,599
Dividends (Note 14) A8 8. (B EE14) - - - (1,499,153) (1,499,153)
Contribution from associates BENFHE - - 32,209 - 32,209

Balance at 31 December 2024 R2024F12 A1 BE# - 1,198,347 283,023 15,520,150 17,001,520
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IFMBRE

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REBERREER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

20245 20234 20224F 20214 202045

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

INLEWA ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue WA 37,052,042 36,423,236 32,043,306 29,293,527 26,519,393

Cost of sales SHERA 28,198,869 28,821,178 25,644,599 23,221,695 20,218,738

Profit hefore tax KRBT F 5,211,472 4,118,262 3,090,078 2,623,316 1,939,894

Profit for the year FRHEF] 4,230,398 3,501,594 2,628,005 2,069,868 1,378,781

Profit for the year attributable to: LA T AT EIEER
St

Owners of the Company AABRE 3,943,489 3,301,334 2,538,235 1,947,785 1,239,149

Non-controlling interests RS 287,409 200,260 89,770 122,083 139,632

4,230,898 3,501,594 2,628,005 2,069,868 1,378,781

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Financial REMBMRREBE
Position
As at 31 December
M2A318

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

2024 20234 20224F 20214F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

INLEA ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT

Non-current assets EREEE 13,528,231 12,675,729 10,270,311 9,407,764 9,352,372

Current assets FEBE 35,487,752 36,711,290 34,199,278 27,922,550 25,104,222

Total assets mEE 49,015,983 49,387,019 44,469,589 37,330,314 34,456,594

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 4,518,093 8,125,280 6,245,568 6,600,964 5,594,284

Current liabilities mENEE 21,752,181 19,380,410 19,585,740 15,078,373 14,828,479

Total liabilities e 26,270,274 27,505,690 25,831,308 21,679,337 20,422,763
Equity attributable to owners ARNFIRFFE(G R

of the Company 21,950,799 20,378,212 17,807,267 14,795,491 13,063,795

Non-controlling interests S 794,910 1,503,117 831,014 855,486 970,036

Total equity AL 22,745,709 21,881,329 18,638,281 15,650,977 14,033,831

Total equity and liabilities EENRAEAE 49,015,983 49,387,019 44,469,589 37,330,314 34,456,594
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